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K-economy and
New Economy

Before commenting on the above and
suggesting the inputs required for

setting the enabling environment, it may
be helpful for readers to know what is
meant by the K-economy — an umbrella
term for information technology (IT), ba-
sic research and associated sectors.

The Organisation for Economic Coop-
eration and Development (OECD), for ex-
ample, has defined a knowledge-based
economy as the “production, utilisation and
distribution of knowledge in all activities.”
The United Kingdom Department of Trade
and Industry in 1998 defined a knowledge-
driven economy as one in which the gen-

eration and exploitation of knowledge play
the predominant part in the creation of
wealth. Bank Negara Malaysia termed the
K-economy as the “generation and exploi-
tation of knowledge to create new value in
the economy.”

It may be of some interest for readers to
know that there is a subtle difference be-
tween the concepts of K-economy and the
so-called new economy. While both rest on
the technology-driven concept, the latter
asserts that technology is also changing
the economic world, claiming that the eco-
nomic cycle could be crushed by technol-
ogy — which means no more recessions,
or at least the impact of recessions will be
less. This ‘faith’ in the new economy possi-
bly contributed to the recent frenzy of
speculation in the US.

New System of Wealth Creation

The world has, indeed, changed dram-
atically with the extraordinary pace of

technological development and the
globalisation of commerce. In a report pre-
pared by the US Department of Commerce
entitled, “Digital Economy 2000”, it was men-
tioned that the IT sector accounted for over
one-third of the growth in the US Gross Do-
mestic Product between 1995 and 1999. Ap-
parently, investment in the IT and related sec-
tors accounted for around half of the growth
in US productivity during the same period.
While the faith in some of the profound eco-
nomic changes wrought by technology and
internet have been shaken by the equity
market sell-off and interest rate hikes, the
general consensus is that the transformation
is real, i.e. technology-driven expansion.

In terms of transformational change as-

Introduction

T he first draft of the K–economy Master Plan may be completed before the
end of the year and could be used in the formulation of the 2001 Budget,
Eighth Malaysia Plan and the Third Outline Perspective Plan. Datuk
Mustapa Mohamed, Economic Adviser to the Finance Ministry and a
former Second Finance Minister who provided this information at a semi-

nar some time earlier this year went on to say that the Government had taken a giant
stride to enhance Malaysia’s international competitiveness and efficiency by transform-
ing the economy from production-based (p-economy) into knowledge-driven (K-
economy). “This is the key to moving up the value-added chain,” he said.

The focus of this paper is to highlight the fact that, while the Government’s visionary
approach to knowledge-driven economy is commendable, much more work needs to be
done for the nation’s self-renewal and e-business readiness. Issues such as revamping
schools to stress creativity, removing barriers that inhibit entrepreneurship, cherry-pick-
ing of international high-technology talent, research and development (R&D), general
business environment and communications infrastructure, absence of a venture capital
culture and increasing income disparities have yet to be addressed satisfactorily. Most
importantly, an open culture has to be forged. This is the gateway to the K-economy.

Seldom have managers been offered so much diverse and confusing advice about the
art of business leadership as in recent times. This upheaval in management thinking can
be attributed to the arrival of a revolutionary system of wealth creation.

Gateway to the  
          RETHINKING  By Dr. V. Kanapathy
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BOARD OF ADVISORS
OLYMPIA COLLEGE, KUALA LUMPUR
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sociated with the emergence of different
systems of wealth creation, it is generally
agreed that there are only three turning
points in the economic history worthy of
note — agricultural revolution, industrial
revolution and now the knowledge revolu-
tion. During the past 20 years or so, we
have experienced great bursts of creative
thinking, contributing immensely to eco-
nomic, technological and social change.
The latest is the decoding of the human
genome, which as been mentioned as a
historic achievement comparable with the
invention of the wheel. Knowledge has now
become a primary factor of production in
the new system of wealth creation.

As Alvin and Heidi Toffler, grandmasters
of future thinking said, increasing amount
of work is being done in the management
world “on questions of knowledge manage-

ment — the assessment of knowledge assets,
new approaches to organisational and indi-
vidual learning, attempts to create a metric
(measurement) for dealing with knowledge.”
With the continuous increase in knowledge,
the possibilities of continued increase in
wealth are brightened. Of course increas-
ingly powerful information, especially ge-
nome information, which is now being made
at mankind’s disposal should not be abused.

Open Culture and
Management Styles

If Malaysia wants to be a leader in the k-
economy, the age of the closed, patriar-

chal, tycoon-led management styles has to
come to an end. Real changes in corporate
behaviour are needed to cope with the new
shape of events.

To boost innovation and creativity and

 K-economy
 THE FUTURE

produce people like Sir Richard Branson,
we need an open culture which would help
foster entrepreneurial thinking and under-
standing of the benefits of failure and suc-
cess. Malaysians, like Branson, should
learn to challenge and change conventional
wisdom wherever necessary. At the same
time, Malaysians also have to know how
to protect the downside by developing alli-

Sir Richard Branson, head of the
Virgin Group of Companies
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ances with creditors, customers and the
local community among others.

Branson’s dealings with creditors pro-
vide many such examples. And as reported
in the Financial Times recently, “despite
repeated fears that his privately-owned
empire was strapped for funds, the entre-
preneur had pulled a string of deals that
have brought new cash for business.” His
latest was when he managed to appease his
creditors by agreeing to the refinancing of
V2, the fledgling record label.

For ‘Malaysian Bransons’ to grow in large
numbers, Malaysians have to evolve their
own culture and disposition which empha-
sise the rights and freedom of individuals,
and not to be constrained by societal norms
such as the need for compliance and social
obligation over individual expression. The
authorities should soon recognise these is-
sues as Singapore has already done, and
begin to tailor the education system accord-
ingly. A well-structured education system
would place a premium on individual
thought and expression.

Business too must behave like learning
organisations, agile and adaptable to change.
Business leaders cannot ignore their duty
and responsibility to expand innovative skills
and ‘entrepreneurialism’. Branson, for exam-
ple, has been very liberal in giving his man-
agers minority shareholdings and participa-
tion in new ventures in the new markets.
Such practice, fosters commitment and par-
ticipation and, as Branson says, his actions
make managers stick with the company and
become millionaires.

To move forward, Malaysian companies
have to move away from the traditional ‘com-
mand and control-type’ management struc-
tures, where top-down decisions rule. They
should create an environment which pro-
vides a more open and challenging culture
for their employees, e.g. cut off internal red
tape and encourage ‘intrapreneurship’ as
done in Branson’s companies and give lots
of opportunities and freedom to develop
and implement new ideas. With a combi-
nation of technology, information and talent,
success becomes inevitable.

Now for the details.
In the submission of proposals to the ar-

chitects of the K-economy Master Plan, we
had already identified the need to foster
open culture via education and company
management practices.

Knowledge and
Creativity

Concerning education, es-
pecially scientific and

technological education, it
must be emphasised that if
Malaysia wants a higher stand-
ard of living and an economic
system that can deliver it, the
nation has to play the game in
a competitive way. Scientific
and technological knowledge
should take over the economy.

Currently, Malaysia lags be-
hind its competitors. Skill-gaps
have to be filled. Human capital
and R&D capacity are impor-
tant elements in a K-economy.
Singapore, its nearest rival, is
way ahead insofar as competi-
tive deficiency is concerned.

Co-operation between uni-
versities and companies
should be encouraged. Cur-
rently it is minimal, partly be-
cause of paucity of enterpris-
ing and entrepreneurial-
minded academics, clash of value systems,
bureau-cratisation, universities corralling
its staff and the like. It is true classroom
quality needs to be protected as academi-
cians increasingly weigh new opportunities
in the private sector.

Needless to add, universities would like
to ensure full-time students get full-time
faculty. But this does not mean universi-
ties cannot undertake, if they have the op-
portunities and capabilities, contract re-
search. In Taiwan, the Government en-
courages such collaborative research via
tax incentives and the sharing of profits if
the company-funded projects take off.

Cherry-picking of
High-technology Talent

In this borderless world, mobility plays a
key role. Talent, for example, is mobile.

Indeed, the battle for high-technology tal-
ent is hotting up. Talent-hiring has now
become an elaborate act of ‘seduction’. On
top of it, capital is also mobile and so is
knowledge. Governments in need of
skilled manpower, therefore, have to com-
pete for the same talent, capital and knowl-
edge. However, if Singapore, Hong Kong
and California can do, Malaysia also can.

Of course, good governance is a sine qua
non. It only decides whether talent flows
in, or talent flows out. This is the trend.
No time for stalling or stuttering. As indi-
cated earlier, Malaysia’s competitors have
already launched ambitious initiatives.
Therefore, the Government will increas-
ingly come under international competitive
pressure to change. The pressure on the
Government now is either you compete, or
you are out.

Malaysia has to be fleet-footed and cre-
ate the right atmosphere to encourage the

“In this borderless world,

mobility plays a key role.

Talent, for example, is mobile

.... capital is also mobile

and so is knowledge.

Governments in need of

skilled manpower, therefore,

have to compete for the

same talent, capital and

knowledge.”
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inflow of talented foreigners to cover up
the skill gap. Malaysia could also then see
the emergence of a cultural efflorescence,
which can transform the social landscape.
Most importantly, cross-fertilisation will
prove that it is an essential part of the crea-
tive process.

Venture Capital Culture

While it has become hip to be an en-
trepreneur in Malaysia, no local uni-

versity has a chair in entrepreneurial de-
velopment. Malaysia needs a large number
of vibrant entrepreneurs who can help the

world) said, “in an increasingly networked
economy, it is not the big that beats the
small, but the fast that beats the slow.”

Barriers Inhibiting
Entrepreneurship

To overcome the skilled labour paucity
problem, the Government could also

look into administrative stumbling blocks
which are stifling economic progress.

Let’s look at the balance between risks
and rewards. Small companies in Malay-
sia are generally averse to risks, for fear of
failure whereas in the US, bankruptcy is

viewed as par t
of the learning
process. Indeed,
“bankr uptc ies
(can) teach hard
lessons about
credit risks,” said
Steve Taran in a
different context
of bond market
development.1

The American
experience has
much to of fer
with regard to
entrepreneurial
suppor t. Entre-
preneurs who go
bust are not
allowed to be

hounded beyond a certain period by credi-
tors. At a time when the country is experi-
encing a chronic shortage of skilled pro-
fessionals, social policies may have to be
tinged with a degree of pragmatism in or-
der to prevent companies going elsewhere.

While it is generally agreed that we have
a business-friendly Government, many are
of the view that there is yet room for busi-
ness-friendly structural reforms, i.e. regu-
latory constraints especially in the area of
affirmative action that still exist for busi-
ness start-ups may have to be mended fur-
ther, though not necessarily to be ended.

There are other areas where the admin-
istrative machinery has to be rationalised.
For example, on average it takes five times
longer to set up a limited liability company
in Malaysia than in Singapore, and costs
two times more. Time taken to settle con-
tractual disputes through courts also take
a much longer time. ASEAN mechanism

to facilitate working across borders could
also be made more efficient.

Support and Guidance for
Old Companies

Old companies who have rushed out
new online strategies fearing that

they may be left behind by the stock mar-
ket must be given support and guidance.
For those old companies that use this guid-
ance wisely to recast their business, the
internet can be more of an opportunity
than a threat. It can help to cut costs. Even
the smallest companies, labelled
‘technophobic’, could be guided to move
online to sell goods and deliver services.
Experiences in other countries have shown
the most active users have doubled their
average margins.

Industry and Agriculture –
Increased Knowledge Content

To achieve the balance we need to suc-
ceed in the K-economy of the informa-

tion age, Malaysia also needs to harness
the power of high-technology over the in-
dustrial and agricultural sectors, which un-
derpin the livelihoods of most Malaysians
and their businesses. They too could build
a ‘knowledge-export’ platform with exports
increasingly based on ‘knowledge-content’.
To achieve this status, many see an imme-
diate need for, agriculture in particular,
fresh policies, which should be all about
positioning Malaysia to be a real winner in
the K-economy.

As Dato Seri Dr. Mahathir Mohamed said
at the Multimedia Asia 1999 Conference, the
next vision for Malaysia is for the country
to develop the agricultural sector to become
a major producer and exporter.2 He said this
vision was born during the recent economic
crisis when he realised that Malaysia had a
very high food import bill and this had af-
fected the country’s trade.

When I met Dr. Mahathir for the first
time in 1975, I asked him to indicate a place
in Malaysia which grows onion on a com-
mercial scale, but the answer I got back
was a wry smile which actually meant that
there was no such place. Incidentally, to
this very day, not even a bulb of onion is

country make quantum leaps into the new
economy. Increased investment in IT and
conduct of business electronically is chang-
ing the way business is done, but local en-
trepreneurs are given little financial en-
couragement. It is not easy to find money
for small but potentially fast-growing busi-
nesses. Venture capital culture has yet to
take root in this country.

In this game of venture capitalism, “more
fisherman means more fish” as someone
had said. Upstarts, however nimble they
may be, should be nur tured to grow
quickly from garage outfits, unhindered by
financial or bureaucratic red tape. A tele-
phone monopoly, or an established indus-
trial or media company, is not sufficient to
build up a successful K-economy base.

Further, as John Chambers, CEO of the
technology firm Cisco Systems (which is
neck-and-neck with General Electric for the
title of the most valuable company in the

1 Steve Taran, Managing Director of Solomon Smith
Barney, “Developing an Efficient Bond Market,”
Malaysian Capital Summit 2000, 13 June 2000.

2 Reported in New Straits Times, 21 September 1999.
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tions options.3 Yeomans said :  “Here you
have an island in the middle of nowhere
(that) by imaginative thinking, strategic
policy making and tough negotiations is
busy writing itself a place at the heart of a
global e-commerce network.”

Thrift, Community and
Prudence

In conclusion, it has to be said that tech-
nology and prosperity, relatively speak-

ing, are advancing relentlessly in the Kuala
Lumpur area, obscuring the truth that

The World 
Competitiveness
Scoreboard 2000
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grown locally though technology has ad-
vanced so far that it is now even possible
to “grow grass on the pebbled beaches of
Brighton.” What a paradox! We still con-
tinue to import about RM500 million worth
of onions per annum. Total annual food
imports exceeds RM10 billion. What more
can we achieve by way of wealth and em-
ployment creation, let alone food security,
if we can also generate more food and food-
based exports!

The core of the industry and agriculture
policy should be to encourage commer-
cialisation, R&D and innovation, with both
sectors setting their sights on global and
local markets .The Government should
make sure nothing unnecessarily impedes
their aim. This culture must encompass an
absolute priority on education and training.
The key to it all is the recognition
of the centrality of the innovation
culture if we are to be competitive.

Need for Imaginative
Steps

It is a fact that Malaysia trails in
the technology race, but all is not

lost. Malaysia can expect to reap
sudden benefits from the knowl-
edge era by leapfrogging in the in-
formation age. Malaysia should,
however, be aware that there are
no universal standard solutions for
the best of the new technologies.
Malaysia has to think for itself and
take imaginative steps within its
own unique historical and geo-
graphical context and establish a
niche, as the Indians have done in
the software industry in India.
They have taken full advantage of
their proclivity for mathematics and
the vast number of highly qualified
mathematics graduates available at
inexpensive rates to create this
niche. Malaysians should emulate
this course of action.

Concerning imaginative steps,
Mauritius provides an interesting
example. It was reported that Mau-
ritius negotiated a technical break
point on a Cape Town-Penang fibre
optic cable to be sited on the island,
greatly expanding its communica-

10

3 “The Commonwealth in the Global Informa-
tion Society” by Keith Yeomans; e-mail :
kyeomans@compuserve.com

“ … innovation is not just about technology.

It is also about human beings. Forget them,

and you might as well forget everything else.”

much of the rural areas are deprived of the
benefits of modern education and technol-
ogy.

But innovation is not just about technol-
ogy. It is also about human beings. Forget
them, and you might as well forget every-
thing else. It must therefore be stressed
that the realities of the times demand busi-
nessmen and policy makers not only to fo-
cus on economic and management issues,
but also examine the implications of high-
technology on people’s lives and human-
ness. Businessmen and policy-makers

must respond to social, political,
cultural and racial shocks as well
— of which there would be no
shortage in the years ahead.

The opportunities offered by IT,
therefore, need to be distributed in
an even way. Otherwise, poverty
can lead to violence as manifested
in the anti-capitalist riots in Seattle,
London and several other places.
Such massive outbreaks can wreak
havoc on a company, even as the
economy transforms itself. These
broader issues should, therefore,
not be considered to be outside the
frame of reference of business
thinkers or policy makers.

For the K-economy to succeed,
it must also be built on old and
tested virtues — thrift, community
and pr udence. This will help
Malaysians to get a grip on the fu-
ture.

Note  :   Dr.  V.  Kanapathy  has  a Ph.D
from the University of London and is a
fellow of Harvard University. He was
the former Economic Adviser to
UMBC and one time  Senior  Economic
Adviser  to  the United Nations. He was
also for several years a member of the
Council of Economic Advisers,
Malaysian Government and the Chair-
man  of  its  Manufacturing  Sub-Com-
mittee. He fostered the first Malaysian
Think-Tank  of  which  Dato'  Seri  Dr.
Mahathir Mohammed was the Chair-
man. Dr. Kanapathy  is  currently  a
Director  of  UNI-IT  Park, Johor and
Lion Services Corporation, Melbourne,
Australia.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

Source  :  World Competitiveness Yearbook 2000
(1999 rankings are in brackets)
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The dynamics of
 DEBT  

D E B T  M A N AG E M E N T

12

Identifying Bad Debt

A
defaulting account in the hands of
a company-solicitor does not impli-
cate its ‘writing-off as bad debt’. By

the same token, overdue or slow-paying
debtors need not be written off just like
that, especially when settlement is foresee-
able in the immediate future. A good policy
should be that each debtor ought to be re-
viewed individually on its own merits.

How would one recognise the probabil-
ity of a debt turning ‘bad’? Bad debts usu-
ally hinge upon the following situations or
chain of events :

Debtor is deceased.

Debtor is a bankrupt.

Dispute has arisen from a broken
marriage and family-split or broth-
erly feud over wealth-inheritance.

Debtor in very poor financial circum-
stances due to changing external
events beyond his control.

No contact made with debtor for half
a year or more.

By J.E. Ruin

F E AT U R E

Debt management is a fascinating subject for all times,
which should concern commercial and non-commer-
cial businesses that transact in credit. J.E. Ruin ex-
plores the many facets of debt management, ranging
from unravelling the causes of poor quality debts and
factors exacerbating bad debts to identifying them and
exploring the various collection approaches.
The second of the two-part article appears in this
issue, while the first part appeared in the June 2000
issue.
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Address of debtor is unknown.

Debtor has gone interstate.

Debtor has gone overseas for a long
duration and there is no telling when
he will return.

Account has a history of collection
default.

Protracted account adjustments.

Existence of merchandise or service
complaints and these might not be
readily solvable.

Account is surrendered to the solici-
tors for legal recourse.

Prevention versus Treatment

M
anagement tend to take a deeper
interest in bad-debt recovery fig-
ures. They like to assess the

overall collection performance on these
results and take comfort in the magnitude
or absolute ringgit amounts recovered.

Paradoxically, many top management
do not exude the same awareness, nor at-
tach the same importance to prevent bad
debts from evolving. That means they pre-
fer to ‘treat’ rather than to ‘prevent’ non-
performing loans; that through time, it
could turn from doubtful to irrecoverable
and would eventually be written-off.

Proacting to (prevention) bad debt is
ensuring that it would not happen or at
least mitigating/minimising chances of it
occurring, while reacting to bad debt
(treatment) would be resorting to all sorts
of ethical and unethical means to recover
it. From a quality-management perspec-
tive, preventing (proacting) bad debt is a
superior strategy than treating bad debt.
In fact, it is always better to prevent rather

“Naturally when evaluating the applicant before his credit-line is established, the funda-

mental source of information would be to know his occupational and business biodata.”

than to cure bad debt.
While bad debt occurrence is a fact of

business-life, debts can nonetheless be
minimised by understanding the down-
to-earth concept that it is always possi-
ble for any account to turn bad. This cau-
tious enterprising attitude would engen-
der better vigilance when inspecting the
debtors’ ledgers. Another myth to un-
ravel is that there is no clear warning be-
fore an account turns bad. The only cer-
tainty is that preventive action could be
instituted to arrest the problems that
arise as a result of account receivables
becoming problematic.

Gathering Essential
Debtor’s Data

T
hese days where competition is so
stiff, maintaining a network-intelli-
gence in one’s business field or

market is paramount. It is vital for credi-
tors to have reliable sources of informa-
tion on their debtors to determine their
credit-worthiness and the magnitude of
risks they are prepared to take when
granting credit facilities.

Spurred by the fact that many debtors
change addresses without usually noti-
fying their creditors, it is useful to estab-
lish an information bureau where, in time
of need, inquiries could be made. Natu-
rally, when evaluating the applicant be-
fore his credit line is established, the fun-
damental source of information would be
to know his occupational and business
biodata. The people of today are very
mobile. It is therefore prudent to extract
as much of customers’ personal data as
one could lay a hand on, within the
realms of discretion and secrecy.

Some essential details are particulars
like full given names, spouse’s name, sur-
name, address, occupation, private/busi-
ness telephone numbers, self-employed or
salaried person, employer’s name and ad-
dress, period of employment with current
employer, bank’s name and address, name
and address of relative and or friend for re-
ferral and emergency contact, period of oc-
cupancy at current address, and status of
residence, i.e. whether renting or owning
the house/place of stay.

Bankrupted/Deceased Debtors

I
n a situation where a debtor is adjudged
a bankrupt or has passed away, there
is little to be done to expedite payments,

other than to follow the usual preliminaries.
These preliminaries are essential for a credi-
tor to assure himself the comfort that his
position as one of the preferential creditors
is secured.

Bankrupted Debtor
In a bankrupt situation, it is necessary to

lodge a proof of debt with the Official Re-
ceiver or Assignee; otherwise a creditor’s
claim would not be eligible in any distribu-
tion that eventually takes place.

Deceased Debtor
In a deceased estate, the situation is simi-

lar to that of a bankrupted debtor. A credi-
tor needs to ascertain the name of the law
firm, which handled the deceased’s admin-
istration, and a claim should be lodged ac-
cordingly. It is wise to be in touch with the
law firm and to have frequent monitoring
to find out if probate has been granted, or
to remind them of claims pending further
instructions.
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Red Flag of Bad Debts

T
o manage debtors (and bad debts)
more efficiently, it is important to
recognise the various tell-tale signs

of bad debts. Some of such forewarning
signs are :

Payments Become Irregular
Accounts which receive only partial pay-

ment need careful watching, not only be-
cause the remittance is not in compliance
with the credit terms, but also because it
forewarns that the debtor could be over-
committed. Irregular and spasmodic pay-
ment patterns are a cause for concern. The
most precarious situation is when no pay-
ment has been made for a lengthy period,
say, within four to six months after the due
date.

Mails Not Delivered and
‘Returned to Sender’

Personal contact should be attempted to
verify that the debtor still resides at his old
address on file. If mails are returned by the
postman, this is often a tell-tale sign that
the debtor’s whereabouts is now incognito,
and his new contacts or location must be
speedily ascertained.

Cheques Dishonoured
by Banks

A cheque can be dishonoured by the
bank due to many causes, but reasons like
‘insufficient funds, not arranged for, or ex-
ceeding arrangement’ is a red flag that the
debtor’s repayment capacity is now ques-
tionable. Hence, the ominous sign of po-
tential bad debt. At this stage and without
delay, personal contact ought to be made
with the debtor.

Closure of Account
When an account is in the state of ‘over-

due’ or the whereabouts of a debtor is now
unknown, the debtor should be restricted
from enjoying further credit. If he could be
contacted, written notification of credit-line
suspension should be given for record and
legal reference. Any purchasing authorisa-
tion, shopping token, credit card, cheque
book, etc that may be in the debtor’s posses-
sion should be retrieved or cancelled.

In Malaysia, banks are obliged under the
general banking practice to close a per-
son’s current account if he has continu-

ously issued three cheques that were dis-
honoured due to insufficient funds.

Change in Personal
Circumstances

If an account-holder wants an increase
in his credit line, or if there is indication
that there has been a deterioration in his
financial position, it is essential to update
the record of information in his credit file.

Example :  A person’s account had been
satisfactorily conducted for many years;
and this would earn him a ‘good credit risk’
categorisation. Notwithstanding that, a
change for the worse in his personal cir-
cumstances would naturally classify him as
‘poor credit risk’. Such changes in circum-
stances could be beyond his control.

Reading Debtor’s Mindset

I
n understanding the various debt-
dynamics or mindsets, the view by
George D. Prentice is rather profound

— “some people use one half of their op-
portunity to get into debt, and the other
half to avoid paying it”.

The ability to determine the mental dis-
position or attitude of debtors towards hon-

ouring their commitment could be a valu-
able attribute in collecting debts, especially
bad debts. e.g. where it is judged that there
is a genuine willingness of the debtor to pay
but a temporary inability of him to do so, a
great deal of unnecessary friction would be
avoided (not to mention a savings in money,
hassle, effort and time), if a more amicably
tolerant course of action is pursued.

Collection Decisions and
Debtor’s Classification

A collection decision is influenced by one
or more of the following posers :

• Will a debtor pay?

• Why won’t he pay?

• How can he be made to pay?

• When will he pay?

• How will he pay?

Debtors responses normally fall under the
following eventualities :

• He would pay when he is able.

• He strongly resisted paying.

• He would pay if pressure (e.g. duress,
coercion or undue influence) were
applied on him.
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Debt Collection Strategies

C
ollection activity begins with the
preliminary follow-up exercise to
advanced collection action pro-

grammes that include a solicitor’s letter of
demand. Debtor’s balance and especially
bad debts should be perused on a weekly
and monthly basis. Formal and regimented
collection action strategy should be
planned. This strategy ought to be applied
in a purposeful manner, very much like a
golfer playing his game :  every stroke is
meant to count and is calculated towards
achieving the ‘below par’ or birdies re-
corded in his final score card. Likewise in
a collection action plan geared to maxim-
ise recovery, it makes sense to remember
that every ringgit collected is a ringgit fully
earned and ploughed back into one’s bot-
tom-line.

Mental Attitude
In the pursuit of bad debts, the correct

mental approach often always leads one to
success in the partial or full recovery. This
mental attitude requires that satisfaction
be experienced at every successful recov-
ery of every bad debt, regardless of the
ringgit-value involved. Therefore, every
ringgit recovered is “every good ringgit
gained.”

Collection Policy
It is wise for creditors to adopt a recov-

ery mindset or collection policy that en-
compasses the following four facets :

Business ethics  Endeavouring
to upkeep cordial and good business
relations.

Effective method  Employing
the most effective and relevant col-
lection strategy.

Settling overdues  Ensuring
that arrears or overdues are settled
as fast as possible.

Economical approach  Em-
ploying the more economical and ef-
ficient collection system.

Setting a Collection Target
In their bad debt collection policy, many

creditors would incorporate some prede-
termined recovery figures or ringgit val-
ues. This target acts as an incentive to spur

up ‘irrecoverable’. The high proportion
might not be apparent during the initial
appraisal. Over time, however, it would
show as the ultimate result. Often, part-
payment is unlikely.

Settlement Possible
(40 per cent)

Even with bad debts, settlement could
still be in sight, although certain obstacles
and preliminaries need to be overcome.
Many of these obstacles could be outside
the control of the creditors. The hope for
recovery in this category is likely; more
so among the following types of bad debt
accounts :

• Deceased estate.

• Account in the hands of solicitors.

• Merchandise or service dispute.

• Address unknown.

• Divorce or husband-wife dispute.

Settlement Improbable
(remaining 10 per cent)

This last debt group comprises any situ-
ation, like when debtor’s information is
insufficient, a debtor is adjudged a bank-
rupt, imprisoned, etc implying that settle-
ment is unlikely or remote.

Collection Approaches

Persuasion/Psychology
The ‘don’t give up’ attitude and positive

mindset is very relevant here. Successful
recover y of bad debts also entails the
searching of other options for alternative
ways that a debtor could avail his partial
or full payment. What remains unstated is
virtually stronger from a psychological
point of view than from an actual declara-
tion. This is one reason why some credi-
tors are rather hesitant in resorting to ulti-
matum or threatening legal notice. A debt-
or’s psychological balance could somehow

the collecting or recovery team to aim and
work harder. Such figures could be arbi-
trarily taken, or at worst plucked from thin
air. But one sensible way to get this figure
(or targeted bad debt recovery amount)
would be to take a proportion of the gross
amount of the recent company write-off
and add 50 per cent to that. A realistic tar-
get could also be arrived at by taking the
average recovery figure over, say, the pre-
vious period’s write off and then adding
another 5-10 per cent on top of that. For
most entities, this formula infers that the
recovery target should oscillate between
45-65 per cent of the ringgit value of the
current bad debts before the next period’s
write-off.

Appraise Recovery Potential

O
nce a creditor has ascertained
the portfolio or cross-section of
his bad debts, the recovery pros-

pects of each account could be conceptu-
alised to fall into any of the four categories
in the proportions of :

Slowly recoverable (say 20 per cent).

Irrecoverable (say 30 per cent).

Settlement possible (say 40 per cent).

Settlement improbable (last 10 per
cent).

Slowly Recoverable
(20 per cent)

In this category are debtors hit by bad
times, or who were over-committed
through mismanagement of their business
affairs. If regular and adequate payments
are forthcoming, it would be prudent not
to hassle for a speedier settlement.

Irrecoverable (30 per cent)
This category would be fraud cases, or

cases where debtors have left the country
with the obvious intention to evade settle-
ment. Statistics have shown that roughly
one-third of all written-off accounts ended-

“In the pursuit of bad debts, the correct mental approach

often always leads one to success in the partial or full

recovery. This mental attitude requires that satisfaction be

experienced at every successful recovery of every bad

debt, regardless of the dollar-value involved.”

i

ii

iii
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be tilted via threats in the form of coercion,
duress or undue influence, especially from
debtors falling under the ‘settlement pos-
sible’ category.

Having said that, in reality it is always
ethical (and civilised or professional) to
generally pursue bad debt recovery by di-
rect, orthodox ways than, say, by adopting
unusual tactics like engaging the services
of bouncers or triad-members to threaten
and intimidate.

If a debtor is evasive, one psychological
option might be to create an illusion that a
third party is, or could be, involved in the
collection of the money he owes. This is
done, say, by sending the collection re-
minders to the debtor c/o his mentor or
superior; or through his associate like his
landlord, employer, office superior, or rela-
tive within the realm of secrecy and eth-
ics. Written messages, delivered personally
by phone or by cable/telegram, could be
conveyed through these associates or even
via the debtor’s neighbours. Sometimes a
personal approach of this nature triggers
that emotional reaction which in turn ca-
joles the dazed or startled debtor to an
eventual settlement (a win-win solution);
or at worst a partial payment (a half-win,
half-gain outcome).

Threats
Any form of threat given at any occasion

should not be made lightly, worse if such a
threat is not practical or possible to pur-
sue via whatever course or action.

Example :  An ultimatum might have
been given, but it then becomes apparent

Enlisting Outside Service
Outside aid that could be resorted to in-

clude the solicitors and the debt-collection
agency.

Many debtors have the notion that the
professional debt collecting agencies are
ruthless and Mafia-styled, adopting unor-
thodox collection methods. There are
some creditors that want these agencies
to continue on with the harassment and use
embarrassing tactics until finality is
reached. This partly explains why written
or verbal threats to enlist the aid of a debt
collecting agency has an immediate effect
on some of the faint-hearted and well-
meant debtors; or the so-called ‘gentlemen-
debtors’ as opposed to the ‘rogue-debtors’.

Debt Collection
Tools/Techniques

T
here are debt collection tools and
techniques to apply. A complete set
of tools and techniques to be de-

ployed and the application knowledge of
these tools are necessary requisites for
debt collectors. The ability to select the
appropriate tool/technique that would be
best suited to a particular situation/type
of debtor is important for maximum debt
collection result.

“ … it is always ethical

(and civilised or profes-

sional) to generally pursue

bad debt recovery by

direct, orthodox ways

than, say, by adopting

unusual tactics like engaging

the services of bouncers or

triad-members to threaten

and intimidate.”

that it is impractical to follow through. In
such a quandary, restraint ought to be ob-
served so as to avoid steaming-up to that
futile stage again. Sometimes, it is prob-
able to get eventual settlement by means
of a veiled threat or occasional insinuation.
In one’s debt recovery strategy, there
would be of course appropriate occasions
where it is necessary to resort to making
some sort of threat which probably could
be intended merely as a bluff-tactic in or-
der to exert pressure for the debtors to
yield.

Almost all business parties and creditors
are aware of that unwritten code of ethics
that permits them to pursue almost any
action in order to get settlement from the
debtors. This carte blance approach, how-
ever, need not include physical intimida-
tion or mental duress. Some of the other
civil alternative courses of action that are
perceived as ‘threats’ are :

• Advise a relative.

• Take legal action.

• Advise an employer.

• Take police action.

• Enlist the aid of a debt collector or a
credit-agent.
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Instruments of com-
munication and visible
contact that are com-
monly used in debt-col-
lection activities are tel-
ephone, letter, personal
contact, cable/telegram, and facsimile. A
collection letter’s effectiveness could be
considerably enhanced by the inclusion of
a self-addressed, pre-paid postage envelope
as a means to facilitate the debtor to either
pay or respond to the creditor’s request for
his (the debtor’s) latest updated informa-
tion.

One probing form of collection tool is
making personal calls. Personal contact is
an effective tool/technique as it brings
overdue matters to finality, granted that
when a debtor is confronted at work or at
home, compelling pressure is brought to
bear on him in a somewhat sensitive area.
To enhance effectiveness, personal calls
should be made at a debtor’s private ad-
dress (say, in his domestic or working sur-
rounding) where it is possible to assess his
ability or inability to pay in full or partially
over a period of time.

Collection requests made by telegrams
or cable/telex are always brief, curt and
to the point, though at times  rather vague.

“The ability to select the

appropriate tool/technique

that would be best suited to

a particular situation/type

of debtor is important for

maximal debt-collection

result.”

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

It is nevertheless often effective, much
more effective perhaps than sending re-
quests by registered mail or facsimile. Peo-
ple tend to accept that cable/telegram is
the ‘blunt-edged instrument’ of debt collec-
tion.

Telephone is still the speediest and a
rather ‘penetrating means’ of getting a col-
lection result. Telephone, especially mobile
or handphone, enables a creditor to contact
a debtor who is on the move, behind closed
doors at work, at home or even elsewhere.

Making Contact and
Success Rate

S
ome past studies on debt collection
surveys show that the success-
rate in relation to the ‘time-of-day

contact’ varies as follows :  for contacts
made during business hours, the success
rate is 50 per cent. Contacts done at night
often yielded a success rate of 80 per cent,
while those made during weekends have
up to 70 per cent success response.

Conclusion

N
owadays, it is considered normal
for people to buy products and en-
joy services in advance or through

credit. To many people, there is not much
dignity in having debt, especially unneces-
sary debts. Some religious faiths or cul-
tural beliefs even go to the extent to say
that it is morally wrong to overspend or to
owe too much and be trapped in a debt-
ridden environment.

Indeed, debts are miserable assets to ac-
quire, especially unmanaged debts. There
is reason to ponder upon, or perhaps live
on, the morals of Thomas Jefferson who
once said :  “never spend your money be-
fore you have it.” If everybody goes by
Jefferson’s dictum, there would be no need
for debt (especially bad debt) manage-
ment.

Despite this cautious and conservative
stand, doing commerce via Credit Card
(and hence the creation of debts) is, after
all, an age-old entrepreneurial practice. But
credit-granting and debt-collection must be
managed properly. At any inconvenience,
price or cost, the majority of debtors re-
main sincere and would desire to settle
their dues honourably and in the conven-
ient time and space (terms/conditions),
without resorting to legal redress and un-
ethical tactics like engaging the services
of bouncers. The win-win formula that ben-
efits both the creditor and the debtor is the
ultimate in debt management.

Note :  J.E. Ruin was a Fulbright Professional
Exchange scholar and has spent most of his 25
years of working experience in accounting, in-
ternal auditing and banking. He is a member of
MIA and also a fellow member of ACCA (UK),
and has a MSc (Business Administration) degree.
Currently, J.E. Ruin is the Chief Internal Auditor

of an established commercial bank in Malaysia.
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“Our ‘Age of Anxiety’ is,

in great part, the result

of trying to do today’s

job with yesterday’s

tools – with yesterday’s

concepts.”

~ Marshall McLuhan ~

 N E W  M A N U FAC T U R I N G  T E C H N O L O G Y  I N V E S T M E N T

F E AT U R E
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Introduction

In the past, products normally had
a long manufacturing life, and
hence companies with high volume
products would tend to invest in a
new plant and dispose of the plant

at the end of the product life cycle. Today,
however, product life cycles are becoming
increasingly shorter. For this reason, Ad-
vanced Manufacturing Technology (AMT)
is appropriate to cater for several products
simultaneously, and the conventional in-
vestment appraisal techniques can no
longer be applied.

AMT is a manufacturing technology that
has developed in recent years with the pri-
mary objective to optimise production.
AMT equipment offers a wide range of at-
tractive advantages over conventional tech-
nologies; they include speedy response to
design, manufacturing changes, reduced
lead-times, flexibility to change production

Age of Anxiety
for New Manufacturing Technology
Investment Appraisal

By M.C. Leong
BUSINESS AND ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY CENTRE (BATC),
UNIVERSITI TEKNOLOGI MALAYSIA, KUALA LUMPUR

T A B L E  1

BENEFITS Robotics NC FMS CAD/CAM MRP-II

LABOUR SAVINGS
Direct labour savings
Indirect labour savings
Reduced training costs
Reduced absenteeism costs
Reduced recruitment costs
Improved morale costs
IMPROVED QUALITY CONTROL
Reduced Scrap costs
Reduced rework costs
Reduced warranty costs
Improved market share costs
REDUCED INVENTORY
Reduced work-in-progress costs
Reduced inventory costs
Reduced design lead time costs
Reduced future capital costs
Reduced non-productive time costs
Reduced floor space requirements costs
REDUCED OPERATING COSTS
Reduced fixture costs
Reduced paperwork costs
Reduced set-up time costs
Reduced product changeover costs
Reduced tooling costs
Reduced overhead costs
Reduced materials used costs
Reduced productivity costs
INCREASES SALES FROM :
Improved product quality
Reliable delivery
Speedy product introduction
Design flexibility

Reduced manufacturing lead time

AMT Investment Benefits Checklist
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Robotics Benefits Checklist, Monetary Gains and Rationale
T A B L E  2

19

and production of small batches economi-
cally, and enhanced capability.

AMT also helps in cost reduction for the
manufacturer by reducing the costs asso-
ciated with people. There are essentially
two types of benefits derived from AMT
which help in the reduction of costs; they
are tangible and intangible benefits and
they are interrelated with each other.

The tangible benefits are benefits which
can be quantified in monetary value such
as labour cost savings. Intangible benefits
are benefits that are not easily quantified
in monetary value. Examples of intangible
benefits are :

Improved quality :   Enables the re-
duction of scrap, rework and warranty
costs; and improves market share.

Increased sales :  Sales increase be-
cause of improved quality, improved inven-
tory control, ability to meet high output de-
mands, improved customer lead times,
improved machine utilisation and ef fi-
ciency, and improved customer image.

Production savings :  Space and as-
set savings by reduced Work-in-Progress
(WIP); better super vision utilisation
through less routine administration.

No Clear Road Yet
The nature of AMT often makes it hard

to measure the tangible and intangible ben-
efits. It gets even more difficult when con-
sidering the effect of AMT implementation
on the whole company, including its busi-
ness processes and people. But one thing
is certain, if AMT is implemented correctly,
it will yield a big gain in both benefits.

Table 1 shows a checklist of benefits
from implementing AMT. Some AMT in-
vestments considered here are Robotics,
Numerical Control (NC), Flexible Manu-
facturing System (FMS), Computer Aided
Design & Manufacture (CAD/CAM) and
Materials Requirements Planning (MRP-
II). The number of benefits derivable is
enormous if one were to consider the im-
pact AMT has on the company as a whole.

 Wherever AMT is implemented, the re-
sult of the traditional relationship between
plant life and product life does not exist any
longer. Hence, the company’s costing sys-
tem has to change, so that capital and as-
sociated running costs can be allocated
across a range of products. This means

 Monetary Gains to
Tangible & Intangible Benefits Robotics Tangibles/ Intangibles*

(annually) RM
Labour Savings
Direct Labour Savings ✔ 24,000
Indirect Labour Savings ✔ 12,000
Reduced Training Costs ✔   6,000
Reduced Staff Absenteeism Costs ✔         800 *
Reduced Staff Recruitment Costs ✔      1,000 *
Improved Staff Morale Costs ✔         800 *
Rationale
• Fewer staff are needed to administer robots.
• Robotics require minimal supervision and maintenance work (reliable and has
    high service level).
• Training to the essential few staff.
• Staff absenteeism has minimal effect to the running of robotics.
• Extra staff can be moved to other functions.
• Staff has lesser workload (contributes to improved staff morale).
Improved quality control
Reduced Non-performing/Scrap Costs ✔      2,000 *
Reduced Rework Costs ✔      5,000 *
Reduced Warranty Costs ✔    10,000 *
Improved Market Share Costs ✔    25,000 *
Rationale
• Minimal wastage & lesser incidence of defective products.
• Minimal rework to correct defective products.
• Minimal customer claims for warranty repairs & replacements.
• Indirectly increasing market share through good customer perception of quality

       & innovative products.
Reduced Inventory Costs
Reduced Future Capital Costs ✔    12,000 *
Reduced Floor Space Requirements Costs ✔      5,000 *
Rationale
• Robotics are mostly one-time capital investment with no further major purchases.
• Robotics take minimal work floor space.
Reduced Operating Costs
Reduced Fixtures Costs ✔ 10,000
Reduced Set-up Time Costs ✔ 15,000
Reduced Product Change-over Costs ✔ 20,000
Reduced Tooling Costs ✔ 50,000
Reduced Overhead Costs ✔ 15,000
Reduced Materials Used Costs
(less material wastage) ✔ 25,000
Improved Productivity Costs ✔  100,000 *
Rationale
• Due to the elimination of manual labour to set-up machines in favour of robotics
   — operating costs will reduce dramatically.
Increased Sales From
Improved Product Quality ✔  150,000 *
Rationale
• Robotics can help improve product quality because this technology helps speed
    time to market, improves product availability & product reliability & improves
    customer perception.
AMOUNT OF TANGIBLE SAVINGS
GENERATED from these Initiatives                                   152,600
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investment appraisal techniques for AMT projects need to be modified to suit the cost-
ing system or alternatively, new appraisal techniques need to be developed.

In contrast, as in the case of Information Technology investments, the relationship
between technology lifespan and usage lifespan does not exist any longer. This means
that technology lifespan can be shorter than the actual work life (usage lifespan) be-
cause of fast technology obsolesce.

Example of Tangible and Intangible Benefits
We shall use the robotic technology as an example. The reduction of costs is derived

from actual or perceived cost reduction when manual operations are replaced by robotic
technology (see Table 2 p. 19).

AMT Investment Appraisal Techniques
Cash flows are the inflows and outflows of cash. Figure 1 shows the components of

cash flow, embedding non-cash flows of inflation and depreciation. In AMT investments,

there is always an element of risk on how
well the investments perform and make fi-
nancial returns. As such, AMT investment
appraisal techniques must consider the
risk.

The discount rate is a rate, which takes
into account the sources of capital, cost of
capital and risk. The inclusion of risk can be
included into the discount rate, more com-
monly known as the risk-adjusted discount.

Intangible benefits can be quantified.
The view is that intangible benefits derived
can be assigned as monetary units if an
analysis is carried out throughout the com-
pany to identify how much money is lost if
AMT is not implemented. However, it is
never easy to attempt to quantify intangi-
bles.

Conventional techniques of appraisal are
incompatible with the appraisal of AMT in-
vestments, and hence the introduction of
more realistic appraisal techniques is fa-
voured. Figure 2 shows the continuum of
appraisal techniques as provided by
Meredith and Suresh.

The economic appraisal techniques are
the conventional appraisal techniques,
namely, the payback method, Return on
Investment (ROI), Internal Rate of Return
(IRR) and Net Present Value (NPV). Ana-
lytic and strategic approaches are more
geared towards justifying investments
which often are not historically important
and are used to justify projects which of-
fer several intangible or at least indirect
benefits like high-technology projects.

Analytic Techniques
Analytic techniques are used where

project appraisal is required, but more com-
plex or uncertain information is available
than that used within economic techniques.
These techniques are intended to supple-
ment economic models and not replace
them. These techniques, applications and
disadvantages are as follows :

Value Analysis

This approach is essentially a feasibility
or prototyping study that closely appraises
a particular project and explores both quali-
tative and quantitative aspects in detail.
Hence, it is useful where attempts are be-
ing made to assess the merits of proposed
but untried projects. It is also time-consum-

F I G U R E  1

F I G U R E  2

Components of Cash Flow

Continuum of Appraisal Techniques (Meredith and Suresh)

CASH FLOW

Returns
(inflows)

Capital
Expenditures

(outflows)

Working
Capital

Taxation Loans
Capital

allowances
& tax relief

Scrap
value

Revenue
from
sales

Machine
resale
value

Intangible
benefits

• Machine purchases
• Raw material purchases
• Direct costs
• Indirect costs
• Other fixed costs

• New machine purchases
• Research & development
• Financing methods
• Depreciation
• Dividends payable

• Increased sales (profits)
• Reduced inventory costs
• Reduced operating costs

Value
analysis

Portfolio
analysis

Analytic

JUSTIFICATION APPROACHES

StrategicEconomic

Risk
analysis

Non-numeric Scoring Programming

• Payback
• ROI
• IRR
• NPV

• Technical importance
• Business objectives
• Competitive advantage
• Research & development
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Tangible Portion of NPV Analysis on
Robotic Technology Investment

T A B L E  3

21

ing and not always practically viable to se-
lect and rank many projects.

Portfolio Analysis

The objective of this analysis is to pro-
vide assistance in choosing the optimum
project from quantitative and qualitative
non-economic information. There exists
three sub-models, i.e. non-numeric, scor-
ing and programming models.

The non-numeric model justifies on
bases other than the usual trade-offs be-
tween costs and benefits. Scoring model
measures the factors that can be quantita-
tively appraised, including inherently
unquantitative factors. This model may be
weighted or unweighted depending if fac-
tors need emphasising. The programming
model is an extension to the scoring model
in that this model formulates the scoring
model into linear, integer, dynamic or goal
programmes with the assigned weights.

Risk Analysis

This analysis deals with the application
of simulation techniques to projects to test
and compare their risk element. It also aids
management in recognising all the factors
that can enhance or jeopardise the even-
tual outcome of the projects. These out-
comes are measured as probability distri-
butions over the full range of possible out-
comes rather than single expected values.
Moreover, risk analysis can be used to sup-
plement with stochastic dominance to
eliminate inferior policies and less desir-
able investment alternatives.

Strategic Techniques
This approach is less technical and is

used frequently with the previous two tech-
niques to make an essential contribution
to the strategic goals of the firm. This ap-
proach considers the following :

Technical Importance

This involves the justification under the concept of technical importance, implying
that the selected project is a prerequisite for an important follow-on activity, even though
this may not be beneficial economically.

Business Objectives

There is a need to have an attempt to achieve and verify the attainment of strategic
business objectives, and to measure when the firm is losing control in these areas and
when efforts need to be intensified.

Competitive Advantage

Opportunities which yield significant advantage over the competitors should not be
ignored but this situation should be allowed to occur frequently.

Research and Development (R&D)

A project may be tested as an R&D investment if the possibility of failure is accepted,
but the strategic impact of success justifies this risk. Hence, many R&D projects should
be required and justified in order for one significant breakthrough to be achieved.

Example of Justifying a Robotic Technology Investment
If the cost of robotic technology investment amounts to RM800,000 (capital out-

lay) and RM48,000 (yearly maintenance fee), we can arrive at a spreadsheet calcula-
tion (ignoring intangible monetary gains) as shown in Table 3.

We shall assume that all inflow costs remain the same over the five years, and that
the technology is amortised over a five-year technology lifespan. The NPV discount
rate is 10 per cent — a reasonable rate incorporating an inflation rate of four per
cent and finance interest rate of six per cent per annum

PVn = Sn /(1+k)n

where PVn is the present value of net cash receipt, Sn at the end of year n. k is the
discount rate.

Description Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Cash Outflow

Capital Outlay 800,000

Maintenance   48,000   48,000   48,000   48,000   48,000

Total Outflow 848,000   48,000   48,000   48,000   48,000

PV Outflow 770,909 39,669 36,063 32,785 29,804

Cash Inflow

Labour Savings   36,000   36,000   36,000   36,000   36,000

Training Cost Savings    6,000    6,000    6,000    6,000    6,000

Reduced Operating Costs 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000

Total Inflow 177,000 177,000 177,000 177,000 177,000

PV Inflow 160,909 146,281 132,983 120,893 109,903

NPV = Total PV Inflow – Total PV Outflow = 670,969 – 909,230= -238,261
Conclusion :  Technology investment is not attractive.

“Opportunities which yield

significant advantage over the

competitors should not be

ignored but this situation

should be allowed to occur

frequently.”
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Modified Approach to AMT
Investment Appraisal

The author’s approach to the appraisal
procedures is illustrated by the flowchart
in Figure 3. The flowchart isolates the tan-
gible and intangible benefits of a project.
The idea behind this is that if the tangible
benefits outweigh the capital investment
under a predetermined payback period
and/or risk, this project is accepted.

However, if it is rejected, we need to de-
termine why is it so. Is it because most
benefits are intangibles? Therefore, there
is a need to analyse the intangibles with
the appropriate appraisal techniques later,
as described in the flowchar t. If the
project is seen profitable after this analy-
sis, this project can be accepted; other-
wise it has to be reassessed or rejected
completely.

Assigning monetary values to intangible
benefits is not easy if the appraiser has no
knowledge how AMT affects the whole
organisation. It is highly recommended
that the appraiser seeks help from knowl-
edgeable AMT practitioners and manufac-
turing consultants. Successful AMT imple-
mentations in the past and from other com-
panies can help to recognise intangibles,
and their interaction to the total manage-
ment of the manufacturing company. Then,
an appreciation of the monetary value to
each intangible can be obtained together
with the uncertainties and risks involved
in AMT investments.

Realising a negative NPV return on investment if one were to consider just the tangi-
ble benefits, we then pursue an extended analysis by taking into account the intangible
benefits portion. We shall use the author’s methodology depicted in Figure 3.

The rationale posed in Table 2 is actually a combination of analytic and strategic
employed techniques as purported by Meredith and Suresh. We shall know the rationale
of assigning monetary gains to the intangibles (marked with an asterisk*), which aims
to reflect as accurately as possible the expected gains. The users of the technology who
know best the expected returns from the robotic technology assign these monetary
gains.

Inserting these new figures into a NPV analysis again as in Table 4 may yield an
attractive contribution, realistically justifying the technology investment. If otherwise,
the robotic technology should not be acquired for whatever reasons.

We are assuming here that the tangible and intangible inflow costs are the same over
the five years.

Description Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Cash Outflow

Capital Outlay 800,000

Maintenance 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000

Total Outflow 848,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000

PV Outflow 770,909 39,669 36,063 32,785 29,804

Tangible Inflow

Labour Savings 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000 36,000

Training Cost Savings 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000

Reduced Operating Costs 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000

Intangible Inflow

Reduced Staff
Absenteeism Costs 800 800 800 800 800

Reduced Staff
Recruitment Costs 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Improved Staff Morale Costs 800 800 800 800 800

Reduced Non-performing Costs 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Reduced Rework Costs 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Reduced Warranty Costs 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Improved Market Share Costs 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

Reduced Future Capital Costs 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

Reduced Floor Space
Requirements Costs 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Improved Productivity Costs 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Improved Product Quality 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000

Total Inflow 488,600 488,600 488,600 488,600 488,600

PV Inflow 444,182 403,802 367,092 333,720 303,382

NPV = Total PV Inflow – Total PV Outflow = 1,852,178 - 909,230 = 942,948
Conclusion :  Technology investment is attractive.

Tangible and Intangible NPV Analysis
on Robotic Technology Investment

T A B L E  4
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Improve INternal  

Is Activity-Based Costing (ABC)
worth the cost? Many companies
adopting the ABC report have an
improved understanding of both
product and customer profitabil-

ity, but others have become disenchanted
with the effort required and have questioned
whether ABC meets a cost-benefit criterion
because of the substantial effort required to
recast the general ledger into the activities
of the organisation and the necessity to main-
tain a dual reporting system.

Eli Goldratt, the author of The Goal, is
one of the critics of ABC as he continues
to minimise the value of activity-based cost-
ing and argue for his theory of constraints
(TOC) approach to managerial decision-
making. Under the standard TOC ap-
proach of managerial reporting, direct
material is treated as a variable cost and
all other manufacturing costs are assumed
fixed.1,2 Furthermore, Goldratt deems it
meaningless and misleading to allocate any
fixed costs to individual products. Rather,
he uses the throughput margin per unit of
constraining resource to guide product
pricing and investment decisions.

The TOC approach requires far less data

and effort than ABC and is far easier to
implement and operate. On the other
hand, ABC proponents argue that the
TOC approach does not provide sufficient
information to guide management deci-
sions. The logical quer y, therefore, is
whether ABC is worth the cost or whether
the TOC approach will suffice. Using the
spirits industry as an example, let’s com-
pare the TOC approach with ABC and see
if an integration of the two approaches
might be an optimum solution to resolve
this argument.

A KENTUCKY DISTILLERY
Located in scenic central Kentucky, Old

Bloomfield Distillery manufactures a six-
year-old 90 proof bourbon under the dis-
tillery name. In addition to the bourbon,
Old Bloomfield produces an 80 proof gin
and a similar vodka. The company is ficti-
tious but is representative of many firms
in the distillery industry. The existing re-
porting system provides a traditional ab-
sorption costing income statement (see
Table 1) where overhead is applied to pro-
duction based on material consumption.
Although direct labour is traced directly
to the product lines, management is cog-
nisant that the tracing is highly inaccurate
due to the shifting of workers among the
three products and the utilisation of com-
mon facilities. The products are marketed
through wholesale distributors via a sales
force that works totally on a five per cent
commission basis. The remaining selling
and administrative costs are allocated to
the product lines based on sales dollars.
Old Bloomfield’s inventories do not vary
significantly from year to year.

I N T E R N A L  R E P O R T I N G

F E AT U R E

Integration of these two cost accounting tools offer better
answers to the question, “Is the bottom line profitable for both
product and customer?”

Old Bloomfield Income Statement Under
Traditional Absorption Costing (US$ ’000)

T A B L E  1

1 Eric Noreen, Debra Smith, and James T.
Mackey, The Theory of Constraints And Its
Implications for Management Accounting, The
North River Press, 1995, P.O. Box 567, Great
Barrington, Mass., p. xxiv.

2 Eliyahu M. Goldratt and Jeff Cox, The Goal,
2nd revised ed., North River Press, Croton-
on-Hudson, N.Y.
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Bourbon Gin Vodka Total

Sales $105,000 $39,000 $36,000 $180,000

Materials $31,500 $11,000 $11,750 $54,250

Labour 11,000 3,600 3,050 17,650

Production Overhead 37,800 13,200 14,100 65,100

Cost of Sales $80,300 $27,800 $28,900 $137,000

Gross Margin $24,700 $11,200 $7,100 $43,000

Advertising $3,000 $1,500 $1,400 $5,900

Commissions 5,250 1,950 1,800 9,000

Marketing — Other 5,221 1,939 1,790 8,950

Administrative 7,263 2,697 2,490 12,450

Total Expenses $20,734 $8,086 $7,480 $36,300

Operating Income $3,966 $3,114 ($380) $6,700

Total Gallons 30,000 15,000 14,000

Total Cost (Material, Labour, $101,034 $35,886 $36,360

 
 Overhead, Gen. and Admin.)

Cost/Gallon $3.37 $2.39 $2.60
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The problem with Table 1 is that we are
not quite certain what the results indicate.
It is questionable to spread the overhead
over the product lines employing the ma-
terial costs because material consumption
may not indicate the overhead resources
being consumed by the product lines. Fur-
thermore, it is spurious to allocate the
other marketing and administrative cost
based on sales dollars. The Goldratt school
contends that it is meaningless to allocate
any fixed costs to individual products. ABC
purists, on the other hand, demand activi-
ties and drivers in order to rationally drive
all the costs to the cost objects including
the facility-level activities.

THE STANDARD TOC APPROACH
The standard TOC approach, illustrated

in Table 2, captures a phenomenon that

is often misunderstood. There are truly few
variable costs left in complex companies.
Those companies that have undergone
substantial downsizing, for example, do not
contemplate sales deteriorating as a result
of a reduction in labor. While engineering
specifications for direct labour can be de-
termined easily enough from labor routing
slips, the real world is not that neat. In es-
sence, the relative amount of variable cost
in today’s environment is fast eroding and
being replaced by step-fixed costs.

When costs are fixed, allocation to indi-
vidual products is extremely misleading
because it implies that changing product
volumes will result in changed costs.
Goldratt’s theory of constraints handles
this problem by ignoring allocated costs
and concentrating on global measures.
Specifically, Goldratt seeks to maximise

throughput subject to marketing or pro-
duction constraints while minimising in-
ventories and other costs. For pricing de-
cisions, Goldratt argues that the selling
price for a product should be determined
from the market not from marking up an
arbitrarily allocated product cost. To in-
crease throughput, however, the price
charged should at least cover all out-of-
pocket variable expenses plus the oppor-
tunity cost for using constraint resources.3

When materials are the only variable costs
and there is no internal constraint, any sale
in which revenue exceeds the material cost
will increase the throughput (and short-
term profit) of the organisation. Thus,
while traditional absorption costing would
argue that bourbon costs US$3.37/gallon,
the standard TOC approach would con-
sider any deal with a sales price in excess
of US$1.05/gallon.

Though the material cost per unit of
product provides a floor on an acceptable
sales price, great caution must be exer-
cised to use this number in pricing deci-
sions. There are two major reasons for this.
First, although a price that is slightly above
the material cost will increase throughput
in the short term, the firm must cover all
costs — fixed and variable — to survive in

Standard TOC Approach (US$ ’000)T A B L E  2

Note :  Under TOC, the price charged should at least cover all out-of-pocket variable expenses, plus
the opportunity cost for using the constraint resource. If there is no internal constraint, the oppor-
tunity cost is zero. Thus, if materials are assumed to be the only variable cost, any price that ex-
ceeds the cost per gallon above will increase the throughput of the organisation.

          (in thousands) Bourbon Gin Vodka Total

Sales $105,000 $39,000 $36,000 $180,000

Materials 31,500 11,000 11,750 54,250

Net Throughput $73,500 $28,000 $24,250 $125,750

Labour $17,650

Production Overhead 65,100

Advertising 5,900

Commissions 9,000

Marketing — Other 8,950

Administrative 12,450

Total Expenses $119,050

Operating Income $6,700

Total Gallons 30,000 15,000 14,000

Net Throughput/Gallons $2.45 $1.87 $1.73

Material Cost/Gallon $1.05 $0.73 $0.84

3 Eliyahu M. Goldratt and Robert Fox, Chap-
ter 4, “The Importance of a Systems Con-
straint,” The Theory of Constraints Journal,
February 1989, pp. 5-7.
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ABC and TOC
“For pricing decisions, Goldratt

argues that the selling price for

a product should be determined

from the market not from

marking up an arbitrarily

allocated product cost.”
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the long run. Second, competitors will res-
pond to significant changes in a firm’s pric-
ing strategy. A metal-cutting company de-
scribed by Noreen4 initially used the
throughput approach for making substan-
tial price cuts on certain standard products.
At first it was swamped with orders, but
competitors eventually lowered their prices
as well, and everyone in the industr y
wound up worse than before. The company
no longer tinkers with prices on standard
products; basically they are set in a com-
petitive market. Pricing discretion based
on throughput arguments is now reserved
for specials.

To avoid the latter
problem, Goldratt
advocates entering
new markets to de-
velop independent
market segments.
For example, Old
Bloomfield might
develop a South
American outlet for
its products. Pricing decisions in this mar-
ket segment should have no impact upon
its North American sales. In this scenario,
pricing decisions in North America would
be based on competitive pressures, while
throughput pricing would be used to dis-
pose of short-term excess capacity through
the South American outlets. This strategy
would increase short-term profitability
without changing the competitive balance
in Old Bloomfield’s primary market.

In ABC, a great amount of work is re-
quired to record all material, labor, and
overhead expenses and to trace and allo-
cate these costs to individual products.
Because a standard TOC system assumes
that material is the only variable cost, TOC
systems can be much simpler and easier
to implement than ABC. Unfortunately, for
many companies, the assumption that ma-
terials are the only direct cost is simply not
true. For example, the authors met with
one of the Mead Corporation’s units to ex-
plore the viability of initiating ABC. Mead’s
dilemma centered upon the fact that cus-
tomers often desired service immediately
in order to consummate the sale. Mead
knew that throughput was being enhanced
by providing this service, but they also

knew that other expenses were being in-
creased in order to generate the additional
throughput. Because Mead was using tra-
ditional absorption costing, its accounting
system could not tell the magnitude of
these additional costs. Providing detailed
answers for questions like this is a primary
rationale for ABC.

ACTIVITY-BASED COSTING (ABC)
In contrast to TOC, the ABC approach

assigns all costs, fixed and variable, to spe-
cific products. ABC is a difficult process
that entails describing what a company
does as opposed to functional classification

by depar tment.
This process of re-
casting a compa-
ny’s general ledger
into activities is
where companies
normally question
the ef ficacy of
ABC. Once this
“first stage” is ac-

complished, the assignment of activity
costs to cost objects is relatively simple and
is accomplished by using activity drivers.

These activity drivers are normally unit-
level activities such as labelling hours,
batch-level activities such as setups, and
product-level activities such as engineer-
ing change notices. Facility level activities

such as the depreciation on the plant and
warehouse normally necessitate an arbi-
trary driver for allocating costs. This is why
some companies such as Dayton Technol-
ogy do not drive costs of facility-level ac-
tivities to cost objects.

Companies such as Harley Davidson and
Procter & Gamble have discovered that it
is not worthwhile to attempt to trace direct
labour costs to cost objects because of the
administrative costs involved. As a result,
many companies employing ABC actually
will drive both their labour and overhead
costs to their cost objects with activity driv-
ers. Accordingly, the cost of sales in many
ABC companies now consists of only two
components — material and overhead. The
overhead costs (actually all labour plus tra-
ditional overhead) are traced to specific
activities and then driven to the cost ob-
jects. In the distillery, for example, the fol-
lowing activities and their drivers could be
employed to drive the labour and overhead
to the income statement :

       Activity           Activity Driver

Material procurement Number of purchase

   orders

Making Number of setups

Bottling Number of cases

Facility activities Divided equally

Shipping Orders shipped

ABC — Production only (US$ ’000)T A B L E  3

Bourbon Gin Vodka Total

Sales $105,000 $39,000 $36,000 $180,000

Materials $31,500 $11,000 $11,750 $54,250

Production Overhead 46,900 17,700 18,150 82,750

Cost of Sales $78,400 $28,700 $29,900 $137,000

Gross Margin $26,600 $10,300 $6,100 $43,000

Advertising $3,000 $1,500 $1,400 $5,900

Commissions 5,250 1,950 1,800 9,000

Marketing — Other 5,221 1,939 1,790 8,950

Administrative 7,263 2,697 2,490 12,450

Total Expenses $20,734 $8,086 $7,480 $36,300

Operating Income $5,866 $2,214 ($1,380) $6,700

Total Gallons 30,000 15,000 14,000

Total Cost (Material, Labour, $99,134 $36,786 $37,360

 
 Overhead, Gen. and Admin.)

Cost/Gallon $3.30 $2.45 $2.67
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4 Noreen, p. 17.

In ABC, a great amount of

work is required to record all

material, labor, and overhead

expenses and to trace and

allocate these costs to

individual products.
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In ABC analysis, the normal outcome is
that high-volume products and customers
appear more profitable while the lower
volume products appear less profitable as
a result of true demand placed on company
activities. This situation is manifested in
the liquor industry example when one
switches from the allocation of overhead
by material consumption and no longer
traces the direct labour costs. In material
procurement, for example, large orders of
corn are made on one purchase order,
which reduces relatively the material pro-
curement costs charged to the bourbon.
Similarly, larger quantities of bourbon are
produced with each setup, which reduces
the making costs charged to bourbon. A
similar analysis holds for the shipping ac-
tivity because larger quantities of bourbon
are shipped with each order than with
vodka or gin. Finally, the facility-level costs
in Table 3 are spread evenly rather than
on the basis of material consumption.

The net result of these activities is that
ABC attributes a higher operating income
to bourbon compared to traditional absorp-
tion costing numbers, while the gin and
vodka lines look less profitable. At the per
unit level, ABC’s detailed calculations of
the cost of bourbon yield $3.30/gallon com-
pared to $3.37 under traditional absorption
costing. In contrast, the estimated cost of
vodka increases from $2.60 to $2.67 under

ABC. In most organisations, ABC is applied
in the manufacturing area only and not in
marketing, engineering, or other areas as
illustrated in Table 3. While there is no
logical rationale for this emphasis, the
manufacturing arena is where most of the
ABC implementation has taken place.
More precise costing can be obtained by
applying ABC in the nonmanufacturing
areas as well as manufacturing.

The authors recently worked on an ABC
analysis in the marketing and administra-
tive area for Motoman, a company that dis-
tributes robots manufactured in Japan. The
standard line of robots was shipped directly
to American customers without alteration
by the company. The nonstandard line was
altered prior to shipment to meet specific
customer requirements. The selling and
administrative costs had been allocated to
the product lines basically employing book-
ing dollars. In the ABC analysis, we em-
ployed a variety of drivers including
number of proposals, number of bookings,
and the number of customers. Not surpris-
ingly, the standard line of robots appeared
much more profitable under the ABC
analysis than it had been under the tradi-
tional reporting system. As we will see
below, the extension of ABC into the mar-
keting and administrative arenas of Old
Bloomfield provides similar results.

Even when nonmanufacturing areas are

ignored, ABC can provide important im-
provements in management information.
When bourbon began to lose market share
in the spirits industry, bourbon producers
initially turned to special orders as a way
of combating the decline. The bourbon in-
dustry went so far as to permit an indi-
vidual to order several cases at a premium
price with an individual’s name on it. The
label on the bottles would read “Bottled
Exclusively for John Doe.” ABC analysis,
however, would show that the ordering,
labelling, and collection costs were not be-
ing captured adequately by the existing
accounting system for these special orders.
This type of scenario is confronted rou-
tinely in industry and provides a strong
rationale for ABC. An NCR employee, for
example, recently related to us a situation
in which his unit had to incur additional
labour costs on a special order on which
he was bidding. The accounting depart-
ment, however, mandated that he also add
overhead at the traditional high rate de-
spite vehement protestations that little ad-
ditional overhead was to be incurred. As a
result of too high a bid, NCR did not ob-
tain the special order.

These scenarios provide anecdotal evi-
dence that many companies face cost struc-
tures that are more complicated than that
assumed in the standard TOC approach.
We believe that TOC concepts can be com-
bined with ABC to provide significant im-
provements to current practice without the
massive effort required in a full-blown ABC
implementation.

AN INTEGRATION
An integration of the TOC and ABC ap-

proaches is illustrated in Table 4. In addi-
tion to materials, this approach also would
capture all significant variable costs to ar-
rive at a net throughput contribution. Simi-
lar to Goldratt, our experience has been
that fewer and fewer costs are truly vari-
able but rather are stepfixed costs (labour),
discretionary fixed costs (advertising), or
purely fixed (building depreciation). Some
organisations may have significant variable
costs in energy, freight, or other product-
level activities, but we are sceptical of or-
ganisations that maintain they can identify
large amounts of variable costs and believe
that such attempts do not meet a cost-
benefit criterion.

TOC and ABC Production,
Marketing and Administrative (US$ ’000)

T A B L E  4

Bourbon Gin Vodka Total

Sales $105,000 $39,000 $36,000 $180,000

Materials $31,500 $11,000 $11,750 $54,250

Commissions 5,250 1,950 1,800 9,000

Net Throughput $68,250 $26,050 $22,450 $116,750

Advertising — Direct $3,000 $1,500 $1,400 $5,900

Contribution to Indirect Activities $65,250 $24,550 $21,050 $110,850

Marketing — Other 4,471 2,339 2,140 8,950

Administrative 6,163 3,247 3,040 12,450

Production Overhead $46,900 $17,700 $18,150 $82,750

Operating Income $7,716 $1,264 ($2,280) $6,700

Total Gallons 30,000 15,000 14,000

Net Throughput/Gallons $2.28 $1.74 $1.60

Variable Cost/Gallon $1.23 $0.86 $0.97

 
 (Material and Commission)

ABC Cost/Gallon $3.24 $2.52 $2.73

27



Akauntan Nasional July 2000

At Old Bloomfield, sales commissions
are significant variable costs, and we would
subtract these costs to arrive at the net
throughput by product line and the vari-
able cost per gallon. This exercise provides
a more accurate estimate of the product
contribution margin than the traditional
TOC approach and can be used to answer
cost-volume-profit (CVP) queries.

After the contribution margin is identi-
fied, we would segregate the remainder of
the costs into direct and indirect fixed
costs. Direct fixed costs can be traced to
the cost objects and identified with the
objects. In our example, Old Bloomfield
does no generic advertising but advertises
the three product lines independently.
These discretionary fixed costs can be
identified with the product line and after
they are subtracted will provide an organi-
sation a numerical rationale for determin-
ing whether a par ticular product line
should be dropped or retained.

Under the standard TOC approach, or-
ganisations would never drop a product
line that covered its raw material — and
constraint opportunity costs. On the other
hand, because traditional ABC allocates all
costs to products, both fixed and variable,
it may drop product lines that should be
retained. Under the combined approach,
the contribution to indirect activities
amount would indicate the reduction of
indirect activity expenditures that would
have to take place in order to justify drop-
ping the product line. For example, drop-
ping the vodka line in Table 4 would have
to save over US$21 million to enhance prof-
itability for Old Bloomfield.

At this point, we have identified all sig-
nificant costs that vary at the product or
product line levels and differentiated be-
tween direct and indirect fixed costs. We
then advocate allocating the remaining in-
direct fixed costs to cost objects employ-
ing the traditional ABC approach. This is
to provide a full-absorption product cost to
aid in pricing and other decisions. One of
the purposes of this number is to help esti-
mate what the companies’ competitors will
be quoting on the same job and to mini-
mise underpricing of product lines. The
management of a pump manufacturer in
our area, for example, stated that its
salesforce had great success in selling a
specialised product. A closer examination

of the costing system indicated that the
pump was being undervalued and corre-
spondingly underpriced and the marketing
success stemmed from an inappropriate
pricing decision. ABC, in conjunction with
TOC analysis, will minimise these types of
erroneous decisions and do a better job of
identifying profitable as well as unprofit-
able products and customers than either
an ABC system, TOC system, or traditional
costing systems.

MARRYING ABC AND TOC
ABC advocates normally deride the

Goldratt throughput approach as a con-
tribution margin approach and make no
attempt to segregate costs into variable
and fixed components. Furthermore, they
normally do not address the distinction
between those fixed costs that can be
identified with cost objects and those that
must be arbitrarily allocated. Under our
proposal, we provide a more accurate es-
timate of truly variable costs than the
materials-only assumption of standard
TOC and address the distinction between
direct and indirect fixed costs. Specifi-
cally, we would identify all direct fixed

28

costs with the product line, e.g., advertis-
ing in our example. We would then use
ABC for all significant indirect fixed costs,
not just those in manufacturing, and we
would drive these costs to the appropri-
ate product or product-line levels using
activity drivers. The pool of indirect costs
to be allocated would be much smaller
under our proposal than under standard
ABC. In summary, the proposed integra-
tion requires less effort than a traditional
ABC implementation and provides more
information than the standard TOC ap-
proach. This integration permits us to an-
swer traditional cost-volume-profit ques-
tions, facilitates the evaluation of profit-
able product lines, and better answers the
question of “bottom line profitability” by
product and customer.

This article first appeared in Manage-
ment Accounting; name changed to Strate-
gic Finance, March 1999 (published by the
Institute of Management Accountants,
USA) in November 1998. Reprinted with
permission.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○
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W 
e have entered into this

new millennium with

the challenges of global-

isation beckoning at us.

Indeed we cannot ignore the new global

order: with the democracy of a free mar-

ket system, but laced with the rules of com-

petitiveness and transparency. In life, it is

important that we face up to the challenges

of change, with a positive attitude.

Attitude is the key to success — not

skills, knowledge or education — but Atti-

tude, a positive Attitude. Just as we differ-

entiate an optimist from a pessimist by the

way he or she describes a glass of water :

that it is half-full or that it is half-empty.

The essence of achievement is

to meet a challenge by not only

completing the job but by com-

pleting the job well. Then we will

come out with a feeling that we

have done our very best. That in

itself is success.

When I was a teenager, a well-known ce-

lebrity wrote this in my autograph book :

“Always strive to be one in a million and

not one of the million.”

The play of words in this statement

knocked me hard and ever since then I

have adopted this statement as my per-

sonal motto. We have to aim for the hori-

zon and never doubt that we will make it.

Aim high. Do the goal-set-

ting bit, but be sure you also

make time for those that re-

ally count :  the people close

to you in your life.

High achievements are a

great value to us but we

should not over estimate

what they really mean. The

world places different val-

ues on them. People, on the

other hand, especially those

close to us, have life, spirit,

soul and eternal value in

them.

I deeply believe that in

life, one should care about people. It

sounds idealistic but one only goes

through life’s journey once. And if you can

go through and leave it as a good journey,

rather than a bad one, that is what is im-

portant. The biggest gift is a good friend,

whether they be your spouse, parents,

office colleagues, or classmates. To give

meaning to life is to have these people

around you. People whom you

can sit down with and talk, really

communicate and share.

It is a frightening thing to real-

ise that we were born into this

world alone and we will die alone.

There is no other way around that. That is

the way life is, but on the way through this

journey, there are people — our family and

good friends. Our relationships with them

and how we relate to them are going to be

the highlights of our lives.

We won’t lose if we set high standards

of achievements for ourselves. If ultimately

we achieve one half or two thirds of our

Attitude Counts
Face up to the challenges of life with the right attitude

A DV E N T U R E  A N D  E X C E L L E N C E

F E AT U R E

By Dato’ Dr. Nellie S.L. Tan-Wong
CO-FOUNDER, WOMEN’S INSTITUTE OF MANAGEMENT, MALAYSIA

“Attitude is the key to success —

not skills, knowledge or education

— but Attitude, a positive Attitude.”
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target, we will know for ourselves, that we

have tried our best. It would be foolish for

us to bind our lives with the chains of me-

diocrity. Instead we could make our lives

more exciting with the spirit of entrepre-

neurship.

And, dare to be different. If we can

endure the discomfort of being differ-

ent, we will garner a new found sense

of strength and self-worth. Independ-

ence is empowering. It unlocks many

doors to greater achievements be-

cause it gives us the confidence to

know that we can depend on our-

selves. No longer are we burdened

with the weight of self-doubt and the goals

of others.

We have to take control of our lives and

whether we are happier or more success-

ful, or whether we can achieve our dreams,

the power is within our control. It is not

some arbitrary set of circumstances, fluke

or chance which moulds great people.

Great people are the product of what is in

their heads and hearts. All adventure

achievers exude boundless enthusiasm

and passion.

Men and women, of all creatures on

earth, are the architects of their own des-

tiny. The greatest revolution of our genera-

tion is the discovery that human beings,

by changing the inner attitudes of their

minds, can change the outer aspects of

their lives. We have to find the uncommon

thread which runs through people who are

great achievers, who have enjoyed great

personal and professional success and

weave that thread into our own lives. That

thread will make the fabric of our lives

stronger and more meaningful.

When we read of the lives of successful

people, whether in business, the sciences

or in politics, inevitably you will read of

their extra passion, their persistence, their

determination for excellence, their empha-

sis on detailed strategy and their willing-

ness in accepting change. I urge you to take

a groundbreaking look at your life and map

out your personal exploration — one which

can bring you closer to your goals, to your

family and to your dreams.

Another path which I would like you to

take is to go into new areas of challenges:

whether out of mere curiosity or to fulfil

your life long aim to exploit your creative

capacity to the fullest.

Alexander Graham Bell, the famous in-

ventor once said :  “Don’t keep forever on

the public road, going only where others

have gone. Leave the beaten track occa-

sionally and dive into the woods. You will

be certain to find something you have

never seen before. Of course, it will be a

little thing, but do not ignore it. Follow it

up, explore all around it; one discovery will

lead to another and before you know, it will

have something worth thinking about to

occupy your mind. All really big discover-

ies are the result of thought.”

Great people made their first move from

the curiosity of their minds, from their pas-

sion to create their dreams into products

of success and from their perseverance to

take their flight through. Wings are not

only for the birds; they are also for the

minds. A great example today is Bill Gates,

who did not create much impression with

his teachers during schooldays, but his

obsession with the computer, his passion

to extract all the capabilities of this tool and

his creativity to market this product so

successfully on a worldwide scale, have

made him in a global guru in a mega inter-

national industry which started as a

hobby.

An unknown author once wrote :

“Youth is not a time of life — it is a

state of mind. Nobody grows old by

merely living a number of years; peo-

ple grow old only when they desert

their ideals. You are as young as your

faith, as old as your doubts, as young

as your self confidence, as old as your

fears, as young as your hopes and as old

as your despair.”

Life is not like an adventure where we

hang on to the side of a mountain. We must

have an attitude of Adventure which we can

apply to the day-to-day challenges, seizing

new opportunities, striving for the highest

level of excellence, testing our resources

against the unknown, demonstrating pas-

sion and enthusiasm in our efforts, and in

that process, discover our own unique po-

tential. It is not what we go through in life

which makes us what we are — it is how

we react to the world which we are going

through. It is not what we have. It is what

we do, with what we have. The 21st cen-

tury will be a time of great change. We can

either meet its challenges with fear and

frustration OR with courage and creativity.

I conclude by referring you to the fa-

mous British war time Prime Minister, Sir

Winston Churchill, who said :  “The em-

pires of the future are the empires of the

mind.”

Note :  Dato’ Dr. Nellie S.L. Tan-Wong was for-
merly Chairman of MIA’s Negeri Sembilan &
Malacca Branch. The paper was presented at
the International Graduation Ceremony of the
Edith Cowan University on 4 June 2000.

“Great people made their first

move from the curiosity of

their minds, from their passion

to create their dreams into

products of success and from

their perseverance to take

their flight through”.
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THE CURRENT STATE OF INTERNAL / 

The People’s  

 I N T E R N A L  M A N AG E M E N T  AU D I T I N G

F E AT U R E
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By Stanley Y. Chang
PH.D., CIA, CMA, CPA, CGFM

Ronald A. Davidson
PH.D., CA (CANADA)

ASSOCIATE PROFESSORS
ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY WEST

The People’s Republic of
China is one of the fast-
est growing economies in
the world. With 1.2 billion

people, an annual economic growth rate of
10.2 per cent, and US$37 billion direct for-
eign investment, internal control and man-
agement effectiveness of Chinese organi-
sations are important concerns for all with
an interest or a stake in global economic
development. Internal/management audit-

ing, of course, is an integral
part of the internal control
system and plays a key role
in ensuring operational effi-
ciency and ef fectiveness.
This paper summarises a
comprehensive study of in-
ternal auditing in China,
conducted through inter-
views, a survey of practition-
ers, and extensive review of
literature, both in Chinese
and English. The structure
and issues of current Chi-
nese auditing, the general
demographics of Chinese
internal auditors, and some
of the most recent develop-
ments are reported.
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“The audit supervision

system subjects internal

auditors working in

government agencies and

state-owned enterprises to

dual — and frequently

conflicting — roles.”
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The Structure of the Chinese
Auditing Profession Audit

Supervision System
The planned economic system practised

by China in the past few decades has had
tremendous impact on its auditing struc-
ture. The government controlled and di-
rected all facets of the economy through a
huge bureaucratic structure. Fur ther,
there were more than 100,000 state-run en-
terprises employing over 90 million people,
which accounted for two-thirds of the ur-
ban workforce. Auditing was thus consid-
ered to be a key means to exercising gov-
ernmental oversight and ensuring the ac-
countability of assets custody and re-
sources distribution/consumption. Indeed,
China amended its Constitutions outlining
that auditing functions are needed to form
a “State Audit Supervision System” in 1982,
and in 1994 enacted Audit Law to govern
the audit process in all institutions.

The government-driven audit approach
is very different from the prevailing sys-
tems found in western countries. The Chi-
nese auditing profession is composed of
three major segments :  governmental au-
diting, internal auditing, and social audit-
ing (equivalent of western public auditing).
The Audit Law, however, specifically dic-
tates that internal auditors of various gov-
ernment agencies, state-owned enter-
prises, and non-profit organisations are
extensions of government audit authori-
ties. These internal auditors report to, or
are subject to the direction of, governmen-
tal audit offices. The audit supervision sys-
tem thus formed also is granted with sanc-
tion power. While personnel related pen-
alty/punishment issues are handled by a
different government system, the Chinese
governmental auditors may suspend fund-
ing or freeze access to resources when
auditees are found to be in violation of ac-

counting regulations or fiscal policies.

Role Conflict
The audit supervision system subjects

internal auditors working in government
agencies and state-owned enterprises to
dual — and frequently conflicting — roles.
While they are employees of — and com-
pensated solely by — their own organisa-
tions, they must also operate on behalf of
the state in matters relating to compliance
with the state’s fiscal budget and account-
ing regulations.

Specifically, the National Audit Office of
China requires institutional internal audi-
tors to bear legal responsibilities in :

n Securing the safety and completeness of
all properties entrusted by the state to
the organisation.

n Examining the financial plan or expendi-
ture budget, cash receipts and disburse-
ments, financing or borrowing, and for-
eign exchange transactions, as well as
the effectiveness of all economic con-
tracts executed by the organisation.

n Reviewing the justification, efficiency,
and effectiveness of the internal control
system within the organisation, includ-
ing monitoring the functioning of inter-
nal controls with respect to compliance
with the state’s regulations.

n Confirming that the financial statements
or final accounts are adequate and rea-
sonable and in conformity with the ap-
plicable regulations.

n Conducting special investigations of il-
legal acts or other irregularities that vio-
late the state’s fiscal policies and account-
ing regulations.

n Helping state audit offices or external au-
ditors to conduct statutory audits as re-
quired.

The internal auditors, however, must
also answer to management in their ordi-
nary employee capacity. Functionally, they
may report to the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO), or more than likely, a financial ex-
ecutive. This is compounded by the ab-
sence of an audit committee or its equiva-
lent in the Chinese environment. Thus,
there could be major scope limitations and
sometimes compromised audit reports, as
the CEO’s signature is usually required
before such reports could be issued or re-
leased. Most of the Chinese practitioners
interviewed by the researchers considered
the lack of sufficient organisation status to
ensure independence and role conflicts,
being the most challenging and frustrat-
ing issues related to their jobs.

Operation Responsibilities
Most recent statistics from the National

Audit Office of China show that at the end
of 1998, there were 102,000 internal audit
units nationwide and more than 276,000
professionals (including some part-timers)
working as internal auditors. While the
total headcount seems to be substantial,
this number averages out to less than three
auditors per department. In most organi-
sations, a department this size is too small

  MANAGEMENT AUDITING IN

 Republic of China
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to operate as a fully functional strategic
unit. Further, the heavy emphasis on fis-
cal and accounting matters leaves operat-
ing/managerial issues as lesser concerns
in developing audit scopes and in staffing
auditor positions. Thus, the internal audi-
tors often possess reasonable proficiency
in financial audits but lack adequate knowl-
edge and background in other business-
related fields to effectively conduct what
would be considered as management or
operation audits in western organisations.
Auditors are often not perceived to be value
adding and their role in evaluating/improv-
ing the accomplishments of business ob-
jectives is sometimes performed by other
professionals. As a result, when a 50 per
cent organisation-wide headcount reduc-
tion in all national agencies was mandated
by the central government in 1998, some
internal auditing departments were elimi-
nated.

The major type of non-financial audit
conducted by Chinese internal auditors in
state-owned enterprises is the economic
responsibility audit of managers. Such au-
dits examine the discharging of fiduciary
responsibilities by the senior officers who
were entrusted with the entity’s operation.
The main purpose of such audits is to re-
lease or affix liabilities of the managers in
fulfilling their term objectives, and is usu-
ally conducted at their departure time. This
focus on “people” rather than on “activities”
is a unique aspect of Chinese internal au-
diting.

Demographics of Chinese
Internal Auditors

The demographics of two hundred and
seventy-seven internal auditors were sur-
veyed in four major Chinese cities
(Chongqing, Guangzhou, Jinan, and
Wuhan). These cities represent the centres
of auditing activities in their respective re-
gion :  Chongqing in Southwest China,
Guangzhou in Southern China, Jinan in
Northern China, and Wuhan in Central
China. Thus, the demographics of the sur-
veyed auditors provide a glimpse of the
background of Chinese internal auditors
nowadays.

The average experience of survey re-
spondents was 9.1 years indicating that
Chinese professionals tend to be career
internal auditors. This is different from

their western counterparts, who are be-
coming more transient in serving as inter-
nal auditors.

Table A shows the type of organisations
employing the surveyed internal auditors.
A majority of the respondents work for
state-owned enterprises and governmental
agencies, which is quite representative of
the current Chinese internal audit environ-
ment. Table B illustrates the professional
designations of the respondents. These
professional designations reflect the back-
ground and/or training of those internal
auditors. Over 90 per cent of these inter-
nal auditors have college or higher-level
training.

“Auditors are often not

perceived to be value adding

and their role in evaluating/

improving the accomplish-

ments of business objectives

sometimes are performed by

other professionals.”

                                       Number    Per cent

State-Owned 169 61.0
Government Agency 87 31.4
Joint Venture 11 4.0
Private Ownership 1 0.4
Others 9 3.2
Total Respondents 277 100

Type of Organisation of
Respondents’ Employers

T A B L E  A

                                       Number    Per cent

Accountant 184 66.4
Auditor 64 23.1
Economist 20 7.2
Engineer 9 3.3
Total Respondents 277 100

Professional Designation of
Respondents

T A B L E  B

Lack of Professional
Standards

A big problem hampering improvement
of audit practices is the lack of a uniform
set of professional standards. The Audit
Law identifies guiding principles, as well
as rights and responsibilities, for internal
auditors. Nevertheless, no detailed stand-
ards are included to specify the qualifica-
tion, competency, or the necessary due
diligence process and procedures that are
expected for internal auditors. Training
and education needs are hard to be deter-
mined and justified without clear stand-
ards. The absence of professional stand-

ards as a benchmark for per formance
evaluation also makes quality assessment
and assurance very difficult. The Profes-
sional Standards developed by the Institute
of Internal Auditors (IIA) were translated
into Chinese since 1994. However, the
document is generally treated as a refer-
ence and learning vehicle for Chinese au-
ditors to understand western practices, as
stated in its preface.

Recent Development
Certifications

China has recognised the necessity to
align with global professionals and inter-
national practices and is actively commu-
nicating and working with their counter-
parts around the world. The Chinese In-
ternal Auditor Society (CIAS), which was
formed in 1987 and represents China in the
international auditors family, recently
signed a cooperative agreement with the
IIA and translated the Certified Internal
Auditor (CIA) exam into Chinese.
Guangzhou was chosen to be the first ex-
perimental test site. This first effort was
significant. While only residents of the
Guangdong Province were allowed to sit
for the exam, almost one thousand candi-
dates participated in the exam’s first offer-
ing in November 1998. Another mega-site
is expected to be offered this year in Jinan
with Beijing and Shanghai being planned
for the near future. Very soon, there could
be as many Chinese auditors sitting for the
global exam as the rest of the world com-
bined.

The impact of the certification efforts is
significant. First, it is conventional for
white collar Chinese to have a professional
designation (see Table B) that represents-
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and in most cases, justifies their job quali-
fication. There is not a domestic internal
auditor designation in existence, which
contributes to the lack of status of internal
auditors in their respective organisations.
It is viewed that the CIA certification can
not only fill the void but may also help in
elevating the perceived value and prestige
of internal auditors because of its global
acceptance. Second, as candidates must
prepare for the exam, they are thus ex-
posed to standards and other contempo-
rar y business and management tech-
niques. Other useful information and
knowledge, such as computer technology,
also are translated and studied. Training
seminars and workshops are widely held
and well attended. Thus, the expansion of

certification will facilitate the modernisa-
tion and upgrade of Chinese practices and
expedite their alignment with western
counterparts.

Reorganisation of CIAS
The CIAS, by its current nature under

Chinese government categorisation, is an
organisation with research and training as
its main objectives. It is not a membership-
based entity and receives significant sub-
sidies and administrative support from the
government. Most of CIAS’s activities are
organised and participated by internal au-
ditors from government agencies and
state-owned enterprises. It has, however,
gone through an extensive reorganisation
effort to change its name to China Insti-
tute of Internal Auditors. This new organi-
sation will be officially categorised as a
professional member organisation, which
enables it to regulate professional activi-
ties, establish standards, and become more

independent from the government. It is
expected that a significant portion of new
members will come from private industries
and joint ventures. A new monthly profes-
sional journal dedicated to internal/mana-
gerial auditing will be launched with the
inauguration of the new organisation. The
circulation is expected to be 80,000 per is-
sue.

Taking advantage of the copyright au-
thorisations under the IIA cooperative
agreement, massive translation efforts are
being undertaken to make more academic
and professional literature available to the
Chinese audience. An aggressive national
training program, including establishing
specialised curricula at leading education
institutions, is also being planned.

Conclusion
It is an exciting time to witness the de-

velopment and growth of Chinese internal
auditing. By comparison, it lags behind the
world-class best practices in its current
state. However, there is tremendous enthu-
siasm shared among professional leaders
and practising individuals and there is high
momentum for improvement. With the
availability of communication mechanisms
and a global auditing community eagerly
willing to help Chinese auditors make fur-
ther progress, the gap is closing rapidly.
Chinese auditors can better themselves
and along the way help improve the man-
agement and operation of their respective
organisations. This should be welcomed by
companies investing or doing business in
China.

The authors gratefully acknowledge fi-
nancial support received from the Finan-
cial and Management Accounting Commit-
tee of the International Federation of Ac-

countants and the ASU West Teaching and
Research Support Grant in support of this
project.
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DEVELOPMENTS IN THE
EXTERNAL SECTOR

Commendable Trade Performance

Malaysia’s trade performance in 1999 remained commendable,
expanding by 10.8 per cent to RM570 billion. The country

achieved a record trade surplus of RM72.3 billion (23.8 per cent
increase from 1998) as exports grew faster (12.1 per cent) than
imports (9.1 per cent).

The increase in exports was due mainly to sustained demand
in the major export markets comprising the US, Singapore, Ja-
pan and Taiwan, especially for electrical and electronics (E&E)
products, including electrical machinery.

Going forward, “Malaysia (as) one of the hubs of global elec-
tronics production ... stands to gain enormously (from the secu-
lar increase in electronics demand, e.g. driven by internet and
telecommunications),” Neil Saker, Head of Regional Economic
Research of SG Securities (Singapore) Ltd said.*

A column to provide accountants with a macro

snapshot on the major economic and financial

developments and to alert accountants on leading

edge issues that are crucial to their operations.

PU LS E
of the Economies

B Y  M I A’ S  E C O N O M I C  R E S E A R C H  T E A M
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Major Trading Partners (1991-99)T A B L E  1

Improved International Ranking

Malaysia has also improved its global export ranking to 17th
in 1999 (19th in 1998), while its global import ranking

notched up to 21st (22nd in 1998). Its share of world exports and
imports stood at 1.5 per cent and 1.1 per cent respectively.

Moderate Growth of Manufactured Exports

Growth of manufactured exports moderated to 14.1 per cent
last year (33.2 per cent in 1998), accounting for nearly 83

per cent of total exports.
E&E products remained the single largest export item at

RM185.3 billion. Although E&E products recorded a lower growth
of 21.9 per cent, it contributed a higher share of manufactured
exports (70 per cent) than in 1998 (65 per cent). The need to pur-
chase Y2K-compliant equipment and the expanding use of the
Internet, e-commerce, mobile phones and telecommunications
equipment contributed largely to the increased global demand
for E&E products, according to the Ministry of International Trade
and Industry (MITI).

Chemicals and chemical products, wood products, machinery
and equipment, and textiles and apparels were the next largest
export items, but their contribution to total manufactured exports
were small, ranging from 3.5 – 4 per cent.

Growing Importance of
Newer Trading Partners

The US, Singapore and Japan have consistently been the main
trading partners of Malaysia, which together accounted for

more than 50 per cent of the country’s total trade (Table 1).

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Country % Share of Total Trade

US 16.1 17.2 18.7 18.9 18.4 16.8 17.7 20.7 19.9

Singapore 19.3 19.4 18.5 17.4 16.3 16.9 16.6 15.5 15.4

Japan 21.1 19.6 20.1 19.4 20.2 19.0 17.2 14.6 15.6

Total 56.5 56.2 57.3 55.7 54.9 52.7 51.5 50.8 50.9

Source :  Malaysia External Trade Development Corporation.
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Generally, the US share of Malaysia’s external trade has grown
since 1991, in contrast to trade with Singapore and Japan. Another
observation is that the combined share of Malaysia’s external
trade has steadily dropped to 50.9 per cent last year, compared
with 56.5 per cent in 1991 This trend reflected the growing im-
portance of newer trade partners such as Taiwan, South Korea,
Hong Kong, Thailand, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom,
although their shares are still relatively small (less than 10 per
cent each) (Table 2).

Since 1998, the US has overtaken Singapore as the leading
export market of Malaysia. The US is the biggest market for
Malaysia’s E&E products, which is the largest export earner. In
1999, the US absorbed 29.4 per cent or RM54.5 billion of E&E
exports.

Malaysia’s efforts at diversifying its export markets have met
with a degree of success, judging from the falling share of the
three major export markets since 1991. Countries such as the

Major Export Markets (1991-99)T A B L E  2

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Country % Share of Total Exports

US 16.9 18.6 20.3 21.1 20.7 18.2 18.6 21.7 21.9

Singapore 23.3 23.0 21.7 20.7 20.3 20.4 20.1 17.0 16.5

Japan 15.7 13.4 13.0 12.1 12.7 13.5 12.4 10.5 11.6

Total 55.9 55.0 55.0 53.9 53.7 52.1 51.1 49.2 50.0

Source :  Malaysia External Trade Development Corporation.

Imports from Major Sources (1991-99)T A B L E  3

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Country % Share of Total Exports

US 15.3 15.8 16.9 16.7 16.2 15.5 16.8 19.6 17.4

Singapore 15.6 15.7 15.2 14.1 12.4 13.4 13.1 13.6 14.0

Japan 26.1 26.0 27.5 26.7 27.3 24.5 22.0 19.6 20.8

Total 30.9 31.5 32.1 30.8 28.6 28.9 29.9 33.2 31.4

Source :  Malaysia External Trade Development Corporation.

T A B L E  4

Netherlands, Taiwan, Hong Kong, the United Kingdom, Thai-
land and South Korea are emerging as important export desti-
nations.

Malaysia’s imports are spread out in terms of sources, with Ja-
pan in the lead position, followed by the US and Singapore (Ta-
ble 3). In 1999, Japan accounted for one-fifth of Malaysia’s im-
ports, mainly semi-conductors and integrated circuits.

Other import sources that are becoming important to Malaysia
include Taiwan, South Korea, Thailand, China and Germany.

Lower Foreign Direct Investment

In 1999, foreign investment dropped by 28.4 per cent to slightly
over RM9 billion, contributing to 73.2 per cent of the overall

decline in proposed capital investment (Table 4). The drop was
due mainly to lower levels of investment received for expansion/
diversification projects, especially from the US.

                New Projects             Expansion/ Diversification                  Total

1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998

Total Proposed Capital Investment 9,893.3 9,445.9 4,135.8 9,468.4 14,029.1 18,914.3

Local 3,807.6 3,026.2 1,182.5 3,266.9 4,990.1 6,303.1

Foreign 6,085.7 6,419.7 2,953.3 6,201.5 9,039.0 12,621.2

Note :  Foreign investment = Foreign equity + loan attributed to foreign interest.
Source :  Malaysian Industrial Development Authority.
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Lower Overall Investment
from Leading Investors

In 1999, there was a 61.1 per cent drop in US investment in
the manufacturing sector to RM2,539.4 million, which more than

offset the higher investment levels from Japan and Singapore.
The US share of foreign investment declined to 28.1 per cent in
1999, while Japan and Singapore’s share rose to 14.2 per cent and
11.1 per cent, respectively.

The total share of foreign investment in 1999 of the top three
foreign investors (53.4 per cent) was still much lower than in 1998
(66.5 per cent) (Table 5).

Issues to Note

Downside Risk in the US Economy

The US has always been a key trading partner and investor to
Malaysia. As such, any major correction in the US economy would
have an adverse impact on Malaysia. Moreover, if
Malaysia’s trading partners are affected by nega-
tive developments in the US economy, this too would
have a rippling effect on Malaysia’s external sector.

Already, the US interest rates have been raised
on several occasions since mid-June 1999 and up-
ward pressure on rates have not abated. In the event
that the US interest rates were to rise much fur-
ther, it will erode confidence in the stock markets
globally, which in turn could affect both the finan-
cial and real sectors of the Malaysian economy. This
is not a remote possibility because the US is one of
Malaysia’s major export destinations.

Top 3 Sources of Foreign Investment (1998-99)

T A B L E  5

       1999                 1998
Country Foreign Share of Foreign Share of

Investment Foreign Investment Foreign
Investment Investment

RM mn % RM mn %

US 2,539.4 28.1 6,534.3 51.8

Japan 1,281.2 14.2 1,112.9 8.8

Singapore 1,004.0 11.1 745.3 5.9

Sub-total 4,824.6 53.4 8,392.5 66.5

Others 4,214.4 46.6 4,228.7 33.5

Total 9,039.0 100.0 12,621.2 100.0

Note :  Foreign investment = Foreign equity + loan attributed to foreign interest.
Source :  Malaysian Industrial Development Authority.

Weak Japanese Economic Recovery

According to the Economic Planning Agency of Japan, recov-
ery of aggregate demand continues to be weak. Personal con-
sumption remains broadly flat, because income growth is slug-
gish. The unemployment rate (4.8 per cent in April 2000) remains
high, despite continued increases in overtime hours worked and
job offers.

Housing investment is easing off from the high level seen early
this year, but condominium construction is relatively bullish. Cor-
porate confidence has further improved, but remains at a low level.
A stronger Japanese economic recovery would be helpful in pro-
viding a firmer support for Malaysia to sustain its economic re-
covery.

Lower Foreign Direct Investment
(FDI) Inflows

Over the years, FDI has been instrumental in promoting Ma-
laysia’s economic growth and creating job opportunities. There
is some concern that the level of FDI, which was severely affected
in 1999, may not be as buoyant as before.

Nevertheless, MITI has spared no efforts in enhancing its ef-
forts to attract FDI. Indeed, as pointed out by P. K. Basu, Director
of Credit Suisse First Boston (Singapore) Ltd, “Malaysia is (still)
a spectacularly competitive export site,” given that the ringgit is
undervalued, i.e. “25 per cent cheaper in real effective terms than
pre-crisis levels.”*

Also, the low interest rates, even if they were to notch up slightly
in the future, continue to favour investors. Further, the macroeco-
nomic fundamentals remain strong, given the good infrastructure,
educated and trainable workforce, healthy international reserves,
low and stable inflation, sound regulatory framework, progress
in the financial reforms and the like. In view of the above, inves-
tors would find it difficult to ignore Malaysia as a profitable in-
vestment destination.

* Papers presented at the session on “Foreign Investors’ Perspectives
on Investing in Malaysia”, Malaysian Capital Market Summit 2000 jointly
organised by KLSE and Asian Strategy & Leadership Institute, 13 June
2000.
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Crediting Your Brain  
Introduction

A
ccountancy is probably the only
profession where creativity has a
negative connotation. Besides this,

accountants have often been unfairly por-
trayed as stereotyped and boring individu-
als lacking in creativity. Perhaps it is time
to put things right.

The snippets below will show you some
proven methods on how to unleash the
awesome creative power of your brain.
Even if they don’t work the way intended,
you will still benefit from the insights.

Don’t just credit your account with more
money. Credit your brain with more crea-
tivity!

Be As Mentally Retarded
as Einstein

When Albert Einstein was interviewed
on the source of his creative genius,

he was purported to have replied, “It is
because I’m mentally retarded.” Is it pos-
sible that one of the greatest geniuses who
ever lived was mentally retarded?

Fortunately, Einstein explained what he
meant. Einstein had the mind of a child but
the brain of a scientist. Like a child, he was

constantly asking probing questions which
adults regarded as ‘silly’ like :  “What will
happen if I ride on a light beam? Inciden-
tally, it was this question that led to his dis-
covery of his famous Theory of Relativity.

In essence, Einstein never grew up. His
mental age probably stopped at about five
years old. That was why he considered
himself ‘mentally retarded’. Unlike a child,
however, Einstein was able to answer his
own questions as he had the knowledge of
a scientist.

Another child-like quality of Einstein was
that he imagined in pictures rather than us-
ing the language of words in his thinking.
Every language carries with it inherent limi-
tations that restrict thinking. For instance, the
definition of the word ‘atom’ as an indivisible
part of matter restricted thinking on the struc-
ture of an atom for many years. Words have
limitations. Imagination has none.

Would accountants like to be as ‘mentally
retarded’ as Einstein? If they are, then an
accountant is to money what Einstein is to
science — an absolute genius with money!

Be a Mother Hen
to Your Ideas

If after intense mental efforts, no solution
is forthcoming, ideas have dried up and

the thinking process is unproductive, then
it is time to stop. The conscious mind has
done all it can for the moment. Then it is
the time to relax or do something and let
the subconscious mind take over. This is
called incubation — or being a mother hen
to hatch ideas.

Incubation occurs in many ways, such
as :  relaxing, playing, concentrating or do-
ing something else, daydreaming, fantasis-
ing or even sleeping. In fact, it was found
in one survey that 70 per cent of inspira-
tions leading to major scientific break-
throughs happened while the scientists

were napping or sleeping! So there is some
truth in the common belief that you have
to sleep on your problem. Sleeping on the
job may not be such a bad thing after all!

A good example of the power of incuba-
tion was when Jerry Hirshberg, the presi-
dent of Nissan Design International based
in San Diego, US, was commissioned to
design a new sport utility vehicle to be
called the Nissan Pathfinder.

Hirshberg and his design team worked
very hard for months but were unable to
come out with outstanding innovative fea-
tures for the new car. They were getting
desperate as the deadline drew near.

Hirshberg did not panic. Instead, he took
his entire staff of 50 people to the movies.
The movie was Silence of the Lambs star-
ring Jodie Foster. It was a suspense film
where concentration was essential in order
to follow the dialogue and the story plot.
Watching the movie took the staff’s minds
away from the design of the car.

The brief respite from work provided a
much needed incubation period for the staff.
They were mentally energised after the
movie and ideas began to flow. The team
was able to complete the project within
budget and deadline. The car was a success.

According to Hirshberg, the need for in-
cubation ( downtime, awaytime and creative
playtime) is most required not at the con-
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L I G H T E R  N OT E
C R E AT I V I T Y

By Dr. Yew Kam Keong

“ … it was found in one

survey that 70 per cent of

inspirations leading to major

scientific breakthroughs

happened while the scientists

were napping or sleeping”…
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  with Creativity
clusion of a project but often in the midst of
the most intense and stressful phase.

So accountants take heed. It is when the
pressure of work is the greatest, the stress
level is the highest that you need a break
more than ever before. Incubation clears
your head for a new level of performance,
which you may not achieve otherwise.

Go Soak Your Head

According to the book : “The Einstein
Factor — A Proven New Method for

Increasing Your Intelligence” by Dr. Win
Wenger, he shot up from a lacklustre per-
formance at the bottom of the class to the
top of the class after spending several
hours of underwater swimming every day
in the summer of 1959.

My own daughter also told me after her
first public examination results were an-
nounced, that all her swimming teammates
did very well. All of them either scored all
A’s or close to all A’s even though they had
very little time to study because of their
intensive training. My daughter scored all
A’s herself.

I was a bit sceptical at first. That same
evening, however, I attended a talk by Dr.
Win Wenger who was in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia at that time. That was when I first
found out about the importance of under-
water swimming in promoting intelligence.

Dr. Yoshiro NakaMats, who is regarded
as the Japanese Edison, is one of the world’s
foremost inventors. He holds 2000 over pat-
ents among which are pillars of modern
technology such as the floppy disk, the hard
disk and the digital watch face.

Dr. NakaMats uses the underwater swim-
ming method. Whenever he wishes to get
new ideas, he dives into his swimming pool
and swims underwater as long as he can.
While swimming underwater he records his
ideas on a special waterproof Plexiglass
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and author of the book: “ The
Mozart Effect :  Tapping The
Power of Music To Heal The
Body, Strengthen The Mind

and Unlock The Creative
Spirit.

According to
Campbell, research
that started in the
mid- 1800s showed
that the use of music
can alter blood pres-

sure, heart rate, skin
temperature, muscle ten-

sion and brain waves within two to three min-
utes. He chose Mozart because his music is
extremely clear, well organised and well bal-
anced.

An earlier book entitled :  “Superlearning”
by Sheila Ostrader and Lynn Schroeder
describes many experiments that demon-
strated the correlation between creativity,
learning and music. The Bulgarian scien-
tist Georgi Lozanov did the pioneering work
in this area. Basically, the right music was
able to tune the brainwaves to the desired
mode for creativity and learning. The most
effective music is baroque music which in-
cludes: Mozart, Vivaldi, Bach and Handel.

So accountants, when you wish to do
some deep thinking or learning, switch on
to classical baroque music. The music
serves to tune your brainwaves to the crea-
tive level, release tension and has a general
effect of producing calm and relaxing the
mind.

Note :  Dr. Yew Kam Keong (YKK) is an interna-
tional writer, speaker, trainer and consultant on
creativity. He conducts creativity workshops for
multinational and local companies in Malaysia and
many other countries. YKK is the only Asian to be
appointed by Lego as one of its eight international
creativity experts to spearhead its global creativ-
ity movement, “The Next Generation Forum.” He
can be contacted at ykk@mindbloom.com

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

slate that he invented for
this purpose. Only when
he cannot hold his breath
any further does he sur-
face.

There is a scientific
basis for this technique.

Dr. Robert Domain,
medical director of the
Philadelphia Institute for
the Achievement of the Hu-
man Potential provided an explanation. He
explained that underwater swimming in-
creases the carbon dioxide content in the
blood. This causes a signal to warn our bod-
ies that our oxygen supply is in danger of
being cut off. In response, the carotid ar-
teries that carry blood to our heads dilate
wide and allow more blood to flow through
them, saturating our brains in an exception-
ally rich flow of oxygenated blood.

So accountants, go and soak your head
if you wish to enhance your creative intel-
ligence!

“ … the carotid arteries that carry

blood to our heads dilate wide

and allow more blood to flow

through them, saturating our

brains in an exceptionally rich

flow of oxygenated blood.”

Use Your Ears as
Gateways to Your Brain

Music can be used to enhance our crea-
tive abilities, improve our health, in-

crease our intelligence and enable us to
enjoy good health and emotional stability.
This claim was made by Don Campbell, an
internationally known musician, educator
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EXPLORING CYBERSPACE

Last month, 300 bold accountants

embarked upon a journey to ex-

plore cyberspace, a new and un-

charted frontier. One that is dan-

gerous and yet intriguing with lots of op-

portunities to be reaped, when one learns

how to outsmart it, that is.

Yes, it was during the Cyberage : Man-

agement, Controls and Security conference

that those courageous 300 learnt how dis-

ruptive and dangerous this new realm

could be, but it was inevitable for them to

enter it in order to survive in the new K-

economy, of which K stands for Knowl-

edge.

So, many were encouraged to get on

their motherboards (as oppose to mother

ships in sci-fi flicks) and travel at the speed

of 128 kbps (kilo bytes per second) or

faster/slower, depending on their ma-

chines, to join the rest of the world in a

global e-commerce battle.

Of course, they also discovered that be-

fore they could go out on such a mission

they had to learn how to set up proper con-

trols within their homebases to prevent

attacks from many vicious entities like vi-

ruses and worms sent out by evil cyber

lords known as hackers.

And how can they do it? By employing

in-house hackers to constantly try to hack

into their own systems to check the level

of security and to anticipate new external

attacks.

They also learnt that keeping off hack-

ers was a tedious, round the clock task, as

hackers never seem to sleep because of the

global dimension of cyberspace — when

one hacker sleeps in Malaysia, the other

is wide awake in the US trying to penetrate

your organisation.

Just as Columbus discovered a whole

new world, so did the accountants who

spent two days from 6 -7 June, learning that

in this new dimension, rules were still lim-

ited and therefore there is a new breed of

rogues taking advantage of the loopholes

it presented.

New criminal activities have surfaced but

fear not, they were also told that now there

were new forensic methods to nab these

cyber crooks.

Taxation problems were also discussed

especially in trans-border transactions

prevalent in e-commerce, on how the US,

the originator of the Information

Superhighway, was very set against impos-

ing tax for e-commerce transactions while

the rest of the world wanted some form of

taxation.

Among the many issues the world is dis-

cussing now include, where the source of

profit is (for example, is it where the server

is located, or is it when the product reaches

the consumer), whether to impose tax for

downloading stuff from the Internet, now

fondly known as the Net, or otherwise. By

the way, Europe, as one of the speakers

pointed out, was already imposing VAT for

downloads, so watch out.

Indeed taxation is a complex topic, still

heatedly debated by nations of the world

who are affected by just clicks of mice.

Who could have imagined this 10 years

ago, right?

In the midst of confusion and excite-

ment, cyber laws have emerged to bring

some form of order to this dynamic area

of space.

Those who used to ‘cyber squat’ (devi-

ous cyber citizens who speedily and clev-

erly buy domain names of renowned or-

ganisations, and later sell them to these or-

ganisations at premium prices) are now li-

able if they have no valid reason for buy-

ing a certain domain name that has no con-

nection to them or their businesses.

The accountants were also told to be
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EXPLORING CYBERSPACE
BY HAZEL ONG

Minister of Energy, Communications and Multimedia, Datuk Amar Leo Moggie
receiving a memento of appreciation from Dato’ Syed Amin Aljeffri
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careful when linking their sites to other

sites, or simply copying information from

the Net, as these acts could infringe cer-

tain cyber laws.

Of course besides all the ‘paranoia’ about

how dangerous cyberspace is, there was

also discussion on how to make transac-

tions secure through the use of Public and

Private keys, and how the Government

through the Multimedia Super Corridor

(MSC) was encouraging the birth of more

e-entrepreneurs who will spur the growth

rate of K-workers.

They found out that when liberalisation

and globalisation engulfs the world, there

will be a shortage of K-workers in several

countries, such as US, India and Germany.

In fact the US was expected to lose 500,000

workers soon.

Malaysia too may lose this special

workforce if nothing is done to make the

country attractive enough for them to re-

main in it.

              I N S T I T U T E  N E W S
C Y B E R S PAC E

Government
Backing

Minister of Energy,

Communications and

Multimedia Datuk Amar

Leo Moggie, who offici-

ated the conference, said

the MSC was now on

track and the develop-

ment of e-commerce and

the K-economy Master

Plans would help spur

the growth of e-busi-

nesses in the country.

He reiterated that Ma-

laysia has the benefit of

cyber laws that are

among the first in the

world, Internet connec-

tion costs that were

among the lowest inter-

nationally and plenty of

innovative and bright

minds, technology, solu-

tions and strategies to

help make this a reality.

Leo Moggie even tried to entice the

crowd with lucrative figures generated by

such enterprises, by saying that globally

the world would generate a revenue of

US$1.23 trillion (RM4.6 trillion) by year

2003.

During the same period in Malaysia, he

said, the e-commerce market is expected to

generate revenue exceeding US$1 billion.

As to the legal aspects of conducting

business in cyberspace, the Government,

he said, had since early 1997, introduced

a series of cyber laws to facilitate and safe-

guard the development of the new com-

munications and multimedia industries.

These include the Computer Crimes Act

1997, the Digital Signature Act 1997, the

Copyright Amendment Act 1997, the

Telemedicine Act 1997 and the Communi-

cations and Multimedia Act 1998 which ra-

tionalises governance of the new commu-

nications and multimedia industry brought

about by the convergence of multiple me-

dia.

He added that the existing laws were

now adequate to facilitate growth of the

Internet economy.

“Other efforts will include building trust

on the Web through greater Internet se-

curity, building secure electronic payment

systems and ensuring privacy of informa-

tion.

“The security of e-commerce will also

require the establishment of smart partner-

ships between the Government and the

private sector, in order to instil and ensure

confidence and trust among consumers as

to privacy and security aspects of electronic

transactions,” he said.

Leo Moggie also urged accountants of

the new millennium to no longer be his-

torical score recorders but to constantly

and cleverly service clients by maximising

technology which they are exposed to.

He also cautioned that some projects

may take off, while others won’t, but the

rewards for those which do are immense.

“What prevails as the factor of sole im-

portance is whether our people are ready

with the skills and the aptitude to take bold

steps to venture into e-commerce.

Malaysians are still wary of Internet trans-

actions and many are said to be fuzzy on

how to harness the power of the Internet,”

he observed.

His observation held true, as during tea

breaks, many participants were heard

buzzing that they were indeed still scepti-

cal and even afraid of using their ATM

cards to withdraw money or perform trans-

actions, let alone revealing their credit card

numbers over the Internet.

And surprisingly these remarks were

made from accountants from the financial

and banking sector.

Well, whatever the scenario now, the

message was clear at the end of the con-

ference, that mindsets must change so that

everyone can one day enjoy the fruits of

life in the K-economy within cyberspace.
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CONFIDENCE BOOSTER

The recent economic downturn has
highlighted the impor tance of
good corporate governance. Dur-

ing the economic turmoil, many investors
had their fingers burnt badly due to mis-
placed confidence in companies short on
transparency and accountability. As a re-
sult, investors are now more discerning es-
pecially when putting their money in com-
panies that are vague about their financial
status and modus operandi. Good corporate
governance not only enhances shareholder
confidence but also boosts the value of

NACRA helps to raise the standards for annual reports.

companies.
How does one judge excellence in cor-

porate conduct?
One way would be through a company’s

annual report. Thus, the National Annual
Corporate Report Awards which has been
around for 10 years is of significance.

The past winners of NACRA concur that
the stringent criteria have raised the stand-
ards of annual reports over the years and
they welcome further efforts to streamline
and enhance corporate disclosure. Signifi-
cant past winners include Kumpulan

The Science, Technology and Envi-
ronment Ministry’s proposal to en-
courage companies to improve

their environmental accounting and provide
annual reports on the im-
pact of their economic activi-
ties on the environment, is
timely and certainly appro-
priate,” said  Lam Kee Soon
referring to YBhg Datuk
Lee Lam Thye’s suggestion.

Lam Kee Soon is the
Chairman of the Organis-
ing Committee of the Na-
tional Annual Corporate
Report Awards (NACRA).
NACRA is Malaysia’s most
prestigious award in recog-
nition of excellence in an-
nual reporting. Its objective
is to promote and enhance
the highest standards in the
presentation and reporting of financial and
other information amidst the dynamic de-
velopments in the capital market.

Lam agreed with YBhg Datuk Lee’s (Chair-
man of Environmental Committee of Kuala
Lumpur City Hall) suggestion that the Minis-
try will provide guidance on how environmen-
tal information be appropriately included in
their annual reports. He added, “This will cer-

ducing a product. This invariably improves
pricing and thus will spur profitability. In ad-
dition, it also allocates costs to the appropri-
ate product, process, system or facility and
thereby assists managers in targeting cost
reduction, improving environmental quality
and reinforcing quality principles.

“More importantly, the company would
have a competitive advantage and greater
customer acceptance of the firm’s product
or service,” he added.

NACRA is jointly sponsored by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA), Malaysian Association of Cer-
tified Public Accountants (MACPA),
the Malaysian Institute of Manage-
ment (MIM) and the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange (KLSE). MIA is the
secretariat for NACRA 2000.

Companies who wish to participate
in this competition can contact the
NACRA Secretariat, Malaysian Insti-
tute of Accountants, Dewan Akauntan,
2 Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3, Brickfields,
50470 Kuala Lumpur. For more infor-
mation, please call Puan Kalsom or
Cik Sazalina at 03-22745055, fax no.
03-22731016. Further information on
NACRA can be obtained at http://
www.mia.org.my/nacra/.

tainly be a useful platform to ensure that com-
panies are guided accordingly.

Lam continued, ‘The reporting of environ-
mental issues are of strategic value and im-

portance to the public in
general and to parties as-
sociated with it. In tandem
with active developments
and growing awareness,
NACRA has introduced a
new award for NACRA in
the new millennium. It is
named the “Environmen-
tal Reporting Award —
Green and Fair View”.

It is acknowledged that
environmental issues
present the largest, most
serious and intractable
challenge for the next mil-
lennium. Similar with the
Government’s efforts, the

purpose of this award is to promote aware-
ness with regards to the environment and to
address issues and recognise efforts towards
its preservation.

Lam encouraged companies to ensure that
their annual reports provide for environmen-
tal issues. He expressed, “The benefits are
aplenty. Among others it provides better es-
timates of the true cost to the firm in pro-

NACRA Supports Guidance on
Environmental Accounting

“

Guthrie Bhd whose annual report grabbed
three awards at the National Annual Cor-
porate Awards 1999 (NACRA), for most
outstanding annual report of the year, the
best annual report in Bahasa Malaysia and
also the industry excellence award for the
plantations and mining sector.

Prior to this achievement, the Group also
won the NACRA award for 1998 for the
most outstanding annual report and indus-
try excellence award in the plantation and
mining category.

In a recent interview with Akauntan
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Nasional, Kumpulan Guthrie’s Deputy
Chairman and Group Chief Executive Tan
Sri Abdul Khalid Ibrahim, says Guthrie has
been in the industry for over 178 years and
all these years it has believed in transpar-
ency, promoting good business and excel-
lent corporate governance.

“We believe that good corporate govern-
ance not only enhances shareholders con-
fidence but also boosts the value of com-
panies,” he adds

He pointed out that the award proves that
it has attained the highest standards in the
presentation and reporting set by NACRA
which is jointly sponsored by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA), Malaysian
Institute of Management (MIM), Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange (KLSE) and the
Malaysia Association of Certified Public  Ac-
countants (MACPA). It is a pride he holds
close to his managerial abilities.

In addition, the award requires prompt-
ness of publication and submission to the
KLSE, compliance with all applicable ap-
proved accounting standards and informa-
tion on Audit Committee.

He states that the award gives recogni-
tion, which reflects standards of corporate
reporting and in addition gives the group
plenty of corporate mileage.

 Basically work to produce an annual
report for a company, according to a source
in the industry, takes between six and
seven months. It normally starts at the
beginning of the year when a committee

comprising representatives from the cor-
porate planning, group public affairs and
accounts departments from the respective
organisations meet. Through this process
they can judge and make adjustments and
improvements to the new annual report,
making sure it is better than the previous
year. This similar process taken by Guthrie
has benefited the group.

“Every one of the annual reports vying
for the best overall annual report stands
an equal chance of winning. However, what
sets each company apart and what would
catch the attention of the adjudicators
would be the extent of transparency in the
accounts, mainly in disclosure of financial
information, depth of corporate informa-
tion in the chairman’s statement or review
of the company’s operations,” he says.

Abdul Khalid says the award has cer-
tainly benefited the group. “The awards
have brought us good corporate mileage
in terms of publicity. We are seen as the
benchmark in annual reports and we are
indeed very pleased with the response
from the public and shareholders alike. But
more importantly, in view of the current
push for more transparency and disclosure
in the context of corporate governance,
shareholders and investors should be very
pleased with this ̀ value-added’ information
approach,” he adds.

On making an annual report more trans-
parent, Abdul Khalid says for obvious rea-
sons, companies should comply and dis-
close the information relevant to each area
of business to set up benchmarks.

“As far as the industry that we are in-
volved in is concerned, information on the
operations of the company, corporate de-
velopments, financial information and the
future direction of the company written in
terms easily understood, will create value
to shareholders,” he adds.

“The company’s business philosophy
and its future direction will to a large ex-
tent decide the direction and approach it
takes to produce an annual report. The in-
formation you disclose and the amount
of information incorporated also reflects
the kind of management style you practise
and the awards have definitely given us
plenty of corporate mileage,” he says.

According to him the group spent a sub-
stantial sum on last year’s annual report
which was prepared in-house.

“All the information provided in our an-

Tan Sri Abdul Khalid Ibrahim (left),
Deputy Chairman and Group Chief
Executive, Kumpulan Guthrie, and
Tuan Haji Ghazali Awang, Executive
Director, Finance and Corporate
Services, Kumpulan Guthrie.
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nual reports are well beyond statutory re-
quirements be it financial details, the
group’s activities or progress made. The
group’s annual reports are for everybody,
our staff, investors, business partners, gov-
ernment bodies and analysts. We make it
a point that they have adequate informa-
tion to make decisions and monitor the
progress of the group,” Abdul Khalid
points out proudly.

“One of the main benefits is that we can
tell our staff members that they are being
evaluated and we can monitor the group’s
progress over the years. By setting high
standards we are able to evaluate our com-
petitors.

Besides improving our own standards, we
have motivated the industry to set higher
standards and use our annual reports as
benchmarks so that we can ultimately have
some uniformity in the industry,” he adds.

“What our annual reports express is that
we strive to do things correctly, eradicate
corruption, have the right principle of busi-
ness, give consumers fair value and treat our
staff in a fair and equitable manner. This
about sums it up,” concludes Abdul Khalid.
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Members’ Dialogue at Malacca/Negeri Sembilan

The Malaysian Institute of Accountants, Malacca Branch held their An-
nual Tax Dialogue with the Inland Revenue Board (IRB) Malacca in

April 2000 . The dialogue was attended by Tuan Haji Mohd Azizan bin Mohd
Yusof, Penolong Pengarah Kanan of IRB, A.Viknesvaran, Chairman of MIA
Negeri Sembilan/Malacca Branch and other IRB Officers.

The event gathered 45 members from MIA and the Malaysian Institute
of Taxation (MIT). The dialogue concluded with the Inland Revenue Board
(IRB) giving their consent that the Form 204 could be made in Malacca
instead of the collection branch.

The recent Members’ Dialogue held on
17 May 2000 at the Renaissance Ho-

tel Malacca, gathered forty members from
the Malacca and Negeri Sembilan branch.
The evening took off with an opening
speech from our MIA President, YBhg
Dato’ Syed Amin Aljeffri. In his opening
address, Dato’ requested full suppor t
from all members for the council. He said
“With the members extending their sup-
port and delivering their thoughts to the
Council, it would make it easier for the
Council to serve its members better. Our
objective is a healthy exercise”. The
words from the president was indeed en-
couraging for our members.

A.Vicknesvaran, Council Member/
Branch Chairman (Malacca/Negeri
Sembilan) seconded the President’s call.
He stressed the importance of regular dia-
logues between the Council and its mem-
bers. “It is here where the members are
given opportunities to voice their thoughts,
concerns and vision towards the profession
and Institute”. Mr. Varan encouraged mem-

Tuan Haji Mohd Azizan bin Mohd Yusof, Penolong
Pengarah Kanan-Inland Revenue Board Malacca
(second from right) and other IRB officers during the
dialogue. MIA & MIT members listening attentively during the dialogue

Tax Dialogue
in Malacca

bers to participate in Professional Devel-
opment events and activities carried out by
branches. “By getting involved, you’ll get
to know the Institute better and in turn will
be able to churn ideas for the betterment
of the Institute”.

On stage with Dato’ were Soon Kwai
Choy, Vice-President of MIA and Tony Seah
Cheoh Wah, Southern Branch Chairman.

During the session, the majority of ques-

tions posed by members were their con-
cern towards the latest developments in
the Malaysian Accounting Standards
Board (MASB) and the role played by MIA,
in terms of contribution towards the board.
Other queries revolved around the topics
of final examinations.

The evening ended with members min-
gling with the Council during the high-tea
reception.

A. Vicknesvaran, Council member and Branch Chairman, Malacca/Negeri Sembilan
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Dr. Zainal Ahmad testing his ball-throwing theory on Rita
Wong (Branch Committee member)

AFA delegates and Sabah members listening attentively to
the lecture

SABAH BRANCH

The AFA Lecture of the Year — “Rebuilding the Organisation
for Competition” conducted in Kota Kinabalu in conjunction with

the AFA Council Meeting turned out to be completely different from
normal seminars and Sabah members were pleasantly surprised.

Professor Dr. Zainal Ahmad was certainly different in his ap-
proach and presentation and he had the room full of AFA del-
egates and Sabah members glued to their seats and all eyes were
on his ball-throwing and ‘lego’ tests.

A section of members at the Sabah Branch members’
Dialogue

M IA President and Council members attending the 68th
    AFA Council Meeting in Kota Kinabalu in May 2000

took the opportunity to visit the Branch Office and meet with
the Sabah Branch Chairman and Committee Members. A dia-
logue with Sabah members was held.

SARAWAK BRANCH

The recent seminar on the Update of Accounting Pronouncements
conducted by Associate Professor Tan Liong Tong in the two

East Malaysian States was appreciated by members especially in
the public practice.

It was also the first CPD seminar organised for members in Bintulu;
a lesser-known town centrally located midway between Kuching and
Miri and rich in the by-products of oil, gas, timber and palm oil. It is
also a town where the locals will know you are a stranger if you call
for a taxi into town. That’s because one can alight from the Fokker
and walk with one’s baggage to the old town centre.

Clients of member firms in Bintulu who attended the seminar
also gained working knowledge on applicable accounting stand-
ards and were thus more appreciative and understanding of the
technical knowledge and requirements of their auditors.

Associate Professor Tan sharing his knowledge with
participants in Bintulu

MASB Standards Reach Bintulu Members

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION FEES
PAYABLE IN KUCHING AND KOTA

KINABALU BRANCH OFFICES

Members are reminded that annual fees are payable at
the Sarawak Branch Office, 1st Floor, 16 Jalan Bukit

Mata Kuching, 93100 Kuching and at the Sabah Branch Of-
fice, Lot 6, 2nd Floor, Block A, Damai Point Commercial Cen-
tre, Luyang, 88000 Kota Kinabalu.
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Sibu Education Fair

The Sibu Chapter participated in the
two-day Sibu Education Fair launched

by YB Datuk Wong Soon Koh, the Minister
of Infrastructure Development & Commu-
nications. In his opening speech YB Datuk
Wong commented that the nation needed
to keep up with the rapid growth of IT to
succeed. He said, “All of us need to be pre-
pared for this ride, scary for some, exhila-
rating for others but necessary for all”.

The Chapter Committee took the oppor-
tunity to encourage students at the fair to
take-up Accountancy as a profession. They
were briefed on ‘What it takes to be an Ac-
countant’, step by step procedures that
need to be adhered to and how to excel in
the profession.

Happenings in Sarawak

YB Datuk Wong Soon Koh speaking to Lucy Read at the fair

Tax Dialogue

The Public Practice Sub-Committee of
the Sarawak Branch organised a dia-

logue with the Customs Department to
review the areas of sales and service tax.
Yang Mohsin bin Abdul Rashid and his
team of officers briefed members on the
recent amendments to the Service Tax Act
and explained the difference between the
various taxes.

Back to Nature

MIA Sarawak branch members, their
families and friends took a one-day

excursion to Gunung Gading National
Park. The two-hour ride departing from the
MIA Kuching Office was surely relaxing,
especially having the opportunity to just lay
back and rest whilst enjoying the beautiful
scenery. The troupe had the opportunity
to catch a glimpse of the rare six-petal
Rafflesia, the largest flower in the world.

Members also went mountain trekking,
some took the challenge of longer routes
while others settled for shorter walks and
enjoyed the cool waterfalls nearby. The
break did eveyone good as they were all
smiles afterwards. The fresh air rejuve-
nated the system and the hike really invig-
orated them.

MIA participants at the Dialogue conducted in the Conference Room of the
Customs Department

MIA members with their family and friends
take a shot for the album

Rafflesia,
the
largest
flower in
the world
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M
alaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA), a member body of the
ASEAN Federation of Account-

ants (AFA) hosted the 68th AFA Council
Meeting in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah on 12-13
May 2000. Except for Cambodia and Laos
who have yet to become members of AFA,
the other eight ASEAN countries were rep-
resented at the meeting.

MIA President Dato’ Syed Amin Aljeffri led
the Institute’s delegation comprising Vice-
President Soon Kwai Choy and Council
members, Tay Beng Wah and Daniel Chian.

The AFA Council members deliberated
on issues related to AFA’s objectives, i.e. :

n To promote closer regional co-operation
and assistance.

n To enhance the continuous development
of the accountancy profession.

n To identify major problems in the pro-
fession and seek solutions.

n To provide a medium for the exchange
of ideas.

n To represent ASEAN accountants in
their collective dealings with interna-
tional organisations.

n To work with other regional groupings
who need the assistance of ASEAN ac-
countants.

One of the highlights of the meeting was
the presentation of country reports, which
focused on each country’s developments per-
taining to the accountancy profession, as well
as issues and developments which have a
direct or indirect impact on the profession.

Interestingly, besides Malaysia where
there were proposals to amend Malaysia’s
Accountants Act, 1967, Paitoon Taveebhol
(AFA Deputy President and Thailand’s rep-
resentative) and Dr Djoko Susanto (Indo-
nesia’s representative) informed that their
governments were enacting new legisla-
tion to govern the accountancy profession
in their respective countries. Meanwhile,
AFA President, Tan Boen Eng who is also
President of the Institute of Certified Pub-

lic Accountants of Singapore, said a draft
Bill had been prepared which related to
corporatisation of accounting firms and
multidisciplinary practices in Singapore.

A major subject discussed at the meet-
ing was accounting standards in the
ASEAN region. The need for consistency
of accounting standards in the region, es-
pecially in view of the ASEAN Free Trade
Area (AFTA) which is just around the cor-
ner, was highlighted. In 2003,
when tarif fs among ASEAN
countries are either removed or
reduced, more cross-border in-
vestment is expected. Business-
men and entrepreneurs will be
looking at numbers and finan-
cial statements to assist them in
valuing such investments.

Throughout the meeting, the
ASEAN spirit of neighbourliness
and friendship was evident.

MIA hosted a welcome dinner
for the delegates on 12 May
2000, which was graced by
Sabah’s Minister of Community
Development and Consumer

AFA’s President Tan Boen Eng (fifth from right) flanked by AFA Deputy Presi-
dent Paitoon Taveebhol on his right and Dato’ Syed Amin Aljeffri on his left,
together with fellow AFA Council members and observers

Affairs, YB Datuk Raymond Tan. In the true
ASEAN spirit of hospitality, AFA hosted a
dinner the following night, graced by
Sabah’s Deputy Chief Minister, YB Datuk
Tham Nyip Shen.

The AFA delegates also paid a courtesy
call to the TYT Yang Di-Pertua Negeri
Sabah, Tun Datuk Seri Panglima Haji
Sakaran bin Dandai while in Kota
Kinabalu.

Dato’ Syed Amin Aljeffri (left) presenting a gift to
Tun Datuk Seri Panglima Haji Sakaran bin
Dandai (right)
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Fair Value in Europe

The European Commission has proposed amendments to
the EU’s Accounting Directives to permit the use of fair
values. The proposals take account of developments in

markets, business and accounting standards. The EU believes
the changes will make it easier for European companies raising
capital outside the EU to comply with the financial reporting
requirements of international capital markets and thus compete
on equal terms with non-European competitors, notwithstand-
ing significant limitations on the use of fair value with respect to
liabilities.

Under the proposed amendment to the EU’s Accounting Direc-
tives, which must be approved by the Council of Ministers and
the European Parliament, Member States would have to permit
or, if they preferred, require fair value accounting for certain fi-
nancial assets and liabilities. Member States would be able to limit
the scope of fair value accounting to certain companies, for exam-
ple only those publicly listed, or to consolidated financial state-
ments of groups of companies.

The Commission believes that at least permitting the use of
fair value will help European companies to compete in interna-
tional capital markets on equal terms with their non-European
competitors, enabling them to prepare financial statements that
are accepted and understood around the world.

Derivatives
Financial markets have changed since the Fourth and Seventh

Directives on Company Law (the ‘Accounting Directives’) were
adopted. In addition to traditional financial instruments such as
shares and bonds, companies are using complex derivative in-
struments such as futures, options, and swaps. These derivatives,
used often for risk management, may in themselves bring signifi-
cant associated risks for the companies that use them and may
transform a company’s financial position or its risk profile.

After consulting Member States and the business community,
the Commission concluded the best approach would be to list the
items that cannot be valued at fair value, rather than try to draw
up and constantly update a list of those that can. This approach
provides sufficient flexibility to allow for developments in the
market and in accounting standards.

Restrictions
Under the proposals, the following items could not be meas-

ured at fair value :

n Balance sheet items that are not financial instruments (this will
cause problems for those wishing to apply the fair value model
in IAS 40, Investment Property);

European Commission Proposes Introduction of Fair Value Accounting

n Liabilities, with the exception of liabilities which are :

• held as part of a trading portfolio (IAS 39 requires re-measure-
ment at fair value);

• accounted for as hedged items (IAS 39 has more detailed re-
quirements); or

• derivative financial instruments (IAS 39 requires re-measure-
ment at fair value).

The amendment is not seeking to replace the historical cost
concept in the Accounting Directives but would complement it.
The Commission is conscious that there is still no international
consensus on the extent to which fair value accounting is appro-
priate.

Historical Cost Required in Some Cases
Fair value accounting would not be permitted for balance sheet

items such as fixed assets (including land and buildings or plant
and equipment). Similarly, certain financial instruments, such as
long-term debt, would continue to be stated at historical cost.

Disappointing Exclusions
The decision to exclude businesses covered by the Bank Ac-

counts Directive and Insurance Accounts Directive from this pro-
posal is disappointing, since these institutions are some of the
heaviest users of derivative financial instruments. The limitations
with respect to non-financial assets and financial liabilities will
create problems for European companies applying IASC Stand-
ards and seem contrary to the Commission’s stated purpose for
proposing the changes.

The Commission’s proposal can be found on the EU’s website :
http://europa.eu.int/comm/dgs/internal_market

Australia : Senate Disallows
Accounting Treatment

In February 2000, the Australian Senate took the unusual step
of disallowing application of parts of a new accounting stan-
dard, AASB 1015 “Acquisitions of Assets”, that permitted, but

did not require, certain transactions to be accounted for at carry-
ing amount. The treatment is limited to reconstructions within an
economic entity, as defined in the Standard.

As a result of the Senate’s action, all acquisitions within the
scope of AASB 1015, including reconstructions within an economic

I A S C
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entity, must be accounted for using the purchase method of ac-
counting.

AASB 1015 was issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board in November 1999 and is applicable for financial years end-
ing on or after 31 December 2000.

Germany : Participation in
Standard Setting

Encouraged

Apanel of experts meeting in Berlin in December 1999
called on German institutions to play an active role in
helping to forge a uniform set of international financial

disclosure standards. Participants in the forum, organised by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, noted that corporate governance and
financial reporting in Germany are undergoing a radical change:
moving from a reporting system focused on communicating with
long-standing creditors such as banks in an informal way, to a
more equitable framework based on the disclosure requirements
to all stakeholders.

Germany was encouraged to take a strong role in the process
of establishing uniform reporting requirements, ensuring that its
voice in the discussion reflects the strength of its role in the glo-
bal economy and its corporate leadership.

Some of the participants claimed that recent IASC standards
have complicated the presentation of financial performance. What
constitutes ‘financial performance’ is, itself, the subject of debate,
but many German enterprises favour a realisation approach to
the income statement rather than the changes in assets and li-
abilities approach that is gaining favour elsewhere in the world.
Many participants called for a back-to-basics approach, where the
spirit of transparency and openness emphasises quality and not
just quantity.

Poland :
New Accounting Law

In the December 1999 issue of IASC Insight, we reported a
change in law in Poland and the creation of a ‘second account
ing standards board’. We have since learned that the change

was authorised under existing legislation.
The Treasury Minister has authorised the Polish Securities

Commission to create the Foundation for Capital Market Stan-
dards Development which includes the Accounting Standards
Committee, which sets accounting standards for publicly listed
companies.

In order to broaden the scope of authoritative literature on ac-

counting standards, especially with respect to small and medium-
sized enterprises, the Accountants Association of Poland has cre-
ated an Accounting Standards Committee (ASC) with the objec-
tive of :

n Promoting and implementing IAS;

n Commenting on drafts of new and revised IASC Standards; and
(where necessary)

n Developing national accounting standards.

The ASC (of the Accountants Association of Poland) is a pro-
fessional body independent of the government agency. However,
sharing the same name as the standard setter for publicly listed
companies (at least in English) may cause confusion, especially
outside Poland.

BOOKS OF INTEREST

The following books and other publications have come
to our attention and may be of interest to our readers.

Financial Instruments :  Understanding IAS 39 ,

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 2000.

Guideline on National Requirements for the Qualification of

Professional Accountants, United Nations Conference on Trade

and Development, 1999, (ISBN 92-1-112457-3).

Hong Kong GAAP — A Guide for the Preparation of Financial

Statements (2nd Ed.), by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. This con-

tains a brief comparison of Hong Kong reporting require-

ments and IASC Standards.

International Accounting Standards — A Practical Guide to

Financial Reporting, by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Contains

a summary of current IASC Standards, model IAS financial

statements, a presentation and disclosure checklist and a glos-

sary of terms.

2000 Bound Volume of International Accounting Standards. This

volume includes all International Accounting Standards at 1

January 2000, including new Standards issued in 1999 (IAS 10

(revised)) and consequential revisions to several existing Stand-

ards, plus SIC Interpretations SIC-1 to SIC 18. Price :  £38 each

(UK) or £45 (US$76) (Rest of Europe and Overseas), with bulk

discounts. E-mail :  publications@iasc.org.uk

Source :  IASC INSIGHT, March 2000
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mit a fair value model. This evolutionary step forward will
allow preparers and users to gain greater experience work-
ing with a fair value model and will allow time for certain
property markets to achieve greater maturity.”

The Standard is effective for annual financial statements cover-
ing periods beginning on or after 1 January 2001. Earlier applica-
tion is encouraged. The Standard replaces previous requirements
in IAS 25, Accounting for Investments, which is withdrawn when
this Standard comes into effect.

Explaining the wider context, Sir Bryan Carsberg, Secretary-
General of IASC, said :

“IAS 40 deals with a relatively specialised topic which is
the final element of the core standards that we have been
developing for consideration by IOSCO (the International
Organisation of Securities Commissions). IOSCO began its
consideration of our core standards when we completed
the last major project, in December 1998, and we under-
stand that it hopes to indicate the outcome of its evalua-
tion of the core standards at its annual meeting in May.”

Copies of International Accounting Standard IAS 40, Investment
Property, (ISBN O 905625 81 1), may be obtained directly from
IASC’s Publications Department, 166 Fleet Street, London EC4A
2DY, UK. Telephone :  +44 (020) 7427-5927, Fax :  +44 (020) 7353-
0562, e-mail :  publications@iasc.org.uk  website :  http://
www.iasc.org.uk at a price of £15 each (US$25), including postage.
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IASC Issues Standards on Accounting for Investment Property

The International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC)
today published International Accounting Standard (IAS)
40, Investment Property. IAS 40 prescribes the account-

ing treatment for investment property and related disclosure re-
quirements. Investment property is defined as property (land or
building — or part of a building — or both) held (by the owner or
by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for :

Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or

Sale in the ordinary course of business.

The Standard requires enterprises to choose one of two account-
ing models and to apply that model consistently to all of its invest-
ment property. The two models are :

A fair value model.  Investment property should be meas-
ured at fair value and changes in fair value should be recog-
nised in the income statement; or

A cost model. The cost model is the benchmark treatment in
IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment:  investment property
should be measured at depreciated cost (less any accumulated
impairment losses). An enterprise that chooses the cost model
should disclose the fair value of its investment property.

A change from one model to the other model should be made
only if the change will result in a more appropriate presentation.
The Standard states that this is highly unlikely to be the case for
a change from the fair value model to the cost model.

Explaining the Standard, Per Gunslev, Chairman of IASC’s Steer-
ing Committee on Investment Property, said :

“IAS 25, Accounting for Investments, currently permits
several different accounting treatments for investment prop-
erty. IAS 40 narrows that choice considerably and also re-
quires enhanced disclosure about investment property. As a
result, enterprises will have to give a clearer picture of the
activities and performance of their investment property.”

Per Gunslev also explained why the IASC Board decided to
permit a choice of accounting models :

 “Exposure Draft E64 proposed last year that a single
model should be required — the fair value model. This was
the first time that the Board proposed requiring a fair value
accounting model for non-financial assets. The comment
letters on E64 showed that although many support this
step, many others still have significant conceptual and
practical reservations about extending a fair value model
to non-financial assets. Also, some believe that certain
property markets are not yet sufficiently mature for a fair
value model to work satisfactorily. For those reasons, the
Board believes that it is impracticable, at this stage, to
require a fair value model for investment property. At the
same time, the Board believes that it is desirable to per-

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

a

b

a
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FMAC News
The Finance and Management Accounting Committee

(FMAC) intends to form Resource Panels. The Panels
will be headed by a member of the FMAC. Members of the
Panel however, will come from the membership at large. The
planned Panels will cover the fields of Banking/Finance and
Treasury, Public Sector Accounting, Tools and Techniques
and Education.

The purpose of the various Panels is to create a knowledge
base and make this available to the members. The Panels
will also arrange for articles, activities and talks or discus-
sion groups on the various subjects.

The FMAC invites members who are specialists or who
have experience in these fields to volunteer themselves to be
members of these Panels. Your contribution will be of great
benefit to the FMAC and we look forward to your participa-
tion to help make this a useful and functional Panel.

If you are interested, please contact Surinder Kaur at :

Dewan Akauntan
2 Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3, Brickfields, 50470, Kuala Lumpur.

Telephone :  2274 5055, Fax :  2273 1016
e-mail :  surinder@mia.org.my
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Incorporation
and Aim

The Malaysian Asso-
ciation of Accounting
Administrators (MAAA)
was incorporated in
1990 with limited liabil-
ity under Section 16(4)

of the Companies Act, 1965 in recognition of the
two-tiered nature of the accountancy profession.
MAAA (previously known as Malaysian Associa-
tion of Accounting Technicians) is a company
sponsored by the Malaysian Institute of Account-
ants (MIA).

Main Objectives
• To provide a qualification to be known as Ac-

counting Technicians/Administrators for per-
sons employed on duties customarily under-
taken by assistants to accountants registered
with the MIA.

• To provide an organisation and membership
for such persons who are desirous of acquir-
ing such qualification and persons who are
granted such qualification.

• To promote in the public interest the techni-
cal competence of such persons engaged in
positions and performing the functions of
accounting technicians/administrators.

Council Members (2000/2001 Term)
Elected Members
Izhar Abd Kahar (President)
Koo Yew Fook, Allan (Vice President)
Chin Wah Yin
Hanapi Rasol
Kasim Darus
Lim Ah Leck
Low Han Men, Aric
Mahadevan s/o Gengadaram
Mok Kam Seng
Panneer Selvam
YM Raja Noorhana bt Raja Harun
Yong Yoon Kee

MIA Nominated Members
Wong Mun Sum, Albert
Lam Kee Soon
Yue Sau Him

Secretariat Office
Malaysian Association of Accounting Administrators
Dewan Akauntan, 2 Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3,
Brickfields, 50470 Kuala Lumpur.
Tel : 03-2274 5055 or Fax : 03-2274 1783
e-mail : maaa@mia.org.my

MEMBERS ATTEND THE 10TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MALAYSIAN ASSOCIATION
OF ACCOUNTING ADMINISTRATORS

Editor for MAAA News : Low Han Men,  Aric
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REPORT BY ARIC LOW & SHYLAJA GOVIND. PHOTO BY ROSLIANI SHAFIE.

More than 4 years ago — in July 1996 to be precise — it was announced in our
newsletter that :

n Council of MIA had approved a special Amnesty Programme for Senior Accounting
Technicians (SATs) — now known as Accounting Administrators (A.Adm.) —
who possessed a recognised degree or professional qualification and who were
aged 40 and above on or before 10 June 1995 to enable them to apply for member-
ship in MIA. 196 qualified members were granted this programme.

n MAAA Examination would be launched on 1 August 1996 with the first sitting
held in June 1997 .

Unfortunately, for various reasons beyond the control of the MAAA Council,
both matters did not materialise. It was therefore not surprising to note that these
two key issues were of great interest and concern to members at the recently
concluded 10th AGM on Saturday, 24 June 2000.

This time round, the MAAA Council was able to report with greater confidence
to members that with the new leadership at the helm of the MIA Council, posi-
tive changes were expected and shown. The leaders of both parties (MIA and
MAAA) assured members that priority would be given to the implementation of
the amnesty programme and MAAA’s own indigenous examination.

38 members attended the 10th AGM at Dewan Akauntan in Brickfields, Kuala
Lumpur. They included out-station members (some of whom are regulars), who came
from as far as Terengganu, Perak, Melaka and Johor. The meeting enabled mem-
bers to network and provide feedback to the MAAA Council on their aspirations and
expectations pertaining to the accounting technician and administrators’ profession.

Other notable topics discussed at the AGM were :

n AMAAA Annual National Conference on “Meeting The Challenges of New Tech-
nologies & Regulatory Framework” — to be held on Saturday, 12 August 2000
at Nikko Hotel, Kuala Lumpur. Members were encouraged to mark this down
in their calendar and make plans to attend it.

n A proposal was made to co-opt a representative for the northern states since we have
two representatives for the southern states of Melaka and Johor. Wong Chee
Kheong from
Ipoh, Perak volun-
teered to serve on
the MAAA Coun-
cil.

n The members
were honoured
with the presence
of its former
MAAA President,
YBhg Tan Sri Dato’
Dr Lau Ban Tin, at
the AGM and offi-
cially put on record
a congratulatory
message to YBhg
Tan Sri for his re-
cent conferment
by the Yang Di-
Pertuan Agong on
the occasion of His
Majesty’s 74th
Birthday.



Akauntan NasionalJuly 2000

HOW TO BECOME A MEMBER OF THE

MALAYSIAN INSTITUTE OF TAXATION

Benefits and Privileges of
Membership

The principal benefits to be derived from mem-
bership are :

1 Members enjoy full membership status and
may elect representatives to the Council of the Institute.

2 Status attaching to membership of a professional body deal-
ing solely with the subject of taxation.

3 Supply of technical articles, current tax notes and news from
the Institute.

4 Supply of the Annual Tax Review, together with the Finance Act.

5 Opportunity to take part in technical and social activities or-
ganised by MIT.

Qualification Required For Membership
There are two classes of members, namely, Associate Members

and Fellows. The class to which a member belongs to is herein
referred to as his status. Any Member of MIT so long as he re-
mains a Member may use after his name in the case of a Fellow,
the letters FTII and in the case of an Associate, the letters ATII.

Associate Membership
1 Any person who has passed the Advanced Course examination

conducted by the Department of Inland Revenue and who has
not less than five years practical experience in practice or em-
ployment relating to taxation matters approved by the Council.

2 Any person whether in practice or in employment who is an
advocate or solicitor of the High Court of Malaya, Sabah and
Sarawak and who has had not less than three years practical
experience in practice or employment relating to taxation
matters approved by the Council.

3 Any Registered Student who has passed the examinations
prescribed (unless the Council shall have granted exemptions
from such examinations or parts thereof) and who has had not
less than five years practical experience in practice or employ-
ment relating to taxation matters approved by the Council.

4 Any person who is registered with MIA as a Registered Ac-
countant and who has had not less than two years practical
experience in practice or employment relating to taxation
matters  approved by the Council after passing the examina-
tion specified in Part 1 of the First Schedule or the Final Ex-
amination of The Association of Accountants specified in Part
II of the First Schedule to the Accountants Act, 1967.

5 Any person who is registered with MIA as a Public Accountant.

6 Any person who is registered with MIA as a Licensed Account-
ant and who has had not less than five years practical experi-

ence in practice relating to taxation matters ap-
proved by the Council after admission as a li-
censed accountant of the MIA under the Account-
ants Act, 1967.

7 Any person who is authorised under sub-sec-
tion (2)/(6) of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 1965 to act as
an approved company auditor without limitations or conditions.

8 Any person who is granted limited or conditional approval
under sub-section (6) of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 1965
to act as an approved company auditor.

9 Any person who is an approved Tax Agent under Section 153
of the Income Tax Act, 1967.

Fellow Membership

1 A Fellow may be elected by the Council provided the appli-
cant has been an Associate Member for not less than five years
and in the opinion of the Council he is a fit and proper person
to be admitted as a Fellow.

2 Notwithstanding, Article 8(1) of the Articles of Association, the
First Council Members shall be deemed to be Fellows of MIT.

Application of Membership

Every applicant shall apply in a prescribed form and pay pre-
scribed fees. The completed application form should be returned
accompanied by :

1 Certified copies of :

a) Identity Card.

b) All educational and professional certificates in support of
your application.

2 Two identity card-size photographs.

3 Fees :
Fellow Associate

(a) Admission Fee : RM300 RM200

(b) Annual Subscription : RM145 RM120

Every member granted a change in status shall thereupon pay
such additional fees for the year then current as may be prescribed.

The Council may at its discretion and without being required
to assign any reason, reject any application for admission to mem-
bership of the Institute or for a change in the status of a Member.

Admission fees shall be payable together with the application
for admission as members. Such fees will be refunded if the appli-
cation is not approved by the Council.

Annual subscription shall be payable in advance on and there-
after annually before 31 January of each year.
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MASB 1 — A Commentary

Introduction
The Malaysian Accounting Standards

Board (MASB) has issued MASB Stand-
ard 1 “Presentation of Financial State-
ments”, which becomes operative for finan-
cial statements covering periods on or af-
ter 1 July 1999.

MASB 1, which is based on International
Accounting Standard 1 (Revised), “Presen-
tation of Financial Statements” issued by the
International Accounting Standards Commit-
tee, prescribes the basis for presenting finan-
cial statements. Specifically, it sets out :

n Overall considerations for the presenta-
tion of financial statements.

n Guidelines for the structure of the finan-
cial statements.

n Minimum requirements for the content
of the financial statements.

MASB 1 is applicable to all general pur-
pose financial statements of all business
enterprises (either individuals or groups)
presented in annual reports and other pub-
lic documents such as prospectuses, but not
to condensed interim financial information.

It supersedes three extant accounting
standards, namely :

IAS 1 :  Disclosure of Accounting
Policies.

IAS 5 :  Information to be Disclosed
in Financial Statements.

IAS 13 :  Presentation of Current As-
sets and Current Liabilities.

This paper highlights the effects of MASB
1 on financial reporting in Malaysia.

The major changes are summarised be-
low :

Enterprises are required to state ex-
plicitly whether all the MASB Stand-
ards have been complied with.

More detailed disclosure for the
profit and loss account is required.

Fourth statement entitled  Statement
of Changes in Equity or Statement
of Recognised Gains and Losses is
required.

Compliance with
MASB Standards

Under MASB 1, an enterprise whose fi-
nancial statements comply with MASB
Standards is required to disclose that fact.

MASB 1 further provides that financial
statements should not be described as com-
plying with the MASB Standards unless they
comply with all the requirements of each
applicable Standard and any other technical
pronouncements issued by MASB.

However, it should be noted that the fi-
nancial statements of Malaysia-incorpo-
rated companies are required under the
Companies Act, 1965 to show a true and
fair view. In extremely rare circumstances
when management concludes that compli-
ance with a requirement of a MASB Stand-
ard would be misleading, Section 166A (4)
of the Companies Act, 1965 permits that
the company need not comply with the re-
quirement to the extent necessar y to
achieve a true and fair view.

When the above occurs, MASB 1 provides
that the enterprise should disclose that it has
complied in all material respects with all ap-
plicable MASB Standards, but that it has
departed from a certain MASB Standard in
order to present a  true and fair view.

For such a departure, MASB 1 requires
disclosure of the following :

n MASB from which the enterprise has de-
parted.

n Nature of the departure (including the
prescribed treatment in the MASB
Standard and the treatment adopted).

n Reason for the departure (including why
the prescribed treatment in the MASB
Standard would not present a true and
fair view in the circumstances).

n Financial impact of the departure on the
enterprise’s net profit or loss, assets, li-
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c abilities, equity and cash flows for each
period presented.

Profit and Loss Account
Under present practice, the published

profit and loss accounts of Malaysia-incor-
porated companies are highly simplified.
They almost always start off with the dis-
closure of the turnover figure, followed by
the operating profit or the profit before tax
figure, without showing the expenses that
would reconcile the turnover figure to the
profit figure.

MASB 1 requires such a reconciliation.
Specifically, MASB 1 requires an enterprise
to present, either on the face of the profit
and loss account or in the notes to the ac-
counts, an analysis of the expenses.

MASB 1 further provides that the ex-
penses should be sub-classified based on
either the nature or the function of the ex-
penses.

Under the first method (“nature of ex-
pense” method), the expenses are classified
according to their nature (e.g. depreciation,
transportation, wages). An illustration is
provided in MASB 1 as follows (slightly
modified here for illustration purposes) :

Revenue RMx

Other operating income RMx

RMx

Operating expenses :

Purchases RMx

Changes in inventories RMx

Staff costs RMx

Depreciation expenses RMx

Other operating expenses RMx

RMx

Profit from operating activities RMx

Under the second method (“function of
expense” method), expenses are classified
according to their function (e.g. cost of
sales, distribution expenses, administrative
expenses). An illustration is provided in
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MASB 1 as follows (slightly modified here
for illustration purposes) :

Revenue RMx

Cost of sales RMx

Gross profit RMx

Other operating income RMx

RMx

Distribution expenses RMx

Administrative expenses RMx

Other operating expenses RMx

RMx

Profit from operating activities RMx

Under the function of expense method,
MASB 1 further requires the disclosure of
additional information on the nature of ex-
penses, including depreciation and amor-
tisation expenses, and staff costs.

It may be noted that the cost of sales fig-
ure would have to be disclosed despite the
exemption granted to exempt enterprises
under MASB 2, directly under the function
of expense method, and indirectly under
the nature of expense method.

MASB 1 further requires enterprises to
disclose, either on the face of the profit and
loss account or in the notes, the amount of
dividends per share declared or proposed
for the period covered by the financial
statements.

With the operation of MASB 1, the pres-
entation of the profit and loss account in
the financial statements of Malaysian com-
panies will be greatly changed.

Statement of Changes in
Equity/Statement of

Recognised Gains and Losses
Besides the balance sheet, the profit and

loss account and the cash flow statement,
MASB 1 requires a fourth statement to be
presented as a separate component of the
published financial statements.

Specifically, paragraph 86 of MASB 1
requires the disclosure of  :

Net profit or loss for the period.

Each item of income and expense,
gain or loss which is recognised di-
rectly in equity, and the total of these
items.

a

b

c

d

e

f

Cumulative effect of any changes in accounting policy and corrections of funda-
mental errors dealt with under the retroactive method.

Capital transactions with owners and distributions to owners.

Reconciliation between the beginning balance and the ending balance of the re-
tained profit or accumulated loss.

Reconciliation between the beginning balance and ending balance of each class of
equity capital, and of each reserve, with separate disclosure of each movement.

The above information may be disclosed using either one of the two formats discussed
below.

Under one of the alternative formats, all the disclosures required under paragraph 86
are disclosed in a single statement entitled “Statement of Changes in Equity.”

This statement would contain a column for each of the items required under para-
graph 86 (a) to (f). Each column will start with the beginning balance, followed by the
movements for the accounting period, and end with the ending balance.

An illustration of a Statement of Changes in Equity is provided in Appendix 3 of MASB
1, which is shown below as follows (slightly modified here for illustration purposes) :

XYZ Group — Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31 December 20x2

Share Share   Revaluation   Translation   Accumulated Total
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Profit

Balance at 1 January 20x1 RMx RMx RMx (RMx) RMx RMx

Changes in accounting policy (RMx) (RMx)

Restated balance RMx RMx RMx (RMx) RMx RMx

Surplus on revaluation of

     properties RMx RMx

Deficit on revaluation of

     investments (RMx) (RMx)

Currency translation differences (RMx) (RMx)

Net gains & losses not recognised

     in income statement RMx (RMx) RMx

Net profit for the period RMx RMx

Dividends (RMx)

Issue of share capital RMx RMx RMx

Balance at 31 December 20x1 RMx RMx RMx (RMx) RMx RMx

Deficit on revaluation of

     properties (RMx) (RMx)

Surplus on revaluation of

     investments RMx RMx

Currency translation differences (RMx) (RMx)

Net gains & losses not recognised

     in income statement (RMx) (RMx) (RMx)

Net profit for the period RMX RMX

Dividends (RMX) (RMX)

Issue of share capital RMX RMX RMX

Balance at 31 December 20x2 RMX RMX RMX  (RMX) RMX RMX

Under the alternative format, items (a) to (c) of paragraph 86 are disclosed in a state-
ment entitled “Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses”, and items (d) to (f) of para-
graph 86 are each disclosed in a separate note in the Notes to the Accounts.
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accounting period, or the date of issue, if later.
However, the effect of the ‘assumed ex-

ercise’ on the EPS computation is different.
Under MAS 1, the fully diluted EPS is

computed based on the assumption that the
money received from the ‘assumed exer-
cise’ of the options and warrants is applied
first to reduce any existing interest-bearing
borrowings of the enterprise and any re-
maining part of the proceeds were invested
in government securities or money market
instruments or fixed deposits with banks.

MASB 13, on the other hand, uses the
‘share buy-back’ principle in incorporating
the effect of the ‘assumed exercise’ of op-
tions and warrants in the computation of
the diluted EPS.

To illustrate, assume that A Bhd was in-
corporated in 19x1 with 100,000,000 ordi-
nary shares of RM1.00 fully paid up. On 1
January 19x5, the company granted its key
employees options to subscribe for
10,000,000 of its ordinary shares at the
exercise price of RM2.00 per share from
19x8 onwards. Assume also the following
for the year ended 31 December 19x5 :

n Company’s after-tax profit was
RM30,000,000.

n Interest rates for fixed deposit quoted by
banks was five per cent per annum.

n Statuary tax rates was 30 per cent.

n Average market price for the company’s
ordinary shares  was RM5.00 per share.

Under MAS 1, the options are assumed
to have been exercised on 1 January 19x5
(even though they are exercisable only
from 19x8 onwards), and the money re-
ceived therefrom is deposited with the
banks to earn interest. Thus, in the com-
putation of the 19x5 fully diluted EPS, the
numerator is increased by the notional in-
terest earned of RM700,000 (10,000,00 x
RM2.00 x 5% x (1-30%)), and the denomi-
nator is increased by the shares issued
under the options of 10,000,000 shares.

Thus, the company’s 19x5 fully diluted
EPS computed under MAS 1 is as follows :

= (RM30,000,000 +

RM700,000)/(100,000,000 + 10,000,00)

= 27.9 sen
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The above statement presents, in a single statement, an enterprise’s total gains and
losses recognised during the accounting period. Thus, this statement will highlight gains
and losses that are not recognised through the profit and loss account, for example,
revaluation surplus/(deficit), translation gains/(losses) under the closing rate method,
and the cumulative effect of changes in accounting policy and correction of fundamental
errors under the retroactive method.

An illustration of a Statement of Recognised Gains and Loses is provided in Appendix
3 of MASB 1, which is shown below as follows (slightly modified here for illustration
purposes) :

XYZ Group — Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses for

the Year ended 31 December 20x2

20x2      20x1

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of properties (RMx) RMx

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of investments RMx (RMx)

Exchange differences on translation of the

     financial statements of  foreign entities (RMx) (RMx)

Net gains not recognised in income statement RMx RMx

Net profit for the period RMx RMx

Total recognised gains & losses RMx RMx

Effect of changes in accounting policy (RMx)

Conclusion
The adoption of MASB 1 as an approved accounting standard will have a significant

impact of the presentation of the financial statements in Malaysia. However, this will also
bring Malaysian financial statements in line with world practices.

MASB 13 — A Commentary

Introduction
The Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) has issued MASB 13 “Earnings

Per Share” which supersedes MAS 1 ‘Earnings Per Share’ effective for financial state-
ments covering periods beginning on or after 1 January 2000.

MASB 13 is adapted from International Accounting Standard IAS 33 “Earnings Per
Share” issued by the International Accounting Standard Committee.

This section highlights and comments on the major differences between MASB 13
and MAS 1, and those between MASB 13 and IAS 33.

Comparison with MAS 1
As mentioned above, MASB 13 is adapted from IAS 33 “Earnings Per Share”, whereas

MAS 1 was based on the UK’s SSAP 3 “Earnings Per Share”.
There are some significant differences between the provisions of MASB 13 and those

of MAS 1 that are noteworthy.

Extraordinary Item
Where an enterprise reports an extraordinary item, MAS 1 requires the EPS to be

computed based on profit after tax but before extraordinary item. MASB 13, on the other
hand, requires the EPS to be computed based on profit after extraordinary item.

Options and Warrants
Where an enterprise has issued options and warrants which are dilutive in nature, both

MASB 13 and MAS 1 require the inclusion of the options and warrants in the computation of
the diluted EPS on the assumption that they have been exercised on the first day of the

a

b
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Under MASB 13, the options are assumed to have been exercised on 1 January 19x5
(even though they are exercisable only from 19x8 onwards), but the money received
therefrom is assumed to have been used to buy back the company’s own shares at the
average market price. Thus, in the computation of the 19x5 diluted EPS, the numerator
remains unchanged at RM30,000,000, and the denominator will be increased by 6,000,000
shares, computed as follows :

Shares assumed to be issued 10,000,000

Shares assumed to be bought-back (10,000,000 x RM2/RM5) 4,000,000

Increase in shares outstanding 6,000,000

Consequently, the company’s 19x5 diluted EPS computed under MASB 13 is as follows :

= RM30,000,000 / (100,000,000 + 6,000,000)

= 28.3 sen

Bonus Issues and Share Splits
Both MAS 1 and MASB 13 require retroactive adjustments for the effects of bonus

issues and share split effected during the year.
To illustrate, assume that B Bhd, which was incorporated in 19x1 with 100,000,000

ordinary shares of RM1.00 fully paid up, has 31 December accounting year-ends. As-
sume also that on 5 May 19x5, the company issued 1-for-1 bonus shares.

In this case, under both MASB 13 and MAS 1, the denominator for the calculation of
the 19x5 EPS is 200,000,000 shares, as if the bonus issue has been effected on 1 January
19x5. Further, if 19x4 EPS is to be presented as the comparative figure in the 19x5 finan-
cial statements, the 19x4 EPS will have to be restated as if the bonus issue has been
effected on 1 January 19x4.

However, for bonus issues and share splits that are effected after the balance sheet date
but before issue of the financial statements, MASB 13 requires disclosure of the pro forma
EPS for those and any prior period based on the new number of shares. The EPS should,
however, be calculated without taking into account these post balance sheet bonus issues.
(It may be noted that IAS 33, on which MASB 13 is based, requires the EPS of the year to
be calculated based on the new number of shares.) MAS 1 was silent on such matter.

To illustrate, assume that the bonus issue of B Bhd above was effected in February
19x6 (instead of May 19x5).

In this case, under both MASB 13 and MAS 1, the 19x5 EPS will be calculated based
on 100,000,000 shares outstanding, without taking into account the bonus issue.

However, MASB 13 additionally requires disclosure of pro forma EPS, calculated based
on 20,000,000 ordinary shares outstanding as if the bonus has been issued in 19x5.

Control Number for Dilution Test
Both MASB 13 and MAS 1 require the potential ordinary shares to be subject to dilu-

tion tests before they are included in the computation of the diluted EPS. Only potential
ordinary shares that are ‘dilutive’ in nature are included; those that are ‘anti-dilutive’ in
nature are excluded.

However, the control numbers for the dilution test used are different. While MAS 1
uses the ‘basic EPS’ as the control number, MASB 13 uses the ‘net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations’ as the control number.

Thus, an item of potential ordinary shares may be tested ‘dilutive’ under MAS 1, but
‘anti-dilutive’ under MASB 13, vice versa.

A probable rationale for the use of ‘profit from continuing ordinary operations’ under
MASB 13, as opposed to ‘all profits’ under MAS 1, is to ensure that the potential ordinary
shares that are included in the computation of diluted EPS under MASB 13 are dilutive
in a longer time frame, so that the diluted EPS is more comparable over time.
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Materiality Cut-off
For the presentation of the fully diluted

EPS, MAS 1 provided for a materiality cut-
off of five per cent. For example, if the ba-
sic EPS is 10 sen, then the fully diluted EPS
has to be presented if and only if it is equal
to or less than 9.5 sen.

MASB 13, on the other hand, requires the
presentation of both the basic and diluted
EPS, where relevant, regardless of the ex-
tent of differences between those amounts.

Loss Per Share
For an enterprise with losses for the year

concerned, MAS 1 required disclosure of
only the basic loss per share figure, and
disallowed disclosure of the diluted loss
per share figure. On the other hand, MASB
13 requires disclosure of both the basic and
diluted loss per share.

Disclosure
MASB 13 requires disclosure of two rec-

onciliation statements in relation to the
EPS computation that were not required
under MAS 1.

Specifically, MASB 13 requires disclo-
sure of :

i Reconciliation of the ‘amount of the
earnings attributable to the ordinary
shareholders’ used in the EPS compu-
tation to the ‘net profit’ presented in the
profit and loss account and

ii Reconciliation of the ‘number of shares
outstanding’ used in the basic EPS cal-
culations to that used in the diluted EPS
calculations.

These disclosures will provide information
on how the amounts for the computation of
the basic and diluted EPS are arrived at.

To illustrate the reconciliation required
under MASB 13, assume C Bhd was incor-
porated in 19x1 with fully paid up share
capital consisting of 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of RM1.00 each.

In January 19x5, the company issued
RM100,000,000 convertible loan stocks
(CLS). The CLS carried a gross interest rate
of 10 per cent per annum, and were convert-
ible into ordinary shares at the rate of five
ordinary shares for every RM10 of CLS,
effective 1 January 19x8. None of the CLS
was converted up to 31 December 19x8.

d
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Enclosed herewith is a Cheque/Draft/M.O. No. : for RM

Name : Tel No. :

Address : Fax No. :

Date :

Note : 1. All cheques/M.O. should be crossed and made payable to “Malaysian Accounting Standards Board”.
2. All local orders must include RM1.00 for postage and handling charges per item/copy.
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For the year ended 31 December 19x8, the company’s after-tax profit was RM20,000,000.
The income tax rate was 30 per cent.

The reconciliation of the numerator may be disclosed as shown below :

Basic EPS Diluted EPS
(RM’000) (RM’000)

Net profit per profit & loss account 20,000 20,000

Notional interest saved upon assumed conversion of CLS  -7,000

Net profit per EPS 20,000 27,000

The reconciliation of the denominator may be disclosed as shown below:

Weighted average number of shares for Basic EPS 100,000,000

Assumed conversion of CLS 50,000,000

Weighted average number of shares for Diluted EPS 150,000,000

COMPARISON WITH IAS 33
MASB 13 is based on IAS 33.
A major difference between MASB 13 and IAS 33 is in the treatment of bonus issues,

share splits and reverse share splits that occur after the balance sheet date but before

issuance of financial statements. For such
share issues, IAS 33 requires the EPS cal-
culation to take into account the new shares,
whereas MASB 13 requires the EPS to be
calculated without taking into account the
new shares. MASB 13 does, however, re-
quire disclosure of the pro forma EPS.

Another difference between MASB 13 and
IAS 33 is that MASB 13 has specifically pro-
vided that treasury shares held arising from
share buybacks for which there has not been
a commitment for their resale should be ex-
cluded from the computation of contingently
issuable potential ordinary shares.

Subject to any necessary modification of
accounting treatment in respect of the
above matters, compliance with MASB 13
will ensure compliance with IAS 33.

Note :  Assoc. Prof. Ng Eng Juan is a MIA member.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

MASB PUBLICATION ORDER FORM
To order MASB publications, kindly print and complete this form, and post it to :  Malaysian Accounting Standards Board,
5.01-5.03, Fifth Floor, Wisma Maran, 338 Jalan Tuanku Abdul Rahman, 50100 Kuala Lumpur.  Tel :  03-466 9199   Fax :  03-466 9212

QUANTITY TITLE UNIT PRICE TOTAL

MASB 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements RM1.40
MASB 2 — Inventories RM0.70

MASB 3 — Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Fundamental Errors and
Changes in Accounting Policies RM1.00

MASB 4 — Research and Development Costs RM0.70
MASB 5 — Cash Flow Statements RM1.00
MASB 6 — The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates RM0.80
MASB 7 — Construction Contracts RM1.10
MASB 8 — Related Party Disclosures RM0.70
MASB 9 — Revenue RM1.00
MASB 10 — Leases RM1.00
MASB 11 — Consolidated Financial Statements and Investments in Subsidiaries RM0.80
MASB 12 — Investment in Associates RM0.80
MASB 13 — Earnings Per Share RM1.00
MASB 14— Depreciation Accounting RM0.80
MASB 15— Property, Plant and Equipment RM1.20
MASB 16— Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures RM1.10
SOP 1 — Exempt Enterprises RM0.90
SOP 2 — Interim Financial Reporting RM1.00
Foreword to MASB Standards and Other Technical Pronouncements RM1.50

* In Bold — New Releases 
                                           TOTAL VALUE OF ORDER
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INSOLVENCY AND CORPORATE RESTRUCTURING PRACTICE BOARD

The Board considered the following key issues at the meeting
held on 9 May 2000 :

Amendments to Customs Act, 1967,
Sales Tax Act, 1972 and Service Tax Act, 1975

Prior to the Amendments
All the above three Acts provide for similar duties on liquida-

tors and receivers or receivers and managers. Essentially, the
aforesaid sections in question (‘the sections’) are similar in con-
struction and provide that :

Requisite notice of receivership or liquidation ought to be
sent within a specified period following the onset of the liq-
uidation or receivership as the case may be.

Liquidator or Receiver is obliged to set aside such sums out
of the assets of the company in liquidation or receivership
that is or thereafter will be payable for the tax in question.

Personal liability will be attached to the liquidator or receiver
for failing to issue the notice or for failing to set aside such sums.

The Amendments
In July 1999, all the above three Acts were amended. The amend-

ments, which were similar in nature, provide that after setting
aside such amounts on account of such tax, the liquidator or re-
ceiver shall thereafter pay such tax.

(Members are advised to refer to the actual provisions in the
respective Acts — a summary of the amended provisions was
published in the August 1999 issue of Akauntan Nasional).

The issue
The issue is whether the amendments confer priority on taxes

payable under Sections 191 and 292 of the Companies Act, 1965.
The Board has taken the view that generally the amendments

do not supersede Sections 191 and 292 of the said Act. However,
this view is not conclusive wherein the courts may hold that the
amendments do indeed confer priority on the Government with
respect to the taxes in question. And given that there is criminal
liability for the breach of the sections, members are advised that
the matter be taken to the Court for decision.

Amendments to the Employment Act, 1955

The matter of amendments to the Employment Act, 1955 af-
fecting the priority of payments was also raised. Sections 31, 69
and 99 of the Employment Act, 1955 have been amended.

The Board agreed that these amendments also do not affect
the requirements of Sections 191 and 292 of the Companies Act,
1965. However, in view of the liability and penalty imposed under
the amended Sections 69 and 99 of the Employment Act, 1955,
members are therefore advised that the matter be referred to the
Court for decision.

a

b

c

New Development Subsequent to Federal
Court’s Decision in Kimlin’s Case

On the 24 May 1997, the Federal Court delivered its decision in
the case of Kimlin Housing Development Sdn Bhd vs Bank
Bumiputra Malaysia Berhad. The far-reaching implication of the
case has affected the corporate recovery services industries.
Among others, some professionals are of the view that receivers
and managers appointed by debenture-holders are prohibited from
disposing the landed property by private sale and must only sell
pursuant to judicial sale (for the detailed decision of the case, re-
fer to Akauntan Nasional, June 1997 issue).

Subsequent to the above decision, Receivers and Managers (R&M)
appointed have attempted to apply for the Court’s direction under
Section 183(3) of the Companies Act, 1965 to sell landed property by
way of private treaty. One of the cases which has reached the Court
of Appeal and been considered in the recent ICRPB meeting is the
case of Melatrans Sdn Bhd. vs Carah Enterprise Sdn Bhd (under re-
ceivership) and Perdana Merchant Bankers Berhad (8 March 2000).
In this case, it appears that the present position could be as follows :

For a company under R&M without a petition for winding-
up, the R&M may sell the landed property, but for risk man-
agement purposes, to obtain Court’s direction under Sec-
tion 183(3) of the Companies Act, 1965.

For a company under R&M but where there is already a peti-
tion for winding up filed, Section 223 becomes operative wherein
all disposition of properties of the company made after the com-
mencement of the winding-up by the Court shall be void unless
the Court otherwise orders. Therefore, it is advisable and nec-
essary for the R&M to obtain a validation order from the Court
before the disposal of any landed property.

For a company under R&M and where a winding-up order
has been granted, the R&M should no longer sell properties
which are charged under the National Land Code (NLC), but
for those properties not under NLC, the R&M may sell pro-
vided the Court’s direction under Section 183(3) is obtained.

The Board wishes to highlight that the facts of the above case is
to be distinguished from the Kimlin case where, in the Kimlin case
the chargor company was wound up and consequently the R&M
ceased to be agents of the chargor company, while in Carah’s case,
the chargor company was under R&M but not under liquidation.

However, members are advised to take note that the above is
the decision of the Court of Appeal; hence, it may not be conclu-
sive since it is pending appeal to the Federal Court.

Note :  The opinions expressed above are only intended for members’
information. They are not intended to serve as instructions to members
of the Institute. Members are advised to seek counsel’s views in the dis-
charge of their duties and MIA and ICRPB members cannot be held re-
sponsible by the materials reported herein.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○
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BILL OF THE COMPANIES (AMENDMENT) ACT 2000

1 Explanatory statement of  the Bill of the Securities Commission (Amendment)
Act, 2000

The Dewan Rakyat and Dewan Negara have both passed the
above Bill and the same will come into effect once it has obtained
the Royal Assent. The said Bill of the Companies (Amendment)
Act 2000 is proposed pursuant to the major amendments proposed
under the Bill of the Securities Commission (Amendment) Act
2000 and other related Bills such as the Futures Industry (Amend-
ment) Act 2000 and the Securities Industry (Central Deposito-
ries) (Amendment) Act 2000 so as to :

“... create a fully rationalised and efficient regulatory re-
gime for capital raising in Malaysia in the light of the fact that
the Securities Commission is to be the single regulatory au-
thority for the supervision and regulation of the corporate
bond market in Malaysia”.1

The scope of the proposed amendments is mainly to establish
the Securities Commission (SC) as the approving and registering
body for prospectuses of companies except for unlisted recrea-
tional clubs. Nevertheless, as regards the lodgement of the pro-
spectuses, the same will still be required to be lodged with the
Registrar of Companies (ROC).

In respect of the provisions with  regards to prospectuses un-
der the existing Companies Act, 1965 it will only be applicable to
offers or invitations in respect of shares or debentures by unlisted
recreational clubs. The amendments as proposed in the said Bill
of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2000 are as follows :

Section Proposed Amendments

Section 4 The Bill proposed to amend the definition of
the following words :
n “borrowing corporation”
n “minimum subscription” and

To insert new definitions for the words :
n “securities” and
n “unlisted recreational club”

Section 6A To include “a right which has been prescribed
by the Minister, after consultation with the
Minister of Finance” as a right which does
not constitute an interest in a share.

Section 36 To introduce a new Section 36A wherein it
provides for application for offers or
invitation of subscription of shares or
debentures made to the public by an unlisted
recreational club to be regulated under the
Securities Commission Act.

Section 39A Pursuant to the transfer of powers to the
Securities Commission this section is deleted.

Section Proposed Amendments

The provision under this section is now under
the new Section 46 of the proposed Bill of the
Securities Commission (Amendment) Act 2000.

Section 44 Pursuant to the transfer of responsibility to
the SC this Section is deleted. The provision
under this Section is now under the new
Section 52 of the proposed Bill of the
Securities Commission (Amendment) Act, 2000.

Section 48 This Section is amended to prohibit any
allotment of shares offered for subscription
or purchase or where an invitation to
subscribe for or purchase shares is made on
the basis of a prospectus registered under the
Securities Commission Act unless minimum
subscription is obtained.

Section 49 This Section is amended to cater to offers of
securities requiring prospectus under the
Securities Commission Act. Wherein under
this Section, all application and other
moneys paid prior to allotment shall until the
allotment of shares be held by the company
upon trust for the applicant.

Section 52 This Section is amended to cater to a
prospectus pursuant to the Securities
Commission Act . Wherein this provision is
in respect of restriction on commencement
of business in certain circumstances by a
company which has issued a prospectus.

Section 58 Section 58 is amended by substituting
paragraph (1)(c)(i) to cater to a prospectus
issued under the amended Securities
Commission Act pursuant to the transfer of
responsibility to the SC. Wherein shares
offered to the public for subscription appears
to be as follows :

Shares of an unlisted recreational club
which are offered to the public for subscription.

Shares other than that of an unlisted recrea-
tional club which are offered for subscription
or purchase pursuant to a prospectus under
the Securities Commission Act, 1993, dis-
closed in the prospectus.

Se

ction 90 This Section is amended by excluding the

i

ii
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application of other rules of law to a statement
to be issued  in a prospectus.

Section Proposed Amendments

Section 96 The original provision of this Section empowers
the Minister to grant exemptions from the
provision of the Division. The new amendment
to this Section now substitutes subsection (1)
and provides an insertion of a provision
empowering the Minister to declare that the
provisions of the Division shall not apply to
any interest or class of interests upon a request
made by the Minister of Finance on the grounds
that the interest would be more appropriately
regulated as securities or future contracts.

Section 176 This Section is amended by inserting new
subsections (10F) and (10G) the effect of
which is that a restraining order under Section
176(10) shall only be exercisable by the
applicant company and shall not be extended
to any other person, including a guarantor.

Section 363 Section 363 is amended by inserting a new
proviso after paragraph (1)(b) so as to exempt
any application or invitation to purchase
shares or debentures of a corporation which
is issued, circulated or made in accordance
with Division 3 of Part IV of the Securities
Commission Act 1993(SCA).

Division 3, Part IV has been inserted into the
SCA to accommodate the transfer of
responsibility to the SC, except in relation
to unlisted recreational clubs.

Section 365 Section 365 is amended by deleting subsections
(1A), (1B), (1C) and (1D) which is in line with
the Minister of Finance’s Budget Speech and
the same will take effect from 29 October 1999.

Fifth Schedule Fifth Schedule — A, which is in respect
Abridged Prospectus — Particulars to be
included pursuant to Section 39A of the
Companies Act, 1965 is deleted. This is
consistent with the deletion of Section 39A
of the Companies Act, 1965. Wherein as high-
lighted earlier, the above provision is now
governed under the new Section 46 of the
proposed Bill of the Securities Commission
(Amendment) Act 2000.

Members are advised to refer to the complete text of the Bill of
the Companies (Amendment) Act 2000. As at the date this write-
up was done the Bill has yet to be gazetted. The proposed amend-
ments to the Securities Commission Act will be reported in the
forthcoming Akauntan Nasional.

Submission of Statement of Account :  Qualified and
Unqualified Report

The Board deliberated on the issue referred by the Company
Law Forum in respect of the circular on “Submission of Com-

pany’s Statement of Accounts” by the Registrar of Companies
(ROC), whereby company secretaries when submitting the com-
pany’s accounts to the ROC are required to state on the first page
of the statement of accounts, whether it is a qualified or unquali-
fied audit report.

The Board was of the view that distinguishing an auditors re-
port on the basis of whether it is “qualified” or “unqualified” is
inappropriate. The Board was of the view that it will be more ap-
propriate if the term “modified” be included as well.

AUDITING STANDARDS BOARD

CONSULTATIVE WORKING GROUP

ON AUDITING

COMPANY LAW PRACTICE BOARD

ROC’s Proposal in Establishing an Umbrella Body
to Regulate Company Secretaries in Malaysia

The ROC has proposed the establishment of an umbrella body
to regulate all company secretaries regardless of their affili-

ation with other professional bodies in Malaysia. The Board was

The Consultative Group held its first meeting for the year on
21 April 2000. Representatives from the following regulatory

and statutory bodies attended the meeting :  Auditor-General’s
Office, Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange (KLSE), Bank Negara
Malaysia (BNM), Malaysian Association of the Institute of Char-
tered Secretaries and Administrators (MAICSA), Federation of
Public Listed Companies (FPLC) and Malaysian Investors Asso-
ciation (MIA).

Technical Bulletins

The following bulletins are being reviewed by the Working
Group :

n Technical Bulletin 1/98 :  Auditors Report — Companies Act, 1965

n Technical Bulletin 2/98 :  Reports and Qualifications

n Technical Bulletin 1/99 :  Bank Confirmation Request

Subject to amendments based on written comments from the
members and editorial changes, the Board approved in principle
Technical Bulletins 1/98 and 2/98 to be recommended to the
Council for approval as Recommended Practice Guides.

In respect of Technical Bulletin 1/99, further consultation and
approval would be sought from the Association of Banks and
Merchant Banks with Bank Negara Malaysia as the facilitator.
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of the opinion that the establishment of a separate independent
regulatory body for all practitioners is not the best solution for
now and agreed that the regulation of company secretarial prac-
tices can be achieved by judiciously expanding the legislation and
the ROC powers under the Companies Act, 1965. The Board’s
views were forwarded to the ROC.

Practical Problems in Dealing with ROC

The Board was informed on practical problems faced by prac-
titioners resulting from the ROC’s inconsistencies between

gazetted forms and their officer’s written instructions in attend-
ing to filing of Form 48E and other administrative procedures.
The Board has proposed that a dialogue be held with the ROC on
this matter.

Financial Statement Review

The Board will from this year only carry out reviews of finan-
cial statements of non-listed companies. This is to avoid du-

plication of work, as both the Securities Commission and the KLSE
are currently conducting similar reviews of all public-listed com-
panies.

The Board will now take a stricter approach towards its review
function. Financial statements found to contain serious non-com-
pliance will be immediately referred to the Investigation Commit-
tee.

Review of Exposure Drafts Issued by the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board (MASB)

The Board is currently reviewing for comment the following
Exposure Drafts issued by MASB :

n MASB ED 22 Segment Reporting

n MASB ED 23 Business Combinations

n MASB ED 24 Financial Instruments :  Disclosure and Presen-
tation

n MASB ED 25 Impairment of Assets

Comments on the following Exposure Drafts have been sub-
mitted to MASB :

n MASB ED 14 (Revised) Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint
Ventures

n MASB ED 17 General Insurance Business

n MASB ED 18 Life Insurance Business

n MASB ED 19 Borrowing Costs

n MASB ED 20 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

n MASB ED 21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

NATIONAL ANNUAL CORPORATE

AWARDS 2000 (NACRA)
NACRA Launch-cum-Press Conference

The NACRA 2000 Launch cum Press Conference was held on
10 April 2000 at the KLSE. The launch was attended by mem-

bers of the Organising Committee (represented by MIA, MACPA,
KLSE and MIM) and members of the Adjudication Committee,
Company Secretary of Kumpulan Guthrie (two-time winner of the
Overall Excellence Award) and members of the print and elec-
tronic media (TV3 and TV2 and the press).

The NACRA 2000 Launch received good media coverage. TV2
(English News) and TV3 (Nightline) televised a brief visual seg-
ment of the launch presentation, which had been prepared by the
IT Department. The print media comprising Berita Harian, New
Straits Times, The Star, Nanyang Siang Pau and China Press were
also present and provided good media coverage.

NACRA Awards Presentation Dinner

The Award Presentation Dinner will be held on 8 November
2000 at the Palace of Golden Horses Hotel. YB Tan Sri

Muhyiddin Yassin, Minister of Domestic Trade and Consumer
Affairs, has agreed to grace the Ceremony.

FINANCIAL AND MANAGEMENT

ACCOUNTING COMMITTEE

FMAC of IFAC Research Grant

For the first time, Malaysia has been awarded a research grant
of US$4,500 by the FMAC of IFAC. The recipient is Dr. Adam

Bakar of UKM for his research entitled “The Application of Man-
agement Accounting Techniques in Developing Countries :  The
Case of the Malaysian Manufacturing Industry.”

FMAC IFAC Articles of Merit

Three articles on Finance and Management Accounting pub-
lished in the Akauntan Nasional in 1999 were selected and

have been sent to IFAC for consideration for the above.

INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE

Essay Competition

The Committee successfully organised an essay competition
for students of all local institutions of higher learning. The

theme was “Internal Auditing Today.”
Another essay competition to be held this year will  be launched

officially to give it more publicity.

Technical Workshops

There are plans to organise workshops on IT audit and other
key topics this year, instead of conferences.

C O L U M N S
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Knowledge Management

The Committee will be actively pursuing the subject of
“Knowledge Management” this year. The Committee will

seek the expertise of members in practice.

INSOLVENCY AND CORPORATE

RESTRUCTURING PRACTICE BOARD

(ICRPB)
Income Tax Clearance from Inland Revenue Board

The Inland Revenue Board (IRB) has agreed to a meeting be-
tween IRB Cawangan Syarikat and the ICRPB on the delay

in obtaining tax clearance in the event of winding-up.

Official Receiver of Malaysia’s Visit to MIA

The Official Receiver, Tuan Jalaldin and his delegates from
the Department of the Official Assignee (OA), visited the

Institute on 14 March 2000. The following issues were raised :

n Reduction in the Liquidator’s Bond
The Board enquired whether the Official Assignee can consider

a reduction in the liquidator’s bond to be paid by the private liqui-
dator and to work out a basis or a mechanism to alleviate the sub-
stantial payment which must be deposited by a private liquidator
who is appointed to act in several cases. The Official Receiver
(OR) responded that as this is within their power of duty, they
will look into the matter.

n Feedback from MIA Members
Tuan Jalaldin welcomed feedback from MIA members on how

the OA’s office and its branches could provide better services to
the public. Any problems faced in dealing with the OA’s office

could also be forwarded to them.

n Substitution of Liquidator
The OR enquired whether MIA members were willing to be

appointed as liquidators by the OR pursuant to Section 227(2) of
the Companies Act, 1965. This would help the OR in reducing
workload and to concentrate better on its supervisory role.

n Appointment of Provisional Liquidator
The OR also raised the issue of appointment of provisional liquida-

tors by the Courts as practised in Australia where every accounting
firm registered with the OA will be appointed on a rotational basis.

Appointment of Alternate Liquidators

The Board would look into the current practice regarding the
appointment of alternate liquidators in other countries. A pa-

per highlighting the Australian practice in respect of how a court
liquidator is selected, appointed and remunerated was discussed
by the Board.

A Task Force comprising members of the Board and representa-
tives from the OR office has been established to look into this
matter.

Special Administrators under Danaharta Act, 1998

On the issue of Special Administrators being Directors and
Liquidators, the Board was of the view that technically for com-

panies under voluntary winding-up, the above scenario does not con-
travene the Companies Act, 1965 and should not be regarded as con-
travening the Institute’s By-Laws (On Professional Conduct and Eth-
ics) as there is no liability incurred, wherein the law requires two
natural persons be appointed as Directors and soon after it has trans-
ferred its liabilities, the special purpose vehicle company will be put
under liquidation. It was proposed that this issue would be forwarded
to the Public Practice Board for their consideration.

IASC CONSTITUTION
The Board unanimously approved a new

Constitution for the restructured IASC and
all the member bodies will vote on accept-
ance of the new Constitution on 24 May
2000 to effect the change. The proposed
structure would come into effect earliest
by 1 January 2001.

Under the proposed new structure, IASC
would be established as an independent
organisation such as a foundation. The

T he IASC Board had its March 2000 meeting in Sao Paulo, Brazil.
The meeting was attended by Tony Seah Cheoh Wah who rep-

resented the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

foundation would have two main bodies,
the Trustees and the Board, as well as a
Standing Interpretations Committee and
Standards Advisory Council. The Trustees
would appoint the Board Members, exer-
cise oversight and raise the funds needed,
whereas the Board would have sole respon-
sibility for setting accounting standards.

CHAIRMAN OF IASC
The Board unanimously elected Thomas

E. Jones to succeed Stig Enevoldsen as Chair-
man of IASC effective 1 July 2000.

AGRICULTURE
The Board concluded tentatively that the

Steering Committee and Staff should con-
tinue to pursue the E65 approach of measur-
ing biological assets and agricultural produce
at fair value, with changes in fair value re-
ported in net profit or loss. A field test of fair
value measurements should be completed
before the Board’s meeting in June 2000.

BUSINESS COMBINATION
The Board agreed that the Steering

Committee should continue to evaluate the

IASC BOARD MEETING IN SAO PAULO — 13-17 MARCH 2000
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EMERGING MARKETS — PREPARATORY COMMITTEE MEETING,
INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS COMMITTEE (IASC)

T he preparatory committee of IASC for Emerging Markets chaired
by Tony Seah met for the first time in London on 8 March 2000.

Matters discussed at the meeting are as
follows :

Review of Experience
Members of the committee were invited

to share their experience and concerns on
accounting issues in the emerging markets
and the application of the IASC Standards.

      Egypt

n Recently adopted International Account-
ing Standards (IAS).

n Problems faced :  Language (terminology
problem) and understanding of disclo-
sure requirements under the IAS. Enter-
prises tend to only want to comply

strictly if there is a specific requirement
rather than providing more explanation
for better understanding.

As such, further guidance from IASC on
the application of its standards is impor-
tant. IASC should also issue a fixed for-
mat on the disclosures required in the
various IASs as guidance for emerging
markets (e.g. FASB used to have illustra-
tions on how to comply with certain stand-
ards).

i

merits and conceptual justification of the
pooling of interests method and also be-
gin to discuss issues that would be relevant
to a model that permits only the purchase
method. The evaluation will also include
discussion of related issues, such as ac-
counting for transactions between entities
under common control. This work will be
undertaken with a view to developing a
discussion document that will contribute
to future efforts that may be taken up by
the restructured IASC Board.

In addition, certain issues related to the
classification of a transaction as an acqui-
sition or a uniting of interests under IAS
22 (revised 1998) may be considered in the
near term by the SIC as this would provide
a more timely method of addressing inter-
pretative topics.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
The Board approved IAS 40, Investment

Property, based on principles approved by
the Board in December 1999. The stan-
dard is effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2001. However, earlier
application is encouraged.

Investment property is property (land or
a building, or part of a building, or both)
held (by the owner or by the lessee under
a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capi-
tal appreciation or both, rather than for :

n Use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative pur-
poses; or

n Sale in the ordinary course of business.

Under IAS 40, an enterprise must, for
subsequent measurement, choose either :

n A fair value model :  investment property
measured at fair value and changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

n A cost model :  i.e. the benchmark treat-
ment under IAS 16, Property, Plant &
Equipment, where investment property
must be measured at depreciated cost
(less any accumulated impairment
losses). An enterprise that chooses the
cost model should disclose the fair value
of its investment property.

Further, it was decided that when IAS
40 comes into force, IAS 25, Accounting for
Investments, ceases to have effect.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Board discussed the proposals sub-

mitted by the Joint Working Group on Fi-
nancial Instruments (JWG) to :

n Adopt a financial components approach
to transfer (de-recognition) of financial
assets.

n Replace current hedge accounting prac-
tices with a disclosure-based approach.

Board members supported the financial
components approach in principle and re-
quested for further details on the practical
implementation of the approach. There was,
however, no consensus among Board mem-
bers on the hedge accounting proposal.

The JWG intends to submit a draft stand-
ard on financial instruments to IASC and
other participating standard-setters in the

third quarter of 2000 with a view to its pub-
lication by the participating standard set-
ters in the form of a discussion document.

PENSION PLAN ASSETS
The Board discussed a proposal to revise

the definition of “plan assets” and introduce
requirements for the treatment of reimburse-
ments related to defined benefit obligations.

The Board agreed to :

n Insert a new condition requiring that the
assets held in the fund not be made avail-
able to the enterprise’s other creditors
(even in bankruptcy).

n Modify the existing conditions to explic-
itly permit the fund to reimburse the en-
terprise for paying long-term employee
benefits.

n Delete the requirement that the enter-
prise will not have a legal or construc-
tive obligation to pay the employee ben-
efits directly if the assets of the fund are
insufficient.

The Board also discussed the treatment
of an insurance contract held by the enter-
prise that exactly matches the amount and
timing of benefits payable under a defined
benefit plan. The Board agreed that an en-
terprise should recognise its rights under
such a contract as a separate asset, but
should treat such rights, in all other re-
spects, in the same way as plan assets.

The Board will approve an Exposure
Draft incorporating the above proposals at
its next meeting in June 2000.
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iii

ii

iv

     Russia

n Problems faced :  Do not know how to
apply standards. The mix between na-
tional and IASC standards has led to
comparability problems.

As such, it believes that there should be
a split between financial reporting for listed
and non-listed and small and large enter-
prises. Further guidance on the interna-
tional approach and how to apply IAS stand-
ards is viewed as important.

     Morocco
Adopted since 1992, accounting rules

similar to the French Plan Compatible :
Different details required according to size
of enterprises.

     Kenya

n The accountancy profession requires
compliance with IAS.

n There are enterprises that may not have
any accounting systems.

n Problem faced :  Enterprises are in need
of a tool to assist them in using IAS stand-
ards.

The main issues of the discussion are as
follows :

n The tax regulations in many countries and
the tax consequences for business of these
regulations are often a significant barrier
to acceptance of proper accounting in gen-
eral and IASC Standards in particular.

n The applicability and use of, and compli-
ance with IASC Standards often require
knowledge and an understanding of the
local economy and legal framework.

n In many countries, especially where Eng-
lish is not the national language, there
are problems of translation and explana-
tion of the Standards which, in turn,
leads to differential or selective report-
ing.

n Selective application of IASC Standards
was a problem in many jurisdictions.

n Requirements of central banks and other
regulators can affect the financial state-
ments.

n Compliance with IAS (or any other

Standards) is a problem in many juris-
dictions — audit function is not strong,
nor is there effective regulatory over-
sight.

n Enforcement by regulators, govern-
ments, etc is also a significant problem.

n The transition (‘leap’) to IAS has often
been found to be very onerous.

n The increasing use of fair value in IASC
Standards can be a major challenge in
economies where there is no effective
(let alone efficient) ‘market’.

Differential Reporting
The members discussed on the issue of

differential reporting, i.e. the approach to
reporting by entities often described as
“small and medium-sized entities” (SMEs)
and enterprises that are not listed on a
stock exchange.

The following observations were made :

n The definition for SMEs is best to be
determined at national levels.

n Conceptual framework for SMEs should
be the same as for public-listed and sig-
nificant public interest enterprises.

n A structure is needed to help and edu-
cate preparers, so that the basic account-
ing and bookkeeping systems within an
SME would enable them to be in com-
pliance with IASC’s requirements. This
would require the development of de-
tailed IASC guidance.

n The danger of “differential accounting”
was a concern.

n The need for a fixed format on report-
ing for SMEs. The analyst was of the
view that the line of thought on “format”
is important to help worldwide under-
standing of IASs.

In view of the above, the committee
agreed that as a priority IASC should de-
velop or sponsor the development of basic
formats for the required financial state-
ments and footnotes under IASC stand-
ards. The Project Manager of the commit-
tee was requested to prepare a proposal for
presentation to the IASC Board at its next
meeting reflecting this view. It also noted
that the budget for this project should be

separate and may be of fset by specific
project funding from interested agencies.

Industry-Specific Standards
The committee did not believe that fur-

ther industry-specific IASC Standards were
a priority at this time from the point of view
of the Preparatory Committee.

Barter Transaction
It was agreed that the Committee should

recommend that IASC conduct a survey of
Member Bodies, the Consultative Group
and other interested parties to determine
the extent of non-monetary transactions
(including barter) in their economies. The
survey should be limited to transactions
in the business and ‘grey’ markets, i.e.
transactions affecting the financial state-
ments. The survey should determine what,
if any, accounting recognition is given to
such transactions. The results of such a
survey should give IASC an indication of
the extent to which such transactions are
an issue and whether IASC should com-
mence a project to address them.

It was also noted that non-monetary
transactions are not confined to emerging
market economies. However, there was
interest in the Preparator y Committee
sponsoring the project or, at least, being
represented on it.

Accounting for Joint Ventures
The committee agreed that any project

on accounting for joint venturers under-
taken by IASC should have representatives
from the committee participating in it. The
committee was of the view that the issue
was an important one in many of their ju-
risdictions but it was one with wider impli-
cations, encompassing developed and
emerging nations.

Accounting for Government
Privatisation, Concession
Arrangements, Etc

The Project Manager briefed the mem-
bers of the committee on the recent activi-
ties of the Standing Interpretations Commit-
tee, which is looking to determine whether
they can add a topic on accounting for con-
cession arrangements to its agenda.
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to

Y.Bhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Lau Ban Tin
PSM, DSSA, JP

Past Council member and member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants

on being conferred the Chivalry Order of

Panglima Setia Mahkota (PSM)

by

DYMM Seri Paduka Baginda Yang Di-Pertuan Agong
Sultan Salahuddin Abdul Aziz Shah Alhaj

D.K., D.K.M., D.M.N., S.P.M.S., S.S.S.A, D.K.M.B. (BRUNEI), D.K. (TERENGGANU), D.K. (KELANTAN), D.K. (PERLIS), D.K. (JOHOR),

D.K. (KEDAH), D.K. (NEGERI SEMBILAN), D.K.  (PERAK), D.K. (PAHANG), S.P.D.K. (SABAH), D.P. (SARAWAK), D.U.N.M. (MELAKA), P.J.K.

in conjuction with His Majesty’s 74th Birthday on 3 June 2000
from

The Council, Management and Staff of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants

Committee members noted that outright
privatisation, built-operate-transfer transac-
tions, concession arrangements and other
similar activities are becoming far more
common in their countries. As such, it was
agreed that any project on accounting for
government privatisation/concession
transactions undertaken by IASC should
have representatives from the committee
participating in it.

Inflation Accounting
The committee noted that IAS 29, Finan-

cial Reporting Hyperinflationary Econo-
mies, sufficiently deals with accounting in
hyperinflationary economies. However, it
was agreed that should IASC initiate a
project on inflation accounting, representa-
tive from the committee should also par-

ticipate in it.

Accounting for Islamic
Transactions

The Technical Director of IASC recently
attended a conference on Islamic Banking
in Bahrain. He advised that at the said con-
ference, it was resolved that standards is-
sued by AAOFI will be based on standards
issued by IASC (similar framework). The
committee, however, was of the view that
continuing liaison between IASC and
AAOFI would be important and worthwhile.

Selective Application of
IASC Standards

Members of the Committee noted the
problem of selective applications of IASC
Standards. Members were of the view that

the problem was due to inadequate regu-
lation and enforcement of Standards. Moni-
toring of compliance was a national respon-
sibility.

Environmental Reporting
Members discussed the topic of environ-

mental accounting briefly, noting that the
issues involved go beyond the scope of the
financial statements. The UNCTAD Ob-
server noted that UNCTAD has a great
deal of material on environmental account-
ing, including guidelines and training ma-
terials. It was agreed that the Secretariat
should obtain these and, where necessary,
review them before any recommendation
is taken to the IASC Board as to whether
there needs to be a project on accounting
for environmental costs.
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The Finance Committee on Corporate
Governance recognises the impor-
tance of internal audit functions in-

cluding risk management as integral to
good corporate governance structures in
enhancing shareholder value. As such, the
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
has since been amended to include inter-
nal audit functions in Part 2 of the Code
pertaining to Best Practices.

Introduction
Following the breakout of the East Asian

economic crisis in 1997/98, the Malaysian
Government on 24 March 1998 announced
the establishment of a High Level Finance
Committee on Corporate Governance that
would look into the setting up of a frame-
work for corporate governance and setting
best practices for corporations in Malay-
sia. The Report of the Finance Committee
on Corporate Governance was made pub-
lic on 25 March 1999.

In order to further enhance the current
state of internal audit and risk management
functions in companies throughout Malay-
sia, the Malaysian Institute of Corporate
Governance (MICG), The Institute of In-
ternal Auditors Malaysia (IIA) and Ernst
& Young undertook a survey to assess
these functions.

The Survey
The survey which was conducted dur-

ing the final quarter of 1999 encompasses
all public listed companies (PLCs) on the
Main and Second Board of the Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange and Mesdaq.
Over 120 PLCs responded to the survey
questionnaire which comprised three sec-
tions :

n The Audit Committee

n The Internal Audit Function

n The Risk Management Function

Highlights of the Profile of
Internal Audit in Malaysia
— Preliminary Survey Results

The Audit Committee
The survey found that 99 per cent of re-

spondents complied with the mandatory
requirements of having a minimum of two-
thirds non-executive directors in their Au-
dit Committees.

Other survey findings include the follow-
ing :

n 39 per cent of Audit Committees com-
prise mostly financial professionals.

n 4 per cent of companies have a majority
of retired industry leaders on their Au-
dit Committees.

n 92 per cent of respondents pointed out
that they hold at least three Audit Com-
mittee meetings a year.

n 64 per cent of companies’ Heads of Au-
dit appointment is subject to the review
of the Audit Committee.

n 91 per cent of Audit Committees were
aware of the recommendations made in
the Report on Corporate Governance.

Internal Audit
The survey results show that the gen-

eral perception of the internal audit func-
tion is skewed towards providing independ-
ent appraisals, safeguarding assets, pre-
venting errors and fraud, and conducting
independent reviews on operations.

The results also showed the following :

n 13 per cent of the companies surveyed
do not have any kind of internal audit
function.

n 72 per cent of the respondents possess
in-house internal audit function.

n 53 per cent of respondents replied that
the Head of Internal Audit is a qualified
accounting professional.

n 15 per cent of respondents indicated that
their Head of Internal Audit does not
have a professional accounting qualifica-

tion but possesses an MBA or a business
related degree.

n 77 per cent of respondents have an au-
dit charter/terms of reference for their
internal audit department.

Risk Management
The survey results show that 96 per

cent of respondents regard risk manage-
ment as an important issue within their
companies.

Other survey findings are as follows :

n 80 per cent have processes in place to
identify and assess risks.

n 90 per cent have assessed major risks.

n 83 per cent have risk mitigating strate-
gies.

n 58 per cent have major initiatives for en-
hancing risk management.

n 45 per cent of risk management strate-
gies are implemented by the Chief Ex-
ecutive Officer/Board of Directors. De-
spite this, only 32 per cent of the re-
spondents are very confident about the
business risk control systems for identi-
fying, evaluating, minimising and man-
aging risks in their companies.

Conclusion
In general, the results show that whilst

there is room for further development and
improvement, a foundation exists within
PLCs in the fields of internal audit and risk
management.
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Accounting Information Systems, 8th ed., by Mar-
shal B. Romney, Paul John Steinbart , New Jer-
sey :  Prentice Hall, 1999.

Call No. :  657.0285 ROM

Business Accounting 1, 8th  ed., by Frank Wood,
Alan Sangster, London :  Financial Times/
Pitman Publishing, 1999.

Call No. :  657 WOO

The Portable MBA in Finance and Accounting,
2nd ed., editor John Leslie Livingstone, New
York :  John Wiley and Son, 1997.

Call No. :  658. 15 POR

Auditing :  An Integrated Approach, by Alvin A.

List of New Books in MIA Library
The following is a selection of new books in the Institute’s library.

Arens, James K. Loebbecke, New Jersey :
Prentice Hall,  2000.

Call No. :  657.45 ARE

Modern Auditing, 5th ed., by Gurdarshan Singh
Gill, Brisbane :  John Wiley & Son, 1999.

Call No. : 657. 45 0994 GIL

Auditing Handbook 2000 :  Incorporating All
Standards as at 1 November 1999, by Australian
Society of CPAs & Institute Chartered Account-
ants in Australia, Australia  :  Prentice Hall, 2000.

Call No. :  657. 045 AUS

International Accounting Standards IAS 40 :
Investment Property, by International Account-

ing  Standards Committee, London :  IASC, 2000.
Call No. :  657.0218 INT

Impairment of Assets :  MASB Exposure Draft,
by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
(MASB), Kuala Lumpur :  MASB, 2000.

Call No. :  MASB ED25/2000

Taksiran Sendiri :  Pengenalan = Self Assessment
:  An Introduction, by Lembaga Hasil Dalam
Negeri (LHDN), Kuala Lumpur :  LHDN, 2000.

Call No. :  343.052 042 LEM

Taksiran Sendiri :  Bayaran Cukai Bagi Syarikat
= Self Assessment :  Payment of  Tax For Compa-
nies, by Lembaga Hasil Dalam Negeri (LHDN),
Kuala Lumpur :  LHDN, 2000.

Call No. :  343.052 042 LEM

2000 Australian Master Tax Guide, Sydney :
CCH, 2000.

Call No. :  343.043 0994 AUS

Articles of Merit 1999 Competition :  FMAC Ar-
ticle Award Program For Distinguished Contri-
bution to Management Accounting, New York :
IFAC, 1999.

Call No. :  658.1511 ART

Assistance Projects In Accountancy Education And
Development :  A Study Based on the Experiences
of IFAC Member Bodies, New York :  IFAC, 2000.

Call No. :  657. 071 52 ASS

Guidelines for Registration of Institutional Agents
for the Marketing and Distribution of Unit Trusts,
1st. ed., by Federation of Malaysian Unit Trust
Managers, Kuala Lumpur :  FMUTM, 2000.

Call No. :  332. 26 FED

Malaysian International Trade and Industry Re-
port 1999, by Ministry of International Trade and
Industry Malaysia, Kuala Lumpur :  MITI, 2000.

Call No. :  339.5 MIN

FMM Directory  2000 :  Malaysian Industry, 31st
ed., Kuala Lumpur :  FMM, 2000.

Call No. :  331.041 025 MAL

Disciplinary Case

The Institute has taken the following disciplinary action against a

member for ‘unprofessional conduct’ and breaching the Institute’s

By-laws (On Professional Conduct and Ethics).

CASE

Amember, Lee Weng Huang (Memno. 3243), was disciplined for breach-
ing By-law 18-1 of the Institute’s By-laws (On Professional Conduct and

Ethics) pertaining to “Acts Discreditable to the Profession” by withholding
the audit report of a company for the year ended 31 December 1996 on the
grounds of non-settlement of fees which had caused the said company to
incur penalties and delay in the audit for the year ended 31 December
1997.

The Disciplinary Committee ordered that he be reprimanded by writing under
the hand of the Chairman of the Disciplinary Committee; and that he also pays to
the Institute a sum of Ringgit Malaysia One Thousand (RM1,000) in respect of costs
and expenses of and incidental to the inquiry held by the Disciplinary Committee
and the investigation held by the Investigation Committee.

The Way Forward
To enhance their competitiveness in a

constantly changing business environ-
ment, there is a need for companies to un-
dertake the following :

n Continue to adhere to corporate govern-
ance and implement best practices.

n Implement training and education pro-
grammes for Audit Committee mem-

bers who are not financially literate or
do not possess industr y/company
knowledge.

n Internal audit functions need to adopt
new methodologies and technology to
meet the challenges of the fast chang-
ing business environment.

n Internal auditors need to create more
value through better business insights.

The need to incorporate risk manage-
ment is important not only from a compli-
ance view point, but from a competitive
perspective as well.

Note :  The survey was jointly undertaken by
MICG, IIA Malaysia and Ernst & Young.
(Malaysian Institute of Accountants is one of the
founder members of MICG.)
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